Public Document Pack

3

GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD
To: Councillor Greig, Convener; and Councillors Collie, Dunbar, Farquharson, Penny,
Kevin Stewart, Al-Kowarri, Howie, Mair, Webster, McKail, Hendry, Bell,
McGillivray and Shepherd.

Town House, ABERDEEN
25" February 2011

GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD

The Members of the GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD are requested to meet
on FRIDAY, 4 MARCH 2011 at 10.00 am in Committee Room 1, Woodhill House

JANE G. MACEACHRAN
CLERK TO THE BOARD

BUSINESS

1 Apologies for Absence

2 Minute of Last Meeting - 12th November 2010 (Pages 1 - 12)

3 Minute of Board Budget Meeting - 21st January 2011 (Pages 13 - 18)

4 Matters Arising

5 Minute of Grampian Joint Police Board Complaints Sub Committee Meeting
of 7th June 2010 - For Information (Pages 19 - 22)

6 Minute of Grampian Joint Police Board Stewardship Sub Committee Meeting
of 7th June 2010 - For Information (Pages 23 - 28)

7 Grampian Joint Police Board - Updated Business Statement (Pages 29 - 32)




10

11

12

13

14

15

Revenue Budget Monitoring Report - 31st January 2011 - Report from the
Chief Constable and the Treasurer (Pages 33 - 36)

Capital Monitoring - 31st January 2011 - Report from the Chief Constable and
the Treasurer (Pages 37 - 46)

Grampian Police and Grampian Joint Police Board - Best Value Audit and
Inspection Report - Report from the Chief Constable and the Depute Clerk
(Pages 47 - 86)

Please note — Appendix Two will follow under separate cover

Force Quarter Three Performance Report 2010/11 - Report from the Chief
Constable (Pages 87 - 138)

(Please advise Superintendent Willie MacColl of any questions regarding the
Quarterly Report in advance of the Board Meeting if possible to enable
information to be available — willie.maccoll@grampian.pnn.police.uk)

Board Development - Action Plan - Report from the Depute Clerk (Pages 139
- 154)

Grampian Gypsy / Traveller Summit - Report from the Depute Clerk (Pages
155 - 158)

Police Appeals Tribunal - Report from the Depute Clerk (Pages 159 - 162)

NOT FOR PUBLICATION

Operational Update - Verbal Report from the Chief Constable

Website Address: www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/gjpb

Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Fiona Smith
01224 522516 or e-mail fismith@aberdeencity.gov.uk



Agenda ltem 2

GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD

Committee Room 2, Town House, Aberdeen, 12" November 2010 - Minute of Meeting of
GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD.

Present:- Councillor Greig, Convener
Councillor Shepherd, Vice Convener
Councillor Al-Kowarri
Councillor Collie
Councillor Dunbar
Councillor Farquharson
Councillor Hendry
Councillor Howie
Councillor Mair
Councillor McKail
Councillor Penny
Councillor K Stewart
Councillor Webster

In Attendance:- Mr Colin McKerracher, Chief Constable, Grampian Police
Mr John McNab, Deputy Chief Constable, Grampian Police
Mr Colin Menzies, Assistant Chief Constable, Grampian Police
Ms Karen Williams, Director of Corporate Services, Grampian Police
Mr Gary Craig, Deputy Director of Corporate Services, Grampian Police
Inspector Mike Thompson, Grampian Police
Mr lan Robbie, External Auditor, Henderson & Loggie
Ms Karlyn Watt, External Auditor, Henderson & Loggie
Mr Barry Jenkins, Treasurer
Ms Karen Donnelly, Depute Clerk
Ms Fiona Smith, Aberdeen City Council

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

1. Apologies for absence were intimated on behalf of Councillor Bell, Councillor
McGillivray, Mr Derek Penman, Assistant Chief Constable, Grampian Police and Ms
Jane MacEachran, Clerk.

ELECTION OF VICE CONVENER

2. The Convener advised the Board that Clir Cullinane had intimidated to the Clerk that
she was standing down from the Board. The Board wished to record its thanks to Clir
Cullinane for her input to the Board over the duration of her membership and send her
the Board’s best wishes.

I\AGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\04_03_11\GJPB 12_11_10.doc Page 1 of 11

Page 1



The Convener then invited nominations for the vacant position of Vice Convener.
Councillor Mair then moved, as seconded by Councillor Greig:

"That the Board nominate Clir Al-Kowarri as Vice Convener”

Councillor K Stewart moved as an amendment, seconded by Councillor Collie:

“That the Board nominate Clir Hendry as Vice Convener and note that Clir Hendry
would not claim any additional remuneration for this role”

For the motion: (5) Councillors Al-Kowarri, Greig, Mair, McKail and Webster.

For the amendment: (7) Councillors Collie, Dunbar, Hendry, Howie, Penny, Shepherd
and K Stewart

The Board Resolved:

- To elect Councillor Hendry as a Vice Convener of the Grampian Joint Police Board.

- To note that Councillor Hendry would not claim any additional remuneration for the Vice
Convener role.

MINUTE OF INQUORATE GJPB MEETING OF 10™ SEPTEMBER 2010

2. The Board had before it and approved as a correct record, the minute of the inquorate
Board Meeting of 10" September subject to the following amendments being made:

ltem 3: Under the discussion on Item 12 in Matters Arising, to amend the first
sentence of the fifth paragraph to read:

‘The Board unanimously supported the call for a summit, recognising this
is a Grampian wide issue to which a Grampian wide solution is required.’
The Board homologated all of the resolutions of the inquorate 10" September meeting,
specifically the Board agreed the actions detailed under items 4, 11 and 12.
The Board Resolved:
- To approve the Minute subject to the above amendment being made.
- To homologate the resolutions of the inquorate 10™ September 2010 Board meeting.

MATTERS ARISING

4. There were no matters arising.

I\AGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\04_03_11\GJPB 12_11_10.doc Page 2 of 11

Page 2



UPDATED BUSINESS STATEMENT

5.

The Board had before it the updated Board Business Statement dated 12" November
2010. The Depute Clerk provided a verbal update with respect to the statement as
follows:

09/18 Outcome of the Internal Audit Report on the Clerking function is to be
reported to the Stewardship Sub Committee in due course.

10/01 A report on this item appears on the agenda for this meeting.

10/02 A date for a further Board Away Day in December 2010 is presently
being sought.

10/05 A report on this item appears on the agenda for this meeting.

10/06 The Depute Clerk advised that a response is awaited from the Local

Criminal Justice Board in respect to the Board’s letter regarding Officer
time spent in court.

10/07 The Depute Clerk advised that she would provide an update on this item
in the private session.

10/08 The Depute Clerk sought the agreement of the Board to approaching
Aberdeen City Council to discuss this matter further given that it has
agreed to hold a seminar also. In addition, Aberdeenshire Council and
Moray Council will be invited to feed in to discussions on this issue.

The Board Resolved:

To note the updated Business Statement
To agree to the proposal made by the Depute Clerk in progressing arrangements for a
Summit on Gypsy Travellers in the North East.

REVENUE EXPENDITURE MONITORING REPORT - 30™ SEPTEMBER 2010

6.

The Board had before it a report from the Chief Constable and the Treasurer that
presented the Revenue Budget Monitoring Report for the period to 30" September
2010.

The Treasurer introduced the Report which detailed that the Force is projecting an
under spend of approximately £731,000 against an approved net revenue budget of
£115.212m. The Treasurer advised that the Force is seeking to maximise possible
savings within this financial year in order to decrease the burden for identifying savings
in future years. The report advised of the forecast figure for Police Officer numbers
which sits at 1,565 at 31 March 2011. Finally, the report advised that the forecasts

I\AGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\04_03_11\GJPB 12_11_10.doc Page 3 of 11

Page 3



indicate an increase in reserves at the end of the financial year to £2.306m which is
being planned in order to assist with the 2011/12 budget.

The Convener requested further details with respect to the level of under spend and
how this compares with the position in other Forces. The Chief Constable advised that
this information would be sought.

Clir K Stewart welcomed the reported under spend position however noted that this
could all be utilised if one major incident were to incur. Additionally, Clir Stewart noted
that the reserve limit is unlikely to be breached this year however this may not be the
case in future years given the financial pressures ahead. ClIr Stewart also requested
information with respect as to whether any reserves had been committed for funding
an Early Retirement / Voluntary Severance scheme.

Mr G Craig advised that the Force is seeking expressions of interest in ER/VS at
present and any applications will be considered in line with the potential savings
generated if they are approved. It is planned to use some of the reserves to fund this
scheme.

Clir K Stewart requested that it be noted in the accounts that some of the reserves
would be used for this purpose. The Treasurer noted this request and committed to
further discuss this matter and revert to the Board with advice in due course.

ClIr McKail noted that the number of Police Officers is forecast to fall before the end of
the financial year and asked what effect this would have for communities. The Chief
Constable advised that the number is forecast to drop as there is presently no
recruitment taking place therefore any leavers are not replaced. The Chief Constable
further noted that any decision regarding police officer deployment has impacts and
consequences which the Force require to manage. The focus previously has been on
maximising the number of officers within communities. At present, focus is being give
the maximising the capacity within Local Policing Teams, including moving officers into
teams where this is necessary. Therefore, at present, it is hoped that the impact on
communities of the fall in officer numbers is minimised.

Clir K Stewart requested an update with respect to developments in joint working. The
Chief Constable advised that discussions are on-going with respect of a shared contact
centre. Developments in this area aim to improve service levels as well as realise
savings and further information will be presented to the Board in due course.

Clir Webster noted that a very useful discussion had taken place at Aberdeenshire
Council between Elected Members, Council Officers, Grampian Police and Grampian
Fire & Rescue Service. This had proved an excellent opportunity to consider a range
of issues, including joint working initiatives and Clir Webster suggested it should be
repeated in the other constituent authorities.

I\AGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\04_03_11\GJPB 12_11_10.doc Page 4 of 11

Page 4



The Convener noted that the Force should be congratulated for the continued good
management of resources, including a welcome increase in the forecast under spend.
He further expressed his concern regarding the focus in Scotland being on moving to a
single police force without there being evidence to state what savings this would
achieve. The loss of local control would be most worrying.

With respect to discussions regarding the future structure of policing in Scotland, the
Board noted that this matter would be covered during the Board Away Day in
December. This would provide the Board with an opportunity to discuss developments
on this issue and agree how the Board would respond to this.

The Board Resolved:
To note the Report

CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING - 30™ SEPTEMBER 2010

7.

The Board had before it a report from the Chief Constable and the Treasurer to update
the Board on the progress of the 2010/11 Capital Plan, provide an updated projected
outturn for the year and highlight any changes since the last Board report.

The Treasurer introduced the report and advised that the total budget allocated within
the Forces Capital Plan for 2010/11 is £8.082m. The plan has been increased by
£10,000 to reflect the purchase of a new vehicle that is being fully funded by a sponsor.
In addition the report outlined that an additional £57,000 projects have been approved
from the previous unallocated sum within the plan meaning that £205,000 now remains
unallocated.

Clir McKail requested an update with respect of the development of a Joint CPU in
Moray. The Chief Constable committed to providing this information at a future
meeting of the Board.

The Board noted that there had been, as yet, no announcement on the outcome of the
Forensics Services review.

The Board Resolved:
To note the Report

ANNUAL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS -2009/10

8. The Board had before it a report from the Chief Constable and Treasurer which
presented a copy of the audited and signed set of Annual Statement of Accounts for
the financial year 2009/10.

I\AGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\04_03_11\GJPB 12_11_10.doc Page 5 of 11

Page 5



The Treasurer introduced the report, advising the Board that the Statement requires to
be noted by the Board. He further reported that the Annual Statement of Accounts had
received a clean audit report from the External Auditors.

The Board Resolved:
To note the report.

REPORT TO MEMBERS AND THE CONTROLLER OF AUDIT —-2009/10

9.

The Board had before it a report from the External Auditor which presented to the
Board the report from the External Auditor on the 2009/10 Grampian Police Annual
Statement of Accounts.

Mr lan Robbie introduced the report, noting that the Annual Statement of Accounts has
a clean audit opinion. The target date of reporting, of the end of August, was achieved
and the External Auditors wished to thank the Force for its assistance with the audit
process.

Mr Robbie further advised that the audit gave rise to three recommendations which
were accepted by the Force.

The Board Resolved:
To note the report.

FUNDING FOR MAJOR INCIDENTS

10.

The Board had before it a report from the Depute Clerk which advised of the responses
received from other Scottish Police Authorities and Joint Board to their views in respect
to the establishment of a Scottish wide fund to meet future expenditure of public sector
organisations on major incidents.

The Depute Clerk introduced the report and advised that, following the Board Meeting
on 21% May 2010, she write to the seven other Police Boards and Authorities in
Scotland seeking the views of each Board / Authority towards the GJPB proposal that
a Scottish wide fund be established to support all police forces involved in responding
to future major incidents.

The Depute Clerk advised that 4 responses have been received, none of which provide
support to the GJPB proposal. Given this lack of support, the Board resolved to take
no further action with respect to this issue.

Given this matter was first raised following a major incident in the North Sea, the Board
had some discussion relating to the issue of policing of the North Sea. In order to
provide further information on this issue, the Chief Constable offered to bring a report

I\AGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\04_03_11\GJPB 12_11_10.doc Page 6 of 11

Page 6



to a later meeting of the Board outlining the current set up with respect of policing the
North Sea.

The Board Resolved:

To note the update provided

To take no further action with respect to this issue.

To note that the Chief Constable will bring a report to a future meeting of the Board with
respect to the policing of the North Sea

ON-GOING DEVELOPMENT OF BOARD AND MEMBERS

1.

The Board had before it a report from the Depute Clerk set out a range of proposed
initiatives which aim to develop both Members and the efficient workings of the Board.

The Depute Clerk introduced the report and advised that over the past year there has
been significant development work undertaken including the revision of the Board
Standing Orders and the review of the Sub Committee structures and remits, the
development of the Board web pages and the electronic production of agenda. It is
thought to be essential to continue to progress this development in order to assist the
Board to continue to improve in terms of its governance and scrutiny role and to give
opportunities to Members to further develop their knowledge and skills in relation to the
duties and responsibilities of the Board.

The report outlined role descriptions for the Board Convener, Board Vice Conveners
and Board Members which Members were asked to review and provide feedback on.
In addition, the report set out a proposal for the more effective distribution of Board
Agendas using electronic systems where appropriate. The report also set out a range
of proposals for continuing development activities for Members and the Board were
requested to give consideration to these.

Finally, the report suggested that a Working Group of Members be established in order
to assist the Depute Clerk in progressing activities in this area.

The Board Resolved:

To agree that paper copies of the Board Agenda would be issued to Board Members,
Substitutes and the Force Executive only and that all other interested parties would be
invited to access the meeting papers on-line

To give consideration to the specific role descriptions set out within Appendix One of the
report and provide feedback to the Depute Clerk

To instruct the Depute Clerk to commence work on a training needs analysis for Board
Members and to thereafter prepare development plans and a training programme for
agreement by the Board

To instruct the Depute Clerk to arrange training / briefing sessions to take place at the
conclusion of alternate Board meetings and to ensure that an early session covers
financial planning and dealing with the impact of current budget constraints

I\AGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\04_03_11\GJPB 12_11_10.doc Page 7 of 11

Page 7



To instruct the Depute Clerk to develop a handbook for Board Members

To establish a Working Group to oversee and informed this on-going development work
and to appoint Councillors Greig, Hendry, K Stewart and McKail to this Working Group
along with a Member from Moray Council to be identified.

INDEPENDENT CUSTODY VISITING SCHEME

12.

The Board had before it a report from the Depute Clerk which provided a further
update with respect to the development of an Independent Custody Visiting Scheme in
Grampian.

Ms F Smith introduced the report and advised that the ICVS Sub Committee had
interviewed 5 volunteers on 6™ November 2010 and recommended that all 5 be
appointed as Independent Custody Visitors. Arrangements were now in hand to
conduct necessary vetting and security checks prior to these appointments being
made. In addition, familiarisation visits for these volunteers is to be arranged. In
addition, the Sub Committee also agreed to appoint 3 volunteers who had previously
been trained and attended familiarisation visits.

The Board noted that Mr Brian Pirie, Scottish Representative from ICVA had supported
the volunteer training and the resolved to sent its thanks to Mr Pirie for this assistance.

Ms Smith further advised of the forecast timescale of visits commencing and noted
that, in the first instance, visit would only be conducted in the three principal custody
facilities, until such time that further volunteer recruitment enables this coverage to be
extended.

The Convener welcomed the update report and expressed his delight that visits would
soon commence. Councillor McKail wished the Board to note that Ms Smith has driven
this development and wished the Board to record its thanks to her for this effort.

The Board Resolved:

To note the report

To record the appreciation of the Board of the support provided by Brian Pirie in the
development of an Independent Custody Visiting Scheme in Grampian

To record the thanks of the Board to Fiona Smith, Scheme Administrator, for her efforts in
progressing the development of an Independent Custody Visiting Scheme in Grampian

EXEMPT INFORMATION

Prior to considering the remaining items of business the Board resolved that in terms
of section 50 A (4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 that the public be
excluded from the meeting during the consideration on the items on the grounds that it
was likely, in view of the nature of proceedings, that if members of the public were

I\AGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\04_03_11\GJPB 12_11_10.doc Page 8 of 11

Page 8



present during the consideration of these items that there would be a disclosure to
them of exempt information as defined in paragraph 1 of part 1 of schedule 7 A of the
said Act.

VERBAL UPDATE FROM THE CHIEF CONSTABLE

13.

Assistant Chief Constable Colin Menzies provided the Board with a verbal update on
current operational matters including details on on-going high profile enquiries, recent
crime detection successes and relevant legislative changes, particularly in relation to
custody matters.

There followed an opportunity for Members to seek additional information with respect
to a range of issues including the Scottish Policing Awards and the role of the
Forensics Laboratory at Nelson Street in investigating recent high profile crimes.

The Board Resolved:
To note the update

NEW HEADQUARTERS PROJECT

14.

Councillor Al-Kowarri, Councillor Collie and Councillor Shepherd all declared an
interest in this item by virtue of each of their membership of the Grampian Joint
Fire & Rescue Board. Councillor Al-kowarri, Councillor Collie and Councillor
Shepherd did not consider that the nature of each of their interest required any
of them to withdraw from the meeting.

Councillor Kevin Stewart declared an interest in this item by virtue of his
substitute membership of the Grampian Joint Fire & Rescue Board. Clir Stewart
did not consider that the nature of his interest required him to withdraw from the
meeting.

The Board had before it a report from the Chief Constable which provided an update
with respect of site options and general progress in relation to developing the new
Headquarters project and sought the Boards approval to close the project at this time.

The Director of Corporate Services introduced the report and advised that at present,
none of the identified possible site options are available and no new appropriate sites
have yet been identified. Given this situation, and the current position with respect to
police budgets and potential changes to staff numbers and configuration of the Force, it
is recommended that the project be closed at this time.

Ms Williams advised that officers will continue to any new potential sites and report to
the Board should any new site become available.

I\AGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\04_03_11\GJPB 12_11_10.doc Page 9 of 11

Page 9



The Convener noted that this outcome was extremely disappointing to all involved. He
noted the effort and commitment of the project team towards this project and the regret
that progress has not been made towards a new headquarters being available.

The Depute Clerk noted that, following the last Board meeting, she had written to the
Grampian Joint Fire & Rescue Board to seek a joint meeting regarding a joint
headquarters. Should the Board decide to close the project, she would write to it again
to advise of this.

Councillor K Stewart noted his appreciation for the reasons behind closing the project
but sought assurance from the Force that all available options will continue to be
appraised. The Chief Constable provided this assurance and advised that the Force
would revert to the Board in due course should any developments in this matter take
place.

The Board Resolved:
To close the new Headquarters project at this time.

GRAMPIAN POLICE HOUSING STOCK

15.

The Board had before it a report from the Chief Constable which updated Members on
a recently reported Lands Tribunal Decision, Cochrane v Grampian Joint Police Board.

The Director of Corporate Services introduced the report and advised that the
Cochrane v Grampian Joint Police Board Lands Tribunal decision was determined in
favour of the Board.

The Board Resolved:
To note the report.

CAPITAL PLAN - PROVISION FOR ARMED POLICING

16.

The Board had before it a report from the Chief Constable which outlined a
requirement to make provision in the Force’s 2010/11 Capital Plan for the purchase of
enhanced weapons and equipment for issue to Grampian Police’s Authorised Firearms
Officers. The report further outlined the external drivers and operational need which
necessitate this provision.

Assistant Chief Constable Colin Menzies introduced the report and provided a detailed
explanation to Members of the external drivers and operational need for the purchase
of enhanced weapons and equipment for issue to Grampian Police’s Authorised
Firearms Officers.

The Board Resolved:

I\AGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\04_03_11\GJPB 12_11_10.doc Page 10 of 11

Page 10



To approve the provision for purchase of enhanced weapons and equipment in the Force’s
2010/11 Capital Plan.

COUNCILLOR M GREIG
CONVENOR

I\AGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\04_03_11\GJPB 12_11_10.doc Page 11 of 11

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Agenda ltem 3

GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD

BUDGET MEETING

Committee Room 2, Town House, Aberdeen, 21% January 2011 - Minute of Meeting of
GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD.

Present:- Councillor Greig, Convenor
Councillor Hendry, Vice-Convenor
Councillor Shepherd, Vice Convenor
Councillor Bell
Councillor Collie
Councillor Dunbar
Councillor Farquharson
Councillor Hood (as substitute for Councillor Howie)
Councillor Leadbitter (as substitute for Councillor McGillivray)
Councillor Lonchay (as substitute for Councillor Al-Kowarri)
Councillor Mair
Councillor McKail
Councillor Penny
Councillor K Stewart
Councillor Webster

In Attendance:- Mr Colin McKerracher, Chief Constable, Grampian Police
Mr John McNab, Deputy Chief Constable, Grampian Police
Mr Billy Gordon, Assistant Chief Constable, Grampian Police
Mr Colin Menzies, Assistant Chief Constable, Grampian Police
Ms Karen Williams, Director of Corporate Services, Grampian Police
Mr Gary Craig, Depute Director of Corporate Services, Grampian Police
Chief Inspector Nick Topping, Staff Officer, Grampian Police
Mr Barry Jenkins, Treasurer
Ms Karen Donnelly, Depute Clerk
Ms Fiona Smith, Aberdeen City Council

CONVENERS INTRODUCTION

The Convener sought approval from the Board to add an item to the agenda. This
would be considered in private session and would be a verbal update from the Depute
Clerk with respect to the Grampian Police and Grampian Joint Police Board Best Value
Audit and Inspection report which had been considered by the Accounts Commission

[\AGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\04_03_11\GJPB 21_01_11.doc Page 1 of 6

Page 13



at its meeting on 20" January 2011. The Board agreed to this additional agenda item
being added.

The Convener welcomed Assistant Chief Constable Billy Gordon to his first meeting of
the Board following his promotion as a Temporary Assistant Chief Constable with
Grampian Police.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

1. Apologies for absence were intimated on behalf of Councillor Al-Kowarri, Councillor
Howie, Councillor McGillivray, Jane MacEachran, Clerk, Mr lan Robbie, Henderson &
Loggie and Ms Karlyn Watt, Henderson & Loggie.

MINUTE OF GJPB BUDGET MEETING HELD ON 22"° JANUARY 2010

2. The Board had before it for information the Minute of the Board Budget Meeting held
on 22" January 2010.

The Board Resolved:
To note the minute.

PROPOSED REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGETS - 2011/12

3. The Board had before them a joint report by the Chief Constable and the Treasurer,
presenting the proposed Revenue and Capital Budgets for 2011/12 and requesting that
the Board set requisitions on the Board’s Constituent Authorities, in accordance with
the Grampian Combined Police Area Amalgamation Scheme.

The Treasurer introduced the report and advised that the Deputy Director of Corporate
Services would provide a presentation which would set out the report in detail to the
Board.

The Deputy Director of Corporate Services gave a detailed presentation to the Board
summarising the detail of the report. He advised that the Comprehensive Spending
Review (CSR) Announcement had provided for a one year budget and outlined the
headline figures of this. Further budgetary pressures were also outlined and the
combined overall budget reduction, in real terms, was stated to be £5.6m or 6%.

The presentation outlined the projected savings in 2010/11 and provided further
information with respect to an on-going voluntary redundancy scheme for Police Staff.
Options for savings in 2011/12, including a reduction in overtime, continued recruitment
freeze for Police Officers and Police Staff, renegotiation of contracts, estate savings
and supplies and services savings were also outlined.

[\AGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\04_03_11\GJPB 21_01_11.doc Page 2 of 6

Page 14



The presentation also provided details of previous, current and budgeted overtime
spend, an update with respect to Force Reconfiguration and details of the Impact and
consequences of the proposed budget. Finally, an update with respect to the Scottish
Government Efficient Government programme and with respect of the Capital budget
was provided.

The Chief Constable concluded the presentation of the report by noting that Grampian
Police recognise the current challenges facing the public sector with respect to funding.
The budget process for 2011/12 had been particularly difficult and the Chief Constable
welcomed the input Board Members have had to it. Grampian Police remain
committed to strengthening local policing wherever possible and the budget presented
for approval seeks to do this.

The Convener thanked Mr Craig for providing such an informative presentation and
thereafter invited questions from Board Members.

Councillor Webster noted that the issue of Police Officer time spent in court is one
which is out with the direct control of the Force or the Board. However, Councillor
Webster requested that the Board take any possible action to seek progress on this
matter. The Chief Constable advised that the Scottish Policing Board is presently
seeking to progress matters relating to the modernisation of the Scottish criminal
justice process and the Local Criminal Justice Board is doing likewise.

The Board agreed to instruct the Depute Clerk to write to the Scottish Policing Board
and to the Grampian Local Criminal Justice Board to urge both bodies to prioritise
progress with respect to matters of modernisation of the criminal justice process.

Councillor Hood sought further information with respect to the impact of restructuring to
take account of reductions in Police Officer and Police Staff numbers on the
effectiveness of the Force. The Chief Constable advised that restructuring is on-going
within the Force to ensure that all available staff resources are deployed within Local
Policing Teams in order to best benefit local communities.

Councillor McKail noted that it is regretful that Police Officer and Police Staff numbers
are declining and sought assurance that the impact of these decreases on
communities would be minimised. The Chief Constable concurred with the
disappointment expressed and noted that the impact can now be accurately stated at
present. The strategy of Grampian Police will be to be as visible and as accessible in
local communities as possible in order to minimise potential impacts on communities
and ensure that the Force are as effective as possible in reassuring local communities.

Councillor Bell suggested that the Board should seek to ensure that all reserves are
maintained in Grampian, through the return of reserves to constituent local authorities
should this be necessary, in light of the potential restructuring of policing in Scotland.
The Chief Constable noted that any change to the structure of policing in Scotland

[\AGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\04_03_11\GJPB 21_01_11.doc Page 3 of 6

Page 15



would be unlikely to take place until 2013. As such, this is not an issue that requires to
be addressed at present but will require to be resolved at the appropriate time.

Councillor K Stewart noted that the Board require to give detailed consideration to the
development of a long term financial planning strategy to support on-going
improvements in service levels and current Police Officer and Police Staff numbers.

The Depute Clerk advised that the Budget Working Group had previously been tasked
with this role and that arrangements would be made in due course for this matter to be
progressed.

Councillor Hendry requested further details with respect to proposed savings from
changes in the use of Police Surgeons and with respect to the use of Regulation A19
in Grampian.

The Chief Constable advised that, at present, there was no need to the Force to
consider use of Regulation 19 as the vast majority of Officers who have reached 30
years service have made known their plans for retirement. Should this position change
then the Force will bring a report to the Board for consideration.

With respect to Police Surgeons, Assistant Chief Constable Colin Menzies advised that
this matter has been under consideration for some time and negotiations are on-going
with NHS Grampian regarding the transfer of the responsibility for medical care for
custodies being transferred to it. However, it was also reported that this may not
realise a saving for the Force as the existing funding allocation may be transferred to
the NHS also.

Councillor Farquharson noted that the thorough budget process conducted was
welcome. He requested further information with respect to the impact of major new
developments on Grampian Police. The Chief Constable advised that these issues are
highlighted for information only at this time. The impact of these on Grampian Police
will not known until further progress is made on these issues.

The Convener questioned what impact any move to a Single Scottish Police Force
would have for policing in Grampian. The Chief Constable advised, that in his view,
such a change would require to ensure that local demand and need could be met,
however the forecast savings being mentioned at present can only be achieved if a
large decrease in Officer and Staff numbers is made and, as such, this may have an
negative impact on policing in Grampian.

Councillor Hood noted that the 2010/11 Capital Budget is under spent and requested
further information on the impact of this in 2011/12. The Deputy Director of Corporate
Services advised that discussions were on-going regarding this with the three
constituent local authorities and he was hopeful that this under spend would be
returned to the Force by the local authorities on 1% April 2011 as has happened in
previous years.

[\AGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\04_03_11\GJPB 21_01_11.doc Page 4 of 6

Page 16



The Convener noted that no budget had been set aside for the Summit on Gypsy
Travellers that the Board previously agreed should take place. The Depute Clerk
advised that discussions had taken place with GREC who would be able to organise
and facilitate this summit. It was noted that the summit would take place in the
2010/11 financial year and, as such, was not directly relevant to the budget being
considered. It was agreed that a budget of up to £2,000 should be set aside for the
Board for this summit and that the Board should ask GREC to progress the
organisation of this event to be held in March 2011.

The Convener noted that an incredible amount of effort had been made by Grampian
Police staff, the Treasurer and his staff and Board Members in preparing the 2011/12
budget and expressed his thanks to all who were involved. He noted that the budget
presented ensured that the Force would continue to address the Board’s priorities and
welcomed the continued commitment of the Force to prioritising local policing.

The Board resolved:-

(Vi)

(vii)

To approve the Revenue Budget for 2011/12;

To approve the updated medium term policy on Reserves and Balances

To approve the proposed Capital Budget for 2011/12 including some provisional sums
pending further prioritisation and consideration of detailed submissions and business
cases

To approve the requisitions on the Board’s Constituent Local Authorities, in accordance
with the Grampian Combined Police Area Amalgamation Scheme.

To instruct the Clerk to write to the Scottish Policing Board and to the Grampian Local
Criminal Justice Board to urge both bodies to prioritise progress with respect to matters
of modernisation of the criminal justice process.

To instruct the GJPB Budget Sub Group to give consideration to the development of a
long term financial planning strategy for Grampian Police and to report back to the
Board in due course.

To approve a budget of up to £2,000 for the Summit on Gypsy Travellers in the North
East from the 2010/11 budget and to agree that this Summit should take place in
March 2011 and should be facilitated by GREC.

POLICE APPEALS TRIBUNAL

4.

The Board had before it a report from the Clerk which advised the Board of an appeal
to a Police Appeals Tribunal received and sought approval for the appointment of the
Tribunal.

The Depute Clerk introduced the report and advised that, following receipt of an appeal
to the Police Appeals Tribunal, the report outlined the procedural measures necessary
in order to facilitate this process. The report detailed the Members identified as willing
to sit on the Tribunal and sought the Board’s approval of these appointments. In

INAGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\04_03_11\GJPB 21_01_11.doc Page 50f6

Page 17



addition, the Board require to formally appoint a Registrar and Depute Registrar for the
Tribunal in order that necessary arrangements can be made.

The Board Resolved:-

(i) To appoint the Clerk to the Board as Registrar to the Police Appeals Tribunal

(i) To appoint the Depute Clerk to the Board as the Depute Registrar to the Police
Appeals Tribunal

(iii)  To appoint Councillor Martin Greig, Sir William Rae, Mr John Finnie and Mr Stuart
Gale QC to this Police Appeals Tribunal.

EXEMPT INFORMATION

Prior to considering the remaining items of business the Board resolved that in terms
of section 50 A (4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 that the public be
excluded from the meeting during the consideration on the items on the grounds that it
was likely, in view of the nature of proceedings, that if members of the public were
present during the consideration of these items that there would be a disclosure to
them of exempt information as defined in paragraph 1 of part 1 of schedule 7 A of the
said Act.

GRAMPIAN POLICE AND GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD BEST VALUE AUDIT AND
INSPECTION

5. The Depute Clerk provided a verbal report to Members regarding the Accounts
Commission meeting during which it received a report from Audit Scotland and HMICS
regarding the outcomes of the Grampian Police and Grampian Joint Police Board Best
Value Audit and Inspection. The Depute Clerk advised that the findings of the
Accounts Commission will be published in late February 2011 and that a full report will
be brought to the Board in March 2011 outlining a proposed Action Plan for addressing
the recommendations detailed in the report.

The Board Resolved:
To note the report.

COUNCILLOR M GREIG - Convenor

[\AGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\04_03_11\GJPB 21_01_11.doc Page 6 of 6

Page 18



Agenda ltem 5

GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD
COMPLAINTS SUB-COMMITTEE
ABERDEEN, Monday 7 June 2010 — Minute of meeting of GRAMPIAN JOINT
POLICE BOARD, COMPLAINTS SUB-COMMITTEE.

Present:- Councillor Greig, Convenor, Councillor Hendry, Councillor McKail,
Councillor Bell, Councillor Shepherd.

In_Attendance:- Deputy Chief Constable John McNab, Superintendent lain McGrory,
Superintendent Colin Brown, Ms Karen Donnelly, Depute Clerk to the Board and Mrs
J Anderson, Senior Solicitor, Aberdeen City Council, Paul Bullen, HMICS.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

1. Apologies for absence were intimated on behalf of Councillor Dunbar and
Fiona Smith.

MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING OF GJPB COMPLAINTS SUB-COMMITTEE
OF 16" March 2010.

2. The Sub-Committee had before it and approved as a correct record, the
Minute of meeting of the Grampian Joint Police Board Complaints Sub-
Committee meeting of 16™ March 2010.

The Sub Committee Resolved:
To approve the minute.

MATTERS ARISING

3. There were no matters arising.

QUARTERLY REPORT ADVISING NUMBER OF COMPLAINTS AGAINST THE
POLICE - 1% January 2010 - 31" March 2010 and to provide a résumé for the
year 15 April 2009 - 31" March 2010

4, Prior to Deputy Chief Constable McNab introducing the report, he introduced
Superintendent Colin Brown who was to take up post as the Head of
Professional Standards as of next week. Superintendent McGrory would be
moving on to continue his work at a national level on potential changes to
Police Complaints and Conduct Regulations with the Scottish Government.

The Convener on behalf of the Sub-committee thanked Superintendent

McGrory for his hard work and support whilst he has been attending the
Complaints Sub-committee.

Page 19



Deputy Chief Constable McNab introduced the report and advised that in
respect of the volume of complaints received in the three month period from
1% January to 31% March 2010, there continues to be an upward trend. Table
1 detailed that 131 complaints were received by the Force and that this was
an increase of 11 (or 9% on the same quarter in 2008/09 and an increase 16
or 14%) on the previous quarter.

Deputy Chief Constable McNab then went on to discuss how these complaint
cases were broken down per division.

Deputy Chief Constable McNab advised that during 2009/2010, a different
test was introduced in relation to deciding whether an allegation was up held
or not. Rather than considering whether misconduct had been established,
the test is whether the service or behaviour could have been improved upon.
This resulted in an increase in the number of allegations where action was
taken. In this quarter, the action taken in the vast majority of incidents was
advice. The three most common categories in order where advice was given
were irregularity in procedure, neglect of duty and incivility.

In relation to quarter 4 of 2009/2010 service complaints had reduced
significantly on both the previous quarter and the corresponding quarter with a
total of 19 complaints about the Force. Deputy Chief Constable McNab noted
that this was the lowest of the year.

Deputy Chief Constable McNab advised that during this quarter, 70 letters of
appreciation had been recorded as being received by the Force. This is the
identical number for the corresponding quarter in 2008/2009.

Deputy Chief Constable McNab then went on to discuss complaint case
management and reiterated that the national target for completion of non-
criminal and quality of service complaints is 56 days. He noted the aim is to
achieve this 85% of the time. In this quarter, 64% of cases were concluded in
56 days and this compares with 59% in the previous quarter.

Deputy Chief Constable McNab noted that whilst there has been a further
slight improvement in performance in relation to non-criminal and quality of
service complaints, the Force requires to do better. The Head of Professional
Standards continues to have discussions with senior colleagues and
performance is also being monitored through Force tactical tasking and co-
ordinating group.

During quarter 4, the Force is asked to provide the Police Complaints
Commissioner for Scotland with papers related to two complaints cases. In
the same period, PCCS published one case handling review.

Deputy Chief Constable McNab advised the Members that an online form had
been available on the Force’s website since 1% April 2010 and 18% of
complaints received were made via this forum by email.

Councillor Greig welcomed Superintendent Brown to the Sub-committee and
thanked Superintendent McGrory for his assistance in reporting to the Board.

Page 20



Councillor Greig noted that it was disappointing that the Force is not reaching
the target of 85% and queried whether there was any way the Force could
improve this. Deputy Chief Constable McNab advised that the Force had set
the target of 56 days which it has been unable to meet and recognises that
this is attainable but is still quite challenging. Deputy Chief Constable McNab
that there was a capacity in terms of releasing officers to deal with complaint
handling and that is also dependent on the availability of the Officer and the
complainer however he advised that he would continue to look at the
timescale and review performance.

Councillor Greig noted the increase in complaint cases received during
2009/2010 and the fact that this had increased by 49 cases. Deputy Chief
Constable McNab advised that Grampian Police allocated less serious
complaints to first line Supervisors rather than specialist investigators from the
Professional Standards Department. There is no doubt this has an adverse
affect on the 56 days target given these supervisors have many other duties
to attend to.

Members observed that the online form may well generate more complaints
from vexatious or constant complainers.

Councillor McKail queried whether there was a reason for the difference in
complaint numbers between the divisions? Deputy Chief Constable McNab
advised that Aberdeenshire and Moray were obviously more rural in nature
compared to Aberdeen which was policed by a higher number of Officers and
as such there was nothing surprising in the fact that more complaints were
made regarding Aberdeen Division.

Councillor Bell queried whether the Force was keeping statistics on the
number of repeat complainers. Deputy Chief Constable McNab advised that
the Force could provide separate information on this. In response to this
Councillor Bell queried whether this would change the statistical reporting.
Deputy Chief Constable McNab said that once a complaint was made it
became one case. Additional cases would only be counted if fresh complaints
were made and as such repeat complainers would only affect the numbers if
they continue to make new complaints.

Councillor Hendy queried how complaints are recorded and whether the
complainer's home address was part of the recording process? Deputy Chief
Constable McNab advised that complaints are recorded against the Division
where the incident took place, therefore the complainer's address did not
influence the recording process.

Deputy Chief Constable McNab highlighted that for him one of the most
important issues was the time taken to deal with complaints. He accepted
that the 56 day target was challenging and the Force would continue to make
efforts to improve.

The Sub Committee Resolved:

To note the report but requested that additional information was provided in the next
report to show how quickly the Force acknowledges receipt of complaints.

Page 21



EXEMPT INFORMATION

Prior to considering the remaining items of business the Board resolved
that in terms of Section 50A (4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act
1973 that the public be excluded from the meeting during the consideration
on the items on the grounds that it was likely in view of the nature of
proceedings that if members of the public were present during the
consideration of these items that there would be a disclosure to them of
exempt information as defined in paragraph 1 of part 1 of Schedule 7A of
the said Act.

Report Providing a Résumé of Complaints against the Police which have
been considered by the Police Complaints Commissioner for Scotland -
quarter 1 January 2010 - 31%' March 2010 (and other issues to be
discussed in private)

5. The Sub-Committee had before it a report which noted one complaint handling
review had been published by the Police Complaints Commissioner for Scotland
(PCCS) since the last meeting.

Members discussed the case and the Force’s response and one Member queried
the systems used to record a call coming in to the contact centre. The Force
accepted that the call could have been handled in a more appropriate way and
the particular staff member involved had been given advice. .

The Sub-Committee resolved;-
Note the content of the report.

COUNCILLOR MARTIN GREIG - Convener

Page 22



Agenda ltem 6

GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD
STEWARDSHIP SUB-COMMITTEE

ABERDEEN, Monday 7" June 2010 — Minute of meeting of GRAMPIAN JOINT
POLICE BOARD, STEWARDSHIP SUB-COMMITTEE.

Present:- Councillor Greig, Convener, Councillor Collie, Councillor Hendry,
Councillor Mair, Councillor Bell and Councillor Shepherd.

In_Attendance:- Chief Superintendent Ewan Stewart, Grampian Police, Mr Gary
Craig, Grampian Police, Ms Helen Christie, Grampian Police, Mr lain Robbie,
External Audit, Ms Janie Keddie, Internal Audit, Karen Donnelly, representing the
Clerk, Mrs J Anderson, Aberdeen City Council.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

1. Apologies for absence were intimated on behalf of Deputy Chief Constable
John McNab, Ms K Williams, Grampian Police, Paul McGinty, Internal Audit,
Jane McEachran, Clerk and Fiona Smith, Aberdeen City Council.

MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE GJPB STEWARDSHIP SUB-
COMMITTEE OF 22"° MARCH 2010 AND 15" APRIL 2010

2. The Sub-Committee had before it and approved as a correct record, the
Minute of the previous Grampian Joint Police Board Sub-Committee meeting
of 22" March 2010 and 1% April 2010.

MATTERS ARISING

3. There were no matters arising.

CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT REPORT

4 The Sub Committee had before it a report by the Chief Constable that
provided an update on the work of the Continuous Improvement Unit.

Chief Superintendant Stewart introduced the report and advised that the
efficiency savings for 2009/2010 had been reached with a saving of
£1,054,000.

Councillor Greig queried what the challenges were in meeting the efficiency
savings? Chief Superintendant Stewart advised that the efficiency savings are
going to become increasingly more challenging for the Force in the future and
it continued to be challenging for Managers to try and find these savings. Mr
Craig advised that year on year it is getting more difficult to achieve efficiency
savings but there are good examples of things that have been done differently

Page 23



and reviewing the current structures in the Force have meant that efficiencies
have been provided without having to make cuts in the operational service. Mr
Craig advised that the target for 2010/11 is approximately £5,000,000. He
noted that the restructuring in Aberdeen Division would potentially go some
way to make this saving and recognised that the ACPOS work streaming
would go some way to having an impact on these efficiencies in Grampian.
Ms Christie advised that in Aberdeenshire there have been huge savings in
relation to officer time. However, she noted that the cash savings that have
been made have not been substantial.

Councillor Hendy queried the custody facilities in Peterhead and the cost
implications of transporting custodies to and from the Police station? Mr Craig
advised that the physical space at Peterhead is an issue and the Force is still
looking at sites for new Custody facilities within the site of the new
headquarters and the new building.

Councillor Greig praised the work of the Continuous Improvement Unit in
producing good outcomes and noted that the Force were to be commended in
making such substantial saving.

HMICS THEMATIC UPDATE REPORT

5.

The Sub-Committee had before it a report by the Chief Constable which
provided an update on the progress of implementing previous internal and
external recommendations. Chief Superintendent Stewart advised that there
is one new action plan which relates to Attendance Management. This plan
introduces five recommendations which are relevant to the Police. Chief
Superintendent Stewart advised that the Force acknowledges two of these
recommendations and is progressing with these nationally. In terms of the
remaining three recommendations, the Force is already compliant with these.

Chief Superintendent Stewart then went on to talk to the summary at chapter
two of the report and took questions from Members on relevant sections. Mr
Craig highlighted that the Board had previously asked for a report to come
back to it on the costs of providing Police Surgeons and advised that this
would be done in due course.

The Sub-Committee resolved:
To consider and approve the content of the report.

REPORT ON THE GJPB SINGLE EQUALITY SCHEME AND ANNUAL REPORT

6.

The Sub-Committee had before it a report by the Depute Clerk which updated
Members on the Disability, Gender and Race Annual Report and on the draft
Single Equality Scheme. The Depute Clerk advised that the annual report was
a combined report considering the requirements under the three existing
Equality Schemes in terms of the Board’s obligation to publish an annual
report which monitors work being undertaken by the Board to meet its duties
under Equalities Legislation.

Page 24



In addition, the Depute Clerk advised that her office had prepared a draft
Single Equality Scheme which was attached for Members consideration and
that it was the Depute Clerk’s intention that the Scheme will be issued shortly
for consultation to various community and diversity groups and will be
submitted to the next Board meeting on 2" July for approval.

The Sub-Committee resolved to:

-

Approve the draft Annual Report

Instruct the Depute Clerk to issue the SES to appropriate community and
diversity groups for comment, and

Instruct the Depute Clerk to submit the final version of Annual Report and
SES to the Board on 2 July 2010 for approval.

INDICATIVE INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2010/2011

7.

The Sub-Committee had before it a report from the Internal Auditor which
updated Members on the discussions relating to the Internal Audit Plan for
2010/11 and the accompanying indicative plan for the year. Ms Keddie
advised that the draft Internal Audit Plan for 2010/11 is currently under
discussion with Force Management. A number of potential areas for review
have been indentified having taken into account relevant factors such as other
sources of assurance including HMIC coverage, the Forces Risk Register and
other Force developments as well as having regard to the balance of
coverage of internal audit in previous years. Ms Kiddie advised that these are
to be finalised to the Force Executive Board in the near future. There was a
brief discussion with Members with respect to Absent Management and what
this included and Ms Keddie advised that Deloitte and the Force have yet to
consider the scope of the piece of work with regard to Absent Management.

The Sub-Committee resolved:
To consider and note the information provided in the report.

INTERNAL AUDIT FINAL REPORT

8.

The Sub-committee had before it a report by the Internal Auditor which
presented the results of the Internal Audit Review which followed up on the
implementations status of recommendations raised in 2008/09. Ms Kiddie
advised that some of the cut off dates in the report were scheduled after the
previous sub-committee meeting and have now become fully implemented.

Members went through each recommendation and raised questions which
were answered by Ms Keddie, Mr Craig and Chief Superintendant Stewart.

The Sub-Committee resolved:
To consider and approve the report.

Page 25



At 4.03pm Councillor Bell left the meeting.

INTERNAL AUDIT STATUS UPDATE

9.

The Sub-committee had before it a report from the Internal Auditor which
provided an overview of the current status of Internal Audit Reviews which
formed part of the 2009/10 programme. Ms Keddie explained that the review
of Records Management was cancelled at Management request as the Force
did not feel it was best value to go over something that the Force already has
in place.

The Sub-Committee resolved;

To note the information provided in the paper.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT PLAN FOR 2009/10

15.

The Sub-Committee had before it a report from the External Auditor which
provided the Board with a clear understanding of the Auditors approach to the
Audit of financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2010 and provide
an update of the Auditors Interim Audit work to date. Mr Robbie advised the
target date for the statement is the end of August although they are still to
undertake work on internal audit files. Mr Robbie advised there is a
requirement in terms of the financial accounts to have a discussion with those
individuals who have governance role regarding the end of year accounts. He
advised that the Board proceed along the same plan as last year, in that a
report would need to come to the Committee and be signed off by the end of
August. He advised it might be helpful to schedule a working group at the end
of August to consider the accounts which could then be signed off by the
Convener and Force Executive prior to the deadline.

The Sub-Committee resolved:
To note the Report.

EXEMPT INFORMATION

Prior to considering the remaining items of business the Board resolved
that in terms of Section 50A (4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act
1973 that the public be excluded from the meeting during the consideration
on the items on the grounds that it was likely in view of the nature of
proceedings that if members of the public were present during the
consideration of these items that there would be a disclosure to them of
exempt information as defined in paragraph 1 of part 1 of Schedule 7A of
the said Act.

ACTION PLAN UPDATE - AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS

10.

The Sub-Committee had before it a report by Chief Constable which provided
an update on the progress of implementing previous internal and external
audit recommendations. Mr Craig introduced the Report and suggested that
the report should have been designated in as a public paper not a private

Page 26



paper albeit the paper had been designated by the Chief Constable as a
private report.

Mr Craig advised that Appendix A showed a summary of the total number of
outstanding reports and recommendations and the level of implementation to
date and Appendix B detailed the outstanding audit recommendations and
their current status.

The Sub-Committee resolved:
To note the progress made to date on audit reports.

REVIEW OF FORCE PRIORITY OBJECTIVES 2009/2010

1. The Force had before it a report by the Chief Constable which provided
Members with an update on Force priorities in 2009/10.

Chief Superintendent Stewart spoke to the report and summarised the
priorities outlined in paragraph 2.

The Sub Committee resolved:
To note the document and agree that the objectives are reported to the sub-
committee on a quarterly basis.

TACKLING INEFFICIENCIES WITH THE CRIMINAL JUSTICE SYSTEM

12. The Sub-Committee had before a report by the Chief Constable which
provided information to Members regarding the measures being taken to
streamline and improve efficiencies within the Criminal Justice System both
nationally and locally following a request for a situation report from the
Convener. Members noted it was good to see the report and it was queried
how cooperative the Grampian Criminal Justice Board was being with the
initiative? Chief Superintendant Stewart advised that he would bring
something to the full Board on this.

The Sub Committee resolved:
To note the content of the report

DEBTOR WRITE OFFS IN 2010/2011

13. The Sub-Committee had before it a report detailing the invoices which have
been raised by the Force but have been subsequently written off with
approval of the Deputy Director of Corporate Services. Mr Craig advised that
he would be reviewing how these debts are written off and the process behind
that and would be reporting back to the Board on his findings.

Page 27



The Sub Committee resolved:
To note the report.

FULL RISK REGISTER 2010/11

14. The Sub-committee had before it a report from the Chief Constable providing
Members with the full Risk Register for 2010/11. Chief Superintendent
Stewart advised that the Risk Register is completed annually and indentifies
all risks identified with the business area plans both from Force priorities and
local challenges projects risks and emerging issues. Superintendent Stewart
that the Risk Register will be submitted to the Full Board for information.

The Sub Committee resolved:

16. AOCB

There was no other competent business.

COUNCILLOR MARTIN GREIG - Convener

Page 28



20p°L L €0 0 Hoday ssauisng Bulpuelsing gdro\l L 0z\sHodey pJeog\30110d NYIdINYSE O\

h (01/11/%0) papinoid
m 8 [[Im 8epdn [egloA }seq YHON au}
O B — Jeulwsas sy} sbueue | ul sigjjeael] AsdAgy uo jpwwng
L 0] payse aq uonesiueblo | e Jo} spuswabueie pasodoud
o [euleixa ue jeyy paysanbas | yym  Bupnssw  piseog  ainyny  way — 0102
® L L0z Buudg NIETe) Sey JauaAUO0) 8y | B 0] WaAal 0] J48|D 8y} 1oNJIsul O Jequeldag 0L | 80/0)
(@)
- aWaYdS Hdd dY} 0}
) uone[dl ul gNd pPue JusWwulaA0m)
(@) ysimoog ‘Aiejaloag awoH ay) 0}
A 3)lUM 0] 33D By} 1oNnJisul 0} pue
010z Jequeydes 0l uo pieog
(Luzomwe) | ay) 0) podas ejepdn ue pwgns
L L0z Aein ,0C Uo Bunes|y | 0} pue aininy ayy ul paldde
pJeog ay} 0} papiroid | 89 piNoyYs awayds HYdd dy)} moy
aq |m 1odal ayepdn uy | Bulealbe 0] MaIA B YlIM SAIINDSXT
90104 8y} JO slaquiely Jaylo
(ouiwo) pleog | pue 8|geISUOD JBIYD BYl Yum
8y} 0} papiAoid aq [|Im | SUOISSNOSIP  Allea  8douBWWOD
alepdn |eqloA ¥ “Ajjleuoneu | 0]  ‘SIBUSAUOD)  dJIA  pue
S|9A8| SNOLIBA B UOISSNISIP | JAUBAUOD 8y} YlIM Uuolje}nsuod 12
L L0z Ae 3810 jojoalgns ayysienssiayl | Ul 9| BYy  pnagsul o] | wey —0LoZ AInf ,,Z2 | 20/01)
(01/60/20) "UoNBJIBPISUOD 10} pleog
pajieme JIpny JO awoo}nQ | 8y} a1048q ybnoliq aq ||m sanssi
22Jnosal Buiyels pajeroosse pue
M3IABI PBOUBWIWOD | uoiduNn4 Bua|) ayj uo uoday Zl way —
010z buuds 310 9AEY SJO)IpNY |BuJdlu| | Jipny [BulSiu| 8y} Jeyl 8jou o] | 600¢ J8quBAON 9 | 81/60
paja|dwo) 1932140
9)o|dwon | aq 0} ajeq a|qisuodsay ajepdn uois|d9(q pleog 92UdI3J3Y AMNUIN | Jaquiny

110Z HOYVIN ,, 7 — LNJINTALVLS SSINISNTG Addvod

aydvod 30170d LNIOI NVIdINVYO

Page 29



20p°L L €0 0 Hoday ssauisng Bulpuelsing gdro\l L 0z\sHodey pJeog\30110d NYIdINYSE O\

0] 19A sI |1oUN0) AeJo|\ Wol)
JBqWIBI\ VY "L 10OZ UdIelN

u uo Bunssw syl je dnolg)
Buyiopn ay) Aq paalbe

aq |Im sBuneawi Jo s|gejawi
Vv "Liog Aeniged 2

uo Bunsaw jewuoul ‘[eniul
ue p|ay j| ‘paysiigeiss
usaq sey dnois) Buopn

‘payiuspl 8q
0] [1oUN0D AeIOJ\ WOI) JaquIB|N
e yum Buoje dnolsy Buiopn siy}
0} [I_MON pue pemals Y ‘AipusH
‘Blalg) SJO|[12UN0) juiodde
0] pue pleog a8y} Jo 10adsal
ur yiom Juswdojenep  Bulob
-UO By} PawIojul pue 83SIONO

Ll Way —

a)o|dwo) | 110z yoteinN 9D ainda( uswdojanaq pieog ay| | 0} dnois BuiyIopA B ysiigeise o] | 010Z JoqWaAoN wll | LLoL
(LLrzome)
pJeog ay} 0} paplroid
aq |Im dnolg) Buopp ‘'sloquiai\
3y} JO YoM ayj uo sajepdn | pJeog 4o} yooqpueH e dojaasp 0}
Jeinbay °110zZ yoteny ub uo | pue Buneaw pieog puodas Aiona
Bunasyy pJeog sy} 0} Joud | JO UOISNIDUOD BY} 1O} SUOISSOS
1snl Bueaw jewuoy isaiy sy | Buigeuq Jo swwelbold e abuelise
dnolg Buplop) | ploy M pue | Loz Adeniga4 | 0} ‘pieog oyl Agq juswaalbe
Juswdojanaq ouC UO Bunesw |ewloyul | 10} swwelbold Buiulesy e pue
pieog | ‘jenul e pey dnols) Buop) | suejd juswdogasp aisedaud o) L] way —
210z Alde3 / Y48]D 8ynda( juswdojaaaq pleog 8yl | Juswdojpaeg pleog Bulob-uQ | 010Z JoqwanoN ,zZ) | 0L/0)
€3S UHON
ay} Jo buolod sy 03 108dsel
ym pieog a8y Jo bBunssw
alniny e 0] wodas e Buug |Im 0l wey —
9|gejsuo) JaIyo 9|gejsuo) JaIyy ayj jeyi 8jou ol | 010 18qQWBAON 2l | 60/01

(Lirzomve) -epusbe ay) uo

S| Jodas ayepdn uy “Hwwns
s1yj Joj sjuswabuele
ssalboid o) pabebua

useq aAeYy D3YO ‘L 10C
Asenuer g uo pieog ay)
wouj Juswaalibe buimojjo4

Page 30



20p°L L €0 0 Hoday ssauisng Bulpuelsing gdro\l L 0z\sHodey pJeog\30110d NYIdINYSE O\

dnolg gng 19b6png

(L1e0ve) passalboud

a( ued Jayew siy)

1ey) JopJo ul Jeah jeloueuly
ZL/110¢Z ®4y} Jo JE]Ss 3y}

1e aoe|d axe) 0} pabuelle

"9SIN02 8np ul pieog 8y} 0} yoeq
uodas 0} pue 89104 ueldwels
Jo} ABsjess bBuiuued |eroueuly
wie) bBuol e jo juswdojorsp

/ 82104 / Jainseal | aq 03 sl dnoug gng 186png | 8yl 0} uonelapisuod aAlb 0} dnolg) ¥ way|
1 10C pu3 / 349[0 8nda( adro auj jo buesw v | gng 186png gdro ayj jondisul ol | — Loz Aenuer 1z | 20/L1
(L 1/20/%2)
spJeog Yioq woJy pajieme sl 'ss9004d 921sn( jeuiwio
asuodsal y |10z Aleniga4 | 8y} JO uonesiuiapow Jo sisjew 0}
,VC Uo pieog aonsnr | joadsal yum ssaiboid ssijioud o)
|leuiwl) |20 ueldwels) | salpoq yjoq abin 0} pleog aonsnr
8y} 0} pue pieog bBuiijod | jleulw) |20  ueldwels)  ay)
USI}00S 8y} 0} Juss sem | 0} pue pleog Buidljod Ysioos ay) € way
|l L0C Yoley 39[D einde@ | oidoy sy Bulpiebal Jeps| v | 0} 8jlUm 0} WB[D 8y} Jondjsul o] | — | LoZ Aenuer Lz | LO/LL

(Lizov2) dnodgy BUIOAN SIU)
ul ejedioled o} payiuapl aq

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



Agenda ltem 8

GRAMPIAN
P-O-L-1-C-E

Keeping our commuanities sare

COMMITTEE: GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD

DATE: 4 March 2011

TITLE OF REPORT: Revenue Expenditure Monitoring Statement
REPORT NUMBER «ReportNumber»

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

To present to the Board for its consideration a 2010-11 Revenue Expenditure
Monitoring Statement for the period to 31 January 2011. As the March
meeting is held early in the month, the February out-turn information is not yet
available.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

To consider and note the contents of the report.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The monitoring statement provides a breakdown of the Force's annual
revenue expenditure and associated funding. It outlines the overall budget for
the financial year, actual spend to 31 January 2011, and the projected out-
turn up to 31 March 2011. The variance identified shows any projected
under/overspend comparing the estimated out-turn with the approved budget.

The Force is currently projecting an underspend of approximately £1.707m for
the financial year 2010-11, against an approved net revenue budget of
£115.663m. This would result in an increase in the Force's General Fund
balance by £1.707m, taking the total up to £3.282m.

Given the potential reduction to Police funding in future years, the Force is
aiming to maximise savings in the current financial year in order to reduce the
financial burden in 2011-12 and beyond.

4. SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT

The majority of the savings are as a direct result of reduced recruitment. The
impact on service delivery, both to the communities of the North East in terms
of operational effectiveness and to internal customers in terms of Corporate
Services, is being monitored via the Scottish Policing Performance
Framework (SPPF).

Page 33



OTHER IMPLICATIONS

REPORT
Pay Costs

The projected Police Officer pay costs are continuing to reduce as Police
Officers leave or retire from the Force and are not replaced. It is currently
anticipated that Police Officer numbers will now reduce to around 1,563 by the
end of March 2011. If this figure reduces further or higher ranked Police
Officers continue to retire at a similar rate, then further savings will accrue.

The total underspend against the Police Officer pay budget (excluding SPP,
allowances, National Insurance and pension costs, etc) is approximately
£632,000. The table below shows a breakdown of those savings against the
different elements of the Police Officer pay budget.

Budget Saving
Retirals £300,000
Leavers £107,000
New Starts £178,000
Career Breaks, Sick/Maternity Leave etc. £47,000
Total £632,000

The Force is also generating further savings against the Police Overtime
budget. The budget for the Central Overtime Reserve (£131,000) has not
been utilised, as Business Areas continue to accommodate all of the overtime
spend within their devolved budgets. However, the occurrence of a major or
critical incident between now and the end of March may adversely affect this
situation.

The projected pay costs for Police Staff are continuing to reduce as more staff
leave the Force. Provision has been made for the costs of the Voluntary
Redundancy Scheme (VRS), which has been funded from savings that have
been generated through the on-going recruitment freeze and deletion of
vacant Police Staff posts across the Force.

It is anticipated that the redundancy costs will amount to approximately £1m
and that the capitalised pension benefits will be £1.4m. Whilst the Force is
required to account for the entire pension cost this financial year, in terms of
cash flow, the Force will pay approximately £600,000in [ump sum
values (referred to as a Strain on the Pension Fund) and thereafter pay an
equivalent amount of £37,000 every year to support the enhanced pension
benefits (Compensatory Added Years). The estimated savings year on year
should amount to approximately £2m, which will be necessary for reducing
the financial burden for 2011-12 and beyond.

Page 34



The reduction in Police Staff numbers is likely to have some impact upon
Business Areas' operational and support capacity. Consequently where a post
is considered to be business critical, then the Force will redeploy or transfer
staff from other areas.

Other Costs

The Force is continuing to make savings against a number of budgets within
the expenditure category headed supplies and services. As well as generating
efficiency savings through new and on-going procurement initiatives, the
Force has focussed on reducing attendance at conferences. The decision to
limit recruitment of new Police Officers and Police Staff has resulted in a
significant reduction in training costs. Over the longer term, the Force will be
seeking to further develop shared services or collaborative opportunities with
national and local partners.

The Force's contribution towards national policing projects is being monitored
closely, in the lead up to the end of the financial year. The budgeted
contribution is based upon a percentage (9.82%) of total spend by all Forces
on these national projects (approximately £8m), although this includes the
cost of Police Officers and Staff seconded to the projects. It is currently
anticipated that the Force will incur employee costs of approximately
£325,000 for those Officers and Staff seconded to the national projects, and
contribute a cash balance of £402,000 towards the remaining share of
expenditure. However, any slippage in the programme of work will result in a
reduction in the cash balance to be paid by the Force at the year end.

Income

The Scottish Government has recently agreed to provide a specific grant in
the current financial year for an amount of £407,000 to provide for the cost of
ill health benefits paid to retired Police Officers. These costs are met from the
Force's operating budget, rather than from the newly created Police Officer
Pension Account, consequently the award of the grant ensures that the new
regime remains cost neutral. The Scottish Government plan to include this
sum as part of the core funding (Police Grant and Constituent Authority
requisition) within 2011-12 and beyond, consequently the estimated figures
have been included within the recently published Local Government Finance
Circular 14/2010.

Reserves

The Board previously agreed a minimum balance on the General Fund, such
that it should exceed 1% of total funding, to ensure that there were resources
available to meet any significant unplanned operational need, especially in
light of the nature and types of risks faced by the Force. Based on the position
for 2010-11 outlined above, the balance on the General Fund would rise to
£3.282m.

Page 35



The current forecast position on reserves is as follows:

2010-11 General.Fund
£ million
Opening balance (subject to audit) 1.575
Projected underspend 1.707
Projected closing balance 3.282
Minimum Balance 1.162

The Scottish Government has agreed to revise the carry forward limits
associated with revenue underspends in any given financial year, as well as
maximum balances on the General Fund. In any given year, the Force will be
able to carry forward up to 4% of its core funding (a rise of 1%), and be able
to hold balances on its General Fund up to 8% of its core funding (a rise of
3%).

This will allow some Police Forces to increase their reserves without
breaching the agreed limits. However, with the projected underspend of
£1.707m this financial year, this Force will not breach the permitted maximum
of £3.768m, nor the cumulative General Fund limit of £7.536m (projected
closing balance of £3.282m).

7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

Gary Craig, Deputy Director of Corporate Services
gary.craig@grampian.pnn.police.uk
Tel: 01224 305222

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS

Chief Constable Treasurer
«Date» «Date»

Page 36



Agenda ltem 9

GRAMPIAN
P-O-L-

Keeping our commanities sare

COMMITTEE: GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD
DATE: 4 March 2011

TITLE OF REPORT: Capital Monitoring Report
REPORT NUMBER «ReportNumber»

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT
To update the Board on the progress of the 2010-11 Capital Plan, provide an
updated projected out-turn for the year, and highlight any changes since the
last Board.
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)
The Board is requested to:
¢ consider and note the contents of the report;
e and approve the carry forward of £1.234m of Capital Grant from 2010-
11 into 2011-12, by the Constituent Authorities.
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The Capital Plan sets out the Force's proposed investment in capital assets
for the current and subsequent 3 financial years. The approved budget for
2010-11 amounts to £3.026m, and is funded by way of capital grant, capital
receipts and revenue financing.
The Capital Plan is overseen by the Force's Programme Board, with any
minor adjustments being reflected in a transfer from or to the Unallocated
Capital Funds.
4. SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT
It is important that the Force continues to invest in its infrastructure and

systems in order that it can enhance the operational capacity and generate
efficiencies for front line policing.

5. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

Page 37



REPORT

The total approved budget amounts to £3.026m. The projected out-turn for
the current financial year is £2.947m and the actual spend up to 31 January
2011 is £482,000.

The removal of the budget for the new Force Headquarters in the current
financial year has had a significant impact upon the Capital Plan and as a
result the Board recently agreed to carry forward £1.134m of Capital Grant
funding from 2010-11 into 2011-12.

The Force is unable to hold any unspent Capital Grant at the end of a
financial year. The Scottish Government suggested that the most appropriate
mechanism for dealing with this situation is for the Constituent Authorities to
be refunded with a share of the Capital Grant this financial year and to re-
issue an equivalent amount in 2011-12.

In recent months the Force has endeavoured to progress a small number of
new capital projects in order to utilise the remaining balance of the
Unallocated Capital Funds. It is unlikely that this balance will be expended,
although these projects may commence later in 2011-12.

In order to ensure that the Force adheres to the grant funding rules, it is
recommended that the Force increases by £100,000 the amount of Grant
Funding that needs to be carried forward. This will allow for the balance on
the Unallocated Capital Funds (£79,000) to be carried forward from 2010-11
into 2011-12, as well as provide for a small element (£21,000) of slippage
against any of the main construction projects. Discussions are on-going with
representatives from the Constituent Authorities, in order to progress the
matter.

The total amount of Grant Funding that would be carried forward would rise
from £1.134m to £1.234m. Consequently, the level of Capital Grant provided
to the Force in 2010-11 would reduce from £3.857m to £2.623m, and for
2011-12 it would rise from £2.404m to £3.638m.

As in previous financial years, a considerable element of spend is incurred
during the last 2 months of the financial year, as projects near completion, or
goods are delivered that meet with tender specifications. Although the actual
expenditure to date is relatively low (£482,000) it is still anticipated that the
cost of capital goods and services purchased will be in line with the total
projected out-turn of £2.947m.

Any increase in the level of capital spend for 2010-11 (beyond the £2.947m
now projected) in the lead up to the end of this financial year, will be funded
through the use of capital receipts.

Work is also progressing on the National Performance Platform Project. The
budget for the current financial year is £487,000, and spend will be funded
from the Capital Grant carried forward from 2009-10. The profile of spend is
included within Appendix C.

Page 38



7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

Gary Craig, Deputy Director of Corporate Services
ary.crai rampian.pnn.police.uk
Tel: 01224 305222

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS

Chief Constable Treasurer
«Date» «Date»

Page 39



Page 40



GRAMPIAN POLICE

Budget Monitoring Report - Expenditure up to 31 January 2011

EMPLOYEE COSTS
Police Officers

Police Staff

Other Staff Costs

OPERATING COSTS
Property Costs

Transport and Plant Costs

Supplies and Services Costs

Appendix A

Gi Police Si Y Estil d Variance Out-turn as a
Out-turn (Underj/ % of Budget
Overspend
Approved Expenditure to As At As At
Budget 31-Jan-11 31-Jan-11 31-Jan-11
£ £ £ £

Pay 54,735,056 45,013,012 54,103,186 (631,870) 99%
CRTP/Bonus/SPP 1,536,242 1,232,800 1,349,316 (186.926) 88%
TRA and Housing 2,053,485 1,605,810 2,099,779 46,294 102%
Other Allowances 124,691 84,748 104,791 (19.900) 84%
National insurance 5,164,724 4,026,385 5,052,340 {112.384) 98%
Notional Pension Costs 13,555,254 11,287,113 13,556,924 1,670 100%
Injury Pension Costs 400,000 328,001 393,600 (6,400) 98%
Il Health Awards 384,961 322,089 384,961 0 100%
Sub-total 77,954,413 63,900,058 77,044,897 (909,518) 99%

Overtime 3,191,099 1,953,633 2,895,335 (295,764) 91%
Total Police Officers' Costs 81,145,512 65,853,691 79,940,232 (1,205,280) 99%

Pay 16,328,543 12,719,363 16,348,357 19,814 100%
Allowances 1,565,050 1,250,663 1,617,701 (47.349) 97%
National Insurance 1,179,932 979,415 1,177,427 (2,505) 100%
Superannuation 4,241,332 2,464,693 4,303,280 61,948 101%
Sub-total 23,314,857 17,414,124 23,346,765 31,908 100%

Overtime 259,371 133,084 198,906 (60,465) 77%
Total Police Staff Costs 23,574,228 17,547,208 23,545,671 (28,557) 100%

Recruitment (incl Relocation) 69,400 63,328 76,085 6,685 110%
Other 13,500 7,788 12,920 (580) 96%
Sub-total 82,900 71,116 89,005 6,105 107%

Total Employee Costs 104,802,640 83,472,015 103,574,908 (1,227,732) 99%

Rent 866,257 485,664 858,712 (7,545) 99%
Rates 1,460,650 1,370,387 1,463,259 2,609 100%
Insurance 20,530 20,242 20,925 395 102%
Repairs and Maintenance 612,968 445,434 612,015 (953) 100%
Repairs and Maintenance - Devolved 22,522 18,342 26,822 4,300 119%
Heating, Lighting and Cleaning 1,022,748 855,174 1,021,476 {1,272) 100%
Sub-total 4,005,675 3,195,243 4,003,209 (2,466) 100%

Repairs and Maintenance 260,200 223,848 263,650 3,450 101%
Petrol and Diesel Fuel 806,973 638,155 807,452 479 100%
Licences and Insurances 308,400 311,003 318,000 9,600 103%
Car Hire 251,209 201,071 245,121 (6,088) 98%
Travel and Subsistence 535,751 332,269 511,711 (24,040) 96%
Sub-total 2,162,533 1,706,346 2,145,934 (16,599) 99%

Operational Equipment and Materials 601,437 401,048 581,063 (20,374) 97%
Operational Supplies and Services 2,840,955 1,966,153 2,864,023 23,068 101%
Uniforms and Clothing 290,383 213,355 275,209 (15,174) 95%
Computer Maintenance and Software 1,311,337 980,477 1,330,991 19,654 101%
Computer Network and Telephony 734,819 522,832 704,241 {30,578} 96%
Radio Communications 5,000 5,211 6,000 1,000 120%
Catering 150,865 124,111 145,134 (5,731) 96%
Conferences and Training 451,586 191,096 327,585 (124,001) 73%
Printing, Stationery and Postages 525,378 351,165 453,048 (72.330) 86%
Insurances 395,100 401,723 405,649 10,549 103%
Advertising 66,220 48,533 72,025 5,805 109%
Other Administrative Costs 332,171 155,106 326,587 (5,584) 98%
Sub-total 7,705,251 5,360,810 7,491,555 (213,696) 97%

Page 41



GRAMPIAN POLICE
Budget Monitoring Report - Expenditure up to 31 January 2011

Appendix A

Grampian Police S Yy Esti d Variance Out-turn as a
Out-turn {Under)/ % of Budget
Overspend
Approved Expenditure to As At As At
Budget 31-Jan-11 31-dan-11 31-Jan-11
£ £ £ £
Payments to Agencies and Other Bodies
Council Support Services 286,500 140,756 286,500 0 100%
Other Agencies 902,505 313,270 914,248 11,743 101%
Sub-total 1,189,005 454,026 1,200,748 11,743 101%
Financing Costs

Capital Financed from Current Revenue 0 0 0 0 0%

Supported Loan Charges 1,410,266 847,062 1,410,266 0 0%

Prudential Borrowing 0 0 0 0 0%
Sub-total 1,410,266 847,062 1,410,266 0 100%

Contingency Costs 0 0 0 0 0%
Total Operating Costs 16,472,730 11,563,487 16,251,712 {221,018) 99%

Gross Expenditure 121,275,370 95,035,502 119,826,620 (1,448,750) 99%

INCOME

Recharges for Services (1,155,309) (861,479) {1,119,416) 35,893 97%
Secondee Recoveries (1,546,752) (1,253,424) (1.569,506) (22,754) 101%
Sales, Fees and Lost Property (393,107) (412,542) (452,733) (59,626) 115%
Sponsorship (18.,000) (21,018) (22,000) (4.000) 122%
Rents (813,275) (858,721) (864,844) (51,569) 106%

Partnership Income (1,050,088) (698,223) (991,323) 58,765 94%
Non SG Funding (564,055) (716,557) (722,283) (158,228) 128%
Other Income (72,000) (51,283) (81.,080) (9,080) 113%
Total Income  (5,612,586) (4,873,247) {5,823,185) (210,599) 104%

Total Net Expenditure 115,662,784 90,162,255 114,003,435 (1,659,349) 99%

FINANCED BY -
Grant Funding
SG Police Grant (48,042,000)  (39.034,130) {48,042,000) 0 100%
LA Requisitions {45,841,000)  (38,200,800) {45,841,000) 0 100%
SG Loan Charge Support (719,236) (584,380) (719,236) 0 100%
LA Loan Charge Support (691,030) (575,760) (691,030) 0 100%
SG Specific Grant (100% Funded) (20,314,382)  (13,034,920) (20.360,046) (45,664) 100%
SG Specific Grant (Part Funded) {55,136) (57.145) (57,145) (2.009) 104%
Other Grant 0 0 0 0 0%
(115,662,784)  (91,487,145) (115,710,457) (47,673) 100%
Total (Under)/Overspend Against Grant Funding 0 (1,324,890) (1,707,022) (1,707,022)

Page 42



Appendix A

GRAMPIAN POLICE
Budget Monitoring Report - Expenditure up to 31 January 2011

G jan Police S y Esti) d Variance  Out-turn as a
Out-turn (Under)/ % of Budget
Overspend
Approved  Expenditure to As At As At
Budget 31-Jan-11 31-Jan-11 31-Jan-11
£ £ £ £

CRTP - Competency Related Threshold Payment

SPP - Special Priority Payment

TRA - Transitional Rent Allowance

8G - Scottish Government

LA - Local Authority

SCDEA - Scottish Crime and Drug Enforcement Agency

Other Staff Costs include the following items:
Interview Expenses

Recruitment Costs

Transfer Allowances and Relocation Expenses
Staff Advertising

Long Service Awards

Operational Equipment and Materials includes the following items:
Ammunition and Firearms

Animals (Food and Equipment)

Equipment Purchase

Equipment Repairs and Maintenance

Furniture Purchase

Intoximeters

Materials General

Medical Supplies (including First Aid)

Operational Supplies and Services includes the following items:
Airwave Maintenance
Body Removal

Car Care Kits

Central Archive Facilities
Consultancy Fees
Interpreters

Mortuary Charges

Police Surgeon Fees
Prisoner Maintenance
Service General

Other Administrative Costs includes the following items:
Affiliation Fees

Audit Fees

Bank Charges

Confidential Waste Disposal

Data Protection Registration

Hospitality

Legal Expenses

Members Allowance

Subscriptions - General

Other Income includes the following items:
Miscellaneous Interest Received

Page 43



Page 44



Appendix A

GRAMPIAN POLICE _ SR Y| = | I C= — f s
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE MONITORING STATEMENT - to 31st January 2011 | B i
. | | L —_
Revised Projected Variance|
Finance Total project| Prior years) Budget Outturn| (Over)/Under]
[ Line Project Description Divisions / Dept. Project No cost| spend <a>| <b>| Actual Spend Spend| Estimated Budget Ci
= o o = = 2010-11  2010-11 Jan-11 <e=a-b>| 2011-12| 2012-13| 2013-14 -
£000s| £000s £000s £000s| £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
A _|Recurring Items = o ; 4 Al i i == s =
1 | Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) / Minor Building Work Facilities GC90971 n/a n/a 205 | 205 53 0 100 100 100 |Total additional budget £105k allocated for building works at various stations.
2 |Asset Refreshment for Computers, Printers & Servers 1 =3
(i) |-SPSA SPSA GC90870 n/a| n/a. 230 230 95 0 245 250 | 250 |Expendi funded by Scottish Police Services Authority Specific Grant.
(ii) |- Force Funded =0 1N CMBA GC90871 n/a wal 27 27 8 0 20 _ 20| 20 |Additional budget £12k for purchase of forensic computing nent approved by Force Executives.
3 |Annual Vehicle Repla . » _ =it £ 5 - . o =] =0
@) |-spsA Trani SPSA GC90870 wa  wnal 10| 10| 10 0 [Replacement of a vehicle funded by Scottish Police Services Authority Specific Grant. 50 5
_(ii) |- Force Funded . - | Transport GC95501 ~ nfa| na| 764 764 118 0| 900| 900 | 900 [Additional budget £54k for purchase of new vehicles approved by Force Executives.
B | sisisting Commi ) 3 DA T g o | T i il | o [ [y ) f i S e
4 [Single Point of Contact (SPoC) Software . | CMBA | GC98199 | o34 34| 34 18 0 IT software purchased by SPSA and system i awaiting for consultancy fee.
5 |ON-GOING COMMITMENTS 0 1,270 1,270 302 9 1,265 1,270 1,270
| C |Discrete Items of Expenditure = o i1, S| S 4 e . e [ i} » e b
| 6 |Shared Services Project at Whinhill (New B Facilities GC9601 | 512 [ 512 | 512 8 0 Project compiete and awaiting invoice. - N -
7 _|Moray Child Protection Unit (New Build) e Facilities - GCY8190 | 590 0 247 247 131 0]  343| Project underway and will be completed in May / Jun 2011. _
8 [Custody Refurbishment - Model 2 ~ Facilities GC98202 a8 0 218 | 218 0 0l o _ |New project recently approved by Force Executive in Dec 2010.
9 |Tomy Police Station Refurbishment | Facilities | GC90111 | 55| 0 55 55 0 0 = | |New project recently approved by Force Executive in Dec 2010. e o M
| 10 | Police Headquarters - Air Conditioning Works | Facilities GC97401 DR | [ R O CRTEN0); 0 0 Of o Budget removed due to the electricity supply not capable to cope with additional air-conditioners.
11 |Call Recording LT~ _ | or&s GC98188 64| 0 64 64 0 (o) || [ | Installation complete and awaiting SPSA invoice. o
12 |Digital Recording | CMBA GC98187 e =150 0] 150 150 0 0 I | Purchase of new equip approved by P Board in May 2010. K
13 |ANPR Equipment CMBA GC90881 10 0 10 10 2 o IS | S e Equi amrived in Oct 2010 and awaiting invoice. S A 1
| 14 |ANPR E L OP &S GC98203 | 0 22, O 22 22 [ [ B
| 15 _|NESCAMP E . _ NESCAMP GC92821 | 20| 0 20 20 20 0] 2 Repl of existing equipment, cost will be fully funded by NESCAMP partnership. |
16 |Community Security Policy (CSP) Work Prof Standard GC98121 - 36| 0 36 36 19 0 i T Work in progress. .
17 |Crimefile Development ICT GC94451 21 0 21 21 0 0 Budget required to upgrade Crimefile as part of the system compliance. .
18 |National Crimefile Development _IcT - GC90811 35 0 35 35 0 0 - - Upgrade on national crimefile system, cost will be fully funded by Scottish Government. 4
19 |Body Armours — - - OP &S GC90490 40 0 40 40 0 o[ I | ] Budget approved by Force Executives for purchase of new body armowrs. =
_20 |Firearms Equipment OP &S GC92902 57 0 STA | B 5 0 0 | |Budget approved by Force Executives for purchase of new firearms equipment.
_21_|Police Vans - CCTV and Specialist Equipment | OP &S GC90911 25 0 25 25 0 (O || T [  |Budget recently approved by Force Executives in Dec 2010. - —
22 |CCTV Equipment for Various Police Stations == __Business Areas GC95601 | 142 0 142 142 0 ol | | |Budgetrecently approved by Force Executives in Dec2010. = ol
_ 23 |IT Shutdown System ICT | GC92905 23 0 23 23 0 ® | S | |New project recently approved by Force Executives in Dec 2010. = -0 =, .|
24 |Force Estate Security sy o | Facilities GCI1161 0 [ 0 _ 0] 0 0] [EE— __|Project has been pended by Programumne Board in June 2010.
_25 |Extension to Laboratory at Nelson Strect - Phase 2 | Facilities Fa 0 0 0 0 0 o | | |Projecttobe costed if the facility remains in Aberdeen. L
26 |New Peterhead Police Station o Facilities I 0] 0] ol o0 0 0 L - Project has been dated by the Force and a supporting t case will be developed.
27 |Unallocated Capital Funds Programme Board n/a n/a 79 0 0 79| 2,600 6,000 3,500 |Funding available for allocation to capital projects. = ;. L il
28 |DISCRETE EXPENDITURE 0 1,756 1,677 180 79 2,943 6,000 3,500
29 |TOTAL EXPENDITURE 3,026 2,947 482 79 4,208 7,270 4,770
_|Financed by: b . . = = = = = e
D |Governmental Bodies and Local Authorities S | [ B i o Wl s o () wOTH e ol - i ==t =" B T . —————
30 |Local Authorities - Annual Capital Grant
(i) [Balance carry forward at the beginning of the year 929 929 347 1,234 0 0 |Capital Grant carry forward at the beginning of the year.
(1i) |Annual Capital Grant for the year 2,928 2,928 0 2,404 2,450 2,500 {Annual Capital Grant for the year.
{ifi) |Balance carry forward at the end of the year (1,134) (1,234)] 0 0 0 0 |Capital Grant carry forward at the end of the year.
Annual Capital Grant utilised during the year 2,723 2,623 347 3,638 2,450 2,500 |Capital Garnt utilised during the year.

Page 45



Page 46

i 19 1381 | 15T L6 9vSh 195% i [T W ] premiof Aueo aoueeq Bursoldf
=g e ar zrn LTy |50 0 [{F2) 0 | T T sdpoay payddy
s 00T |oor  |oor 101 ozt 0z1 | =y Juswdiubs 7 ymeid ‘saforgoa 9o10d Jo afes

e Sh 00E | 00E |09 | 0 B SLS = ) ) sasnoy eojodgoares |

e O - = = 51d1e00y MoN| 1
) i 8ET [ 1STS | 9vsT — |z uge  |ust | S i k — eowepg fmwdo|
SSLAIEDHA TV.LIAVD 40 NOLLYITIDONOD T

‘‘‘‘‘ e oLy | 0Lzl | S0z 8% LP6T 920 ONIGNNA Tv1O01| 8¢

= ~ oot 00€ 00€ 0 0 0 ADAD, BWpUN{ OMUdAdY woxy papun;j axipusdxg [ended| L¢
h T A = EEE = . T T T T T T T onusass wouf papunf somypuada popdnp| S |

T sypessy uauno-uoN o [esodsip wioyy pajerousd sidiooar ende)| 0721 | 0Ly | ST 0 4 0 = i R R §1085Y JUSLMO-UON 30 a[es oy sidie00y [ended| 9¢

EE| [ I il T spsso juaaano-uop Jo apps ayp wouf ssdiaoay opdn)| L

~ T sorompa o aseroind atp 1oy sa1poq [eIUAUIIIAACS-UOU w0y wonngmuo)| 0 | 0 0o o1 o o e P ) s)dio00y [ende) 10WO| S€

L= - ) P e e e [P=a T === [ lee==p= E W = N et hu.-i‘a‘hgwsﬂkwaturnsz q
| 0 0 0 0z [ 07 ol e Srer—v=sig| pescosacims E=ue|F= = sidtoooy ende) - INVOSHN| v |
“3]oTgeA M3U € JO oserInd o1 Joj uopnqruo)| o To o 0 T O e | wE = ~- T sjueBy 19710 - UAWWIOAOD) YSIN0OS | €5

(SIFDS1) $901A198 10JU] A0[SN{ [BUITLL) YSINIOOS PajeiFol] - JUSWIIDAOD) YSTHI00§ wox Supund| o o |o 0 ¢ 13 = f | SIIOS] - WOWwdA0D YsIooS| g

[ - Kuopny saolamg oonog Ushioos wog Faipuni| 05 | 05T | S¥T | oI ovc | ove o =t = — 71 I KILIOYIMY S301AIAG 2010 YSTHOOS - JUSWILIOACD) YSIIOOS| [€
S A 50005 [S0003  [S0003  [S0003 0007 50005 [50003 __[5000% 50003 - = =
PI-€10Z |€1-T10T |TI-1107 |<d-¥=0> [1-unp L-0107 [L1-010C e | S LAy |
SipBWwWo) 1o3png pajemnsy jpuadg puads pnpy  [<q> <B> puods 1500 oN 13foxg “da( 7 SUoISIAIQ uondiisa( 303fo1g dury

ppN/(1AQ) [wmpno pSpng  [sxeakaorrg hoaford fejo], duBuly
poueLEA [pajdafory [posiAay

e FERF re il 3 N | ARl i e 23 = SErL | SO (R s e e W B 1
S PR VN A i S A . i | trozAmnuerisic o) - INAWALY.LS DNIIOLINOW ZUNLIANAIXE TV.LIAVD
=i il o] = 1 | HOI'TOd NVIAAVID

v xipuaddy



Agenda Iltem 10

3

GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD

COMMITTEE: GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD
DATE: 4™ MARCH 2011
TITLE OF REPORT: BEST VALUE 2 AUDIT AND INSPECTION REPORT

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

The purpose of this report is to invite Members of Grampian Joint Police
Board to consider the terms of the Report prepared by Audit Scotland and Her
Majesty’s Inspector of Constabulary for Scotland (HMICS) following a joint
audit and inspection of the Board and Grampian Police, which measured
compliance with the requirements of Best value. The Board is thereafter
invited to agree and action the Improvement Plan to implement the
recommendations contained within the joint Audit Scotland HMICS report.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)
It is recommended that the Board

2.1 considers the contents of the joint Audit Scotland and HMICS report
attached at Appendix 1,

2.2 agrees the draft Improvement Plan attached at Appendix 2, and

2.3 agrees to remit monitoring of the joint Improvement Plan to the
Stewardship Sub-Committee and instructs officers to submit regular
update reports to that Sub-Committee, with a final Report to be
submitted to the Board once all of the improvement actions are
implemented.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The proposed Improvement Plan does not contain any actions which have not
already been identified by the Board and Force for development. As such,
there are unlikely to be any unexpected financial implications flowing from the
Improvement Plan.

In terms of the recommendations around medium to longer term financial
planning, then the Improvement Plan should improve the Board’s ability to
undertake this form of planning and monitoring, thereby having a positive
impact on future years.

Page 47



SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT

The findings of the Accounts Commission commend the Board for its
community engagement and leadership. Implementation of the Action Plan
should further strengthen the Board’s community participation.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

None

REPORT

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Members will be aware that the Local Government in Scotland Act
2003 introduced new statutory duties relating to Best Value and
Community Planning. Its provisions apply to police authorities and
require specifically that:

"1 Police authorities secure best value (defined as achieving
continuous improvement in the performance of functions)

1 Police authorities and chief constables participate in the community
planning process

Grampian Joint Police Board and Grampian Police were subject to a
Best Value 2 Audit and Inspection during June and July 2010. The key
objectives of the joint audit and inspection were to:

1 Assess the extent to which Grampian Joint Police Board and
Grampian Police are meeting their duties under the Local
Government in Scotland Act 2003 and complying with Scottish
Government guidance.

1 Agree planned improvements with the Local Authorities, Force and
the Board, to be reviewed by the external auditor and HMICS on an
ongoing basis.

As a consequence of the audit and inspection, a report has been
produced jointly by the Controller of Audit (Audit Scotland) and HMICS.
Key areas were identified where the Force and the Board need to
improve. These key areas are contained within the Improvement Plan
attached.

As stated above, the audit and inspection carried out by Audit Scotland
and HMICS sought to identify the extent to which the Board and
Grampian Police are meeting their duties under the Local Government
in Scotland Act 2003 and complying with Scottish Government
guidance. This was assessed against seven key areas, namely:

Vision and Strategic Direction

Partnership Working and Community Leadership
Community Engagement

Governance and Accountability

2
Page 48

(I B 0



6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

1 Performance Management and Improvement
1 Use of Resources
1 Equalities and Sustainability

Members will recall that the audit and inspection process involved the
submission of evidence by both the Force and the Board, including
Board reports and minutes. In addition, Members and community
planning partners were invited to complete a questionnaire and both
the Force and the Board submitted written statements outlining
performance against the key audit criteria. This was followed up by a
4-week site visit, during which time Audit Scotland and HMICS
interviewed Members, officers from the Board and Force, and other
interested parties. Audit Scotland and HMICS also observed Board
and sub-committee meetings.

Following completion of this site visit, a draft Report was prepared by
Audit Scotland and HMICS. The Force and the Clerk’s office were
given the opportunity to comment on the factual accuracy of the draft
Report. Thereafter a control version of the Report was prepared and
submitted to the Accounts Commission for consideration.

The Accounts Commission considered the control version of the Report
at its meeting on 20" January 2011. During this meeting,
Commissioners had the opportunity to seek further information and
clarification from Audit Scotland and HMICS, after which the Accounts
Commission determined its findings.

The Accounts Commission findings are set out at page 2 of the Report
and summarised as follows —

The Commission welcomed evidence of the elements of best value
demonstrated by the Board. In particular, the Commission welcomed
the report’s conclusions that—

(i) The Board has a good understanding of its role and has
established an active involvement and positive partnership with
the force in developing a shared vision and a clear set of
priorities.

(i)  The Board’s oversight ensures that the operations of the force
are clearly aligned with the agreed priorities.

(i) Board members actively question and challenge the force on
both strategic and operational matters in a constructive way that
focuses on supporting improvement.

(iv)  The Board plays an effective community leadership role on local
policing issues, and clearly demonstrates that it works to meet
the needs of communities at both a strategic and local level.

The Commission welcomed the Board’s awareness of its own
improvement needs and commitment to addressing those needs and
recommended that it considers the following areas in particular—

3
Page 49



6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

(i) Further development of its role in longer-term strategic financial
planning, and the use of its scrutiny role to ensure the best use
of resources. The Board also needs to develop its leadership
and challenge role to help realise further efficiencies through
various partnership and shared services initiatives.

(i) Development of a more active role in informing and agreeing
continuous improvement priorities and monitoring progress, and
providing more strategic leadership on sustainability and
equalities issues.

(i)  Effective arrangements for an independent custody visiting
scheme must be implemented quickly.

(iv)  Ensuring that its contribution to accountability and governance,
and its effective partnership with the force, is properly reported to
the public.

(v)  In continuing to review its governance arrangements, the Board
should address the fact that it is not good scrutiny practice for
the convener to chair its two main subcommittees.

The Board is required to consider the terms of the Report and the
Accounts Commission findings within three months of receipt and there
is a requirement to publicise this meeting within a local newspaper. As
such, a public notice was published within the Press and Journal on
Thursday 24™ February. The Board is also required to produce a plan
which addresses the improvement agenda set out in the Report.

A draft joint Improvement Plan has been prepared by the Force and the
Depute Clerk for consideration, comment and approval by the Board. It
sets out each of the improvement actions, assigns ownership and
suggests how the required improvements will be achieved. It also
details and impacts and consequences e.g. resource implications.

It is important to note that these improvements form part of a wider
action/development plan which is currently being implemented.
Members will recall that significant work has been undertaken over the
last couple of years to review and modernise the work of the Board.
This includes a wholesale review of Standing Orders, reworking of sub-
committee remits and role descriptions for Board Members. The
improvement actions identified by Audit Scotland and HMICS are
encompassed within this wider development action plan and as such,
the Report is a welcome endorsement of the Board’s direction of travel
in terms of its continuous improvement agenda.

It is recommended that responsibility for ensuring the delivery of the
joint Improvement Plan be remitted to the Stewardship Sub-Committee
as that sub-committee’s remit includes the implementation of best
value. It is intended that officers from the Force and Clerk’s office will
submit regular reports to the Stewardship Sub-Committee, updating
Members as to progress against the agreed action points. It is also

4
Page 50



proposed that a further report be submitted to the Board once the
Improvement Plan actions have been implemented.

6.13 Members will note that some of the improvement recommendations
apply to the Force only. These recommendations will be incorporated
into the Force business plans and progress will be reported quarterly
as part of the normal governance arrangements, with exception
reporting taking place on a monthly basis.

7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

Karen M Donnelly, Depute Clerk to the Board
KDonnelly@aberdeencity.gov.uk
Telephone: 01224 522416

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS

None
Karen M Donnelly Colin McKerracher
Depute Clerk Chief Constable
23" February 2011 23" February 2011

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 52



Grampian Police
and Grampian
Joint Police Board _

Best Value Audit and Inspection

:ﬁ d\UDIT SCOTLAND

HMICS St e tconame

Prepared for the Accounts Commission and Scottish ministers
February 2011

Page 53



-
7
.

i

e
sy




Grarmpian Police and Grampian Joint Police Board 1

Contents

Commission findings

Part 2. Grampian Police

Page 2 performance assessment
Page 22
HM Inspector of Constabulary for
Scotland findings Delivering policing plan outcomes
Page 3 Page 23
Introduction Violence
Page 4 Page 24
Summary Antisocial behaviour

Page 7

Overall conclusions
Page 8

Part 1. Corparate assessment
Page 9

Vision and strategic direction
Page 10

National security
Page 25

Puhlic protection
Controlled drugs

Road casualty reduction
Page 26

Governance and accountability
Page 11

Community engagement
Page 14

Partnership working
Page 15

Performance management and
improvement
Page 16

Force reputation, standards and
community focus
Page 27

Part 3. Improvement
recommendations
Page 29

The improvement programme

Improvement agenda
Page 30

Use of resources
Page 17

Equalities
Page 19

Sustainability
Page 20

Appendix 1. Expectations of police
authorities
Page 31

Page 55



Commission
findings

-1. This is the third audit and
inspection report on the performance
by a police authority and force of
their statutory duties on Best Value
and Community Panning. It has been
produced jointly by the Controller of
Avudit and Her Majesty's Inspector
of Constabulary for Scotland. The
Accounts Commission accepts
the report from the Controller of
Audit on the Grampian Joint Police
Board {'the board’). In accordance
with the Commission’s statutory
responsibilities, these findings
relate only to the: Best Value audit
of the board.

2. The Commission welcormes
‘evidence of the elements of best
value that are demonstrated by

the. board. In particular, the
-Cammission welcomes the report’s
conciusions that:

* the board has a good
understanding of its role and has
established an active invalvement
and positive partnership with the
force in developing a shared vision
and a clear set of priorities

3. We welcome the hoard's
awareness of its own improvement .
needs and commitment to addressing
these. As the board continues to
seek Turther development and '
improvernant, we recommenc

that it considers the following argas.

In particular:

= further development of its role
in longer-term strategic financial
pianning, and the use of its
serutiny role to ensure the best
use of resources. The board also
needs to develop its leadership
and chalienge role to help realise
further efficiencies through
various partnership and shared
services initiatives

¢ development of a more active
role inn informing and agreeing
continuous improvement priorities
and monitoring progress, and
providing more strategic
leadership on sustainability and
equalities issues

+ _ effective arrangements for
an independent custody visiting
scheme must be implemented

-~ the'board’s gversight ensures
that the operations of the force
are clearly aligned with the
agreed priorities

+ poard members actively guestion
and challenge the force on both
strategic and operational matters
in a constructive way that focuses
on supporting improvernent

* the board plays an effective
community leadership role on
local policing issues, and clearly
demonsirates that it works to
meet the needs of communities
at both & strategic and local level.

quickly

« ensuring that its contribution to
accountability and governance,
and its effective parinership with
the force, is properly reported to
the public

* in continuing to review its
governance arrangements, the
board should address the fact that
it is not good scrutiny practice for
the convener to chair its two main
subcommittees. ’

Page 56

4. The Commission gratefully
. acknowledges the co-operation and

assistance provided to the joint audit
and inspection team by the elected
members of Grarpian Joint Police
Board, the chief constable and officers
of Grarnpian Police, and other officials
and community planning partners,

8. The board should produce a plan
that addresses the improvement
agenda set out in the joint audit and
inspection report. We encourage the
board to-engage with these findings
as & tool for stimulating further
improvement in its operation.

‘6. The Commission welcomes

the continued joint approach with
HMICS cn these police audit and
inspection reports, and the significant
contribution that this is having tc
stimulating more effective and
streamlined sorutiny and to driving
commitment to securing best value.



HM Inspector of
Constabulary for
Scotland findings

1. As Her Majesty’s Inspector of
Constabutary for Scotland, | hold a
statutory responsibility o inspect
both Grarmpian Police and Joint Police
Board. Complementary to the findings
of the Accounts Cormmission on the
Best Vaiue and Community Planning
performance of the Grampiar: Joint
Paolice Board, 1 offer the following
comments on the performance of
Grampian Paolice.

2. My overall assessment of
Grampian Police is that it is
performing well and that the force
demanstrates many of the elemenis:
of best value. Grampian Police
benefits from ah effective and
apprapriately challenging working
refationship with Grampian Joint
Pelice Board and they have worked
in tandem to determine a strategic
direction which has community
policing as its cornerstone. The

force executive provides strong
leadership and have created a culturs

3. There is scope for the force to
improve in certain areas. In particular;

+ the force should make efforis
to better understand the causal
factors which are reflected in the
rise in racially motivated crime and
complaints against the police

* there is scope for the force to
improve performance reporting by
incorporating more comparative
information and to report
performance in a balanced way

¢ the force should have a better
understanding of the costs of

specific policing activities 1 inform

difficult decisions about where
resources will need to be directed

in future 1o sustain performance in

priority areas.

4. I lock forward to receiving a
plan from Grampian Folice which
addresses the improvement agenda

- __of performance. improvement within...._setout.in this jointaudit and-— - - -

the organisation. Crime rates are
falling within the Grampian Police
area and levels of public satisfaction
are high and imgroving. During 2010,
the force introduced a new policing
model which has delivered increased
numbers of officers working and
patrolling within logal communities.

inspection report.

5. | also wish to acknowietige my
gratitude for the co-operation and
assistance afforded to the joint audit
and inspection team by the elected
members of Grampian Joint Police

Board, the chief constable and officers

of Grampian Police and other officials
and cemmunity planning partners,

Page 57

6. The joint audit and inspection
approach adopted in the preparation of
this report continues to develop and is
contributing towards a more effective
scrutiny regime that demonstrates our
commitment to achieving best value
in Scottish Policing.




Introduction

Page 58



This joint repoart is made by the
Controller of Audit to the Accounts
Commission under section 102(1) of
the Local Goverrment (Scotland) Act
1973 and by Her Majesty’s Inspector
of Constabulary (HMIC) under section
33 of the Police {Scotland) Act 1867.

The Local Government in Scotland Act
2003 intreduced new statutory duties
relating to Best Value and Community
Planning. Its provisions apply to local
authorities, including police authorities,
and require specifically that:

* councils and police authorities
secure Best Value (defined as
achieving continuous improvement
in the performance of functions)

s police authorities and chief
constables participate in the
community planning process.

The Act also amended the audit
arrangements set out in the Local
Governrment (Scotland) Act 1973 to
cover Best Value and gave powers
to the Accounts Commission

to examine Best Value in police
authorities. HMICS has a statutory
duty under section 33 of the Police
(Scotland) Act 1967 to inspect police
forces and common police services,
and 1o report to ministers on their
state and efficiency. The 2003 Act
extends this to include provision for
HMICS to inquire into and report

to Scottish ministers on whether

a local authority is carrying out its
functions both as a police authority
and in relation to a number of matters
including Best Value.

The 2003 Act is supported by more
detailed statutory guidance on Best
Value and Community Planning,

and a series of advisory notes on
specific topics such as elected
member leadership. This guidance
is designed to be descriptive rather
than prescriptive, defining the goals
that organisations should aim for but

alfowing them locai discretion on the
metheds and routes they use. The
Scottish Government has issued
further guidance for police authorities
and forces. This guidance includes
Justice Department Circular 11/2003
Best Value Guidance and Guidance
for Members of Police Authorities and
Joint Boards, Juns 2007.

The scope of Best Value and
Community Planning is broad and the
guidance and statute indicate that a
successful police authority wilk;

* work in tandern with the chief
constable to develop a clear set
of priorities that respond te the
needs of the community in both
the shert and longer term

* be organised o support the
delivery of these priorities

¢ meet, and clearly demonsirate
that it is meeting, the community’s
needs

* operate in g way that drives
continuous improvement in afl its
activities.

Similarly, & successful police force
will;

* work with its partners and the
police authority/police authorities
to develop a clear set of priorities
that respond to the needs of the
community in both the short and
longer terrn

* be organised to deliver these
priorities

* meet, and clearly demonstrate
that it is meeting, the community's
needs

* operate in a way that drives

continuous improvement in all
its activities,

Page 59

Introduction 5

The key objectives of this joint audit
and inspection were to;

* assess the extent to which the
Grampian Joint Police Board
and Grampian Police are
meeting their duties under the
Local Government in Scotland Act
2003 and complying with Scottish
Government guidance

» agree planned improvemeants
with the local authorities, force
and the board, to be reviewed by
external auditors and HMICS on
an ongoeing basis.

As Best Value and Community
Planring encompass a wide variety of
activities, it is not realistic to audit or
inspect everything in depth. For this
reason we plan our detailed work in
two ways:

* Where possible we draw on
the findings of other scrutiny
processes, such as the work
carried out by other inspectorates.

* Wea select certain aspects of the
force and board's performance for
detailed investigation, We use a
wide range of sources, including
the force and board's own
assessment of their performance,
reports issued following external
audit and inspections and ths
Scotiish Policing Performance
Framework (SPPF) 10 assess
risks and scope our work to
infarm this selection.

Our joint report reflects this
proportionate approach, with detailed
commentary in some areas and
fimited coverage in others. It also
presents the picture we found at the
time our main audit and inspection
wark wes conducted, in June and July
2010. The report includes a corporate
assessment of the joint board and
the force, while the performance
assessment covers only the force.



We gratefully acknowledge the
co-operation and assistance pravided
1o the team by Councillor Martin
Greig, Convenor of Grampian Joint
Police Board; Chief Constable Colin
McKerracher, Grampian Police; Jane
MacEachran, Clerk to the Board: and
all other elected members and staff
involved. We are also grateful to the
representatives of the three councils
and the force's community partners
who agreed to participate in the audit
and inspection process.

The tripartite arrangements and
police authorities’ leadership role
The force is governad through a
tripartite arrangement between the
chief constable, the joint police board
{'the board’), and Scottish ministers.
As the force covers more than one
local autharity ares, a joint police
board comprising members from the
three constituent authorities acts as
the police authority. Scottish ministers
retain overall responsibility for pelicing
policy at national level, Grampian Joint
Police Board is responsible for setting
the police budget, holding the chief
constable to account and ensuring
that best value is achieved. The

chief constable is responsible for the
operational aspects of policing within
the force ares.

The effect of these arrangements is
that the board and the chief constable,
although they have different roles,
must work in tandem to achisve best
value. In this report, we only make
judgements on the board and force,
but all parties to the arrangement,
including the Scottish ministers,

have responsibility for the overall
performance of the police service.

Constituent authorities are responsible
for appointing the members of a joint
bosrd and for aliocating funding. The
board is a separate legal entity and
councils have no separate residual
responsibilities beyond appointing
members and funding. However, in
practice, the constituent councils,
primarily Aberdeen City Council,
provide administration support,
clerking services, and training and
development for board members.

The existing guidance for policing
{Circular 11/2003 and Guidance

for Members of Police Autharities
and Joint Police Boards, June 2007}
sets out expectations of the board.
This can be found at Appendix 1 of
this report.

Page 60



Summary

=

e

e
.

s

o




Overall conclusions

1. Grampian Police and the Grampian
Joint Police Board have many of the
key elerments of best value in place.
The force and the board have an
effective working relationship and
have a shared vision for policing in
Grampian, based on agreed priorities.
The vision and priorities are clearly
articulated in the force’s strategies
and plans. The systems and
processes which support the

delivery of best vaiue are sound
overall, though there are some areas
requiring improvernent.

2. The joint police board demonstrates
many of the characteristics of hest
value and continues to develop its
approach to governance and scrutiny.
Board members actively scrutinise
the performance of the force, have

a good understanding of their local
communities and work in partnership
with the chief constable o help shape
the policing pricrities for the area.

3. There are some areas where
improvement is required. The board
must ensure it implements an
Independent Custody Visiting Schermne
(ICVS} as a matter of priority. [t is
currently the only board in the UK

not to have an operational scheme in
place. It also needs to become more
proactive in working with the foree to
develop a long-term financial strategy.

4. There is a culture of continuous
improvement within the force and
the force executive provides strong
leadership, with a clear vision for

the future based around community
policing. The force has a welldefined
structure and sound governance
arrangements. Force priorities are
clearly linked to force operational
strategy and are reviewed, refreshed
and published annuaily within its
strategic plan Platform for Success.
The force's performance management
arrangements are sound, but can be
improved by using more comparative
information to report performance
more effectively and in a more
balanced way.

5. Service performancs is good, the
level of recorded crime is reducing
overall and in 2009/10 was at its
lowest level for seven years for
crimes of violence, indecency,
dishonesty, and reckless behaviour.
Satisfaction rates with the force are
high and improving. The force and its
partners are making good progress on
most of the shared policing priorities
captured in the Single Outcome
Agreements (SOAs) covering public
sector organisations in the council
areas of Aberdeen, Aberdeenshire
and Moray. Drug enforcement
performance declined betwaen
2008/09 and 2009/10 and there

have been increases in racially
motivated crime and complaints
against the police.

6. The force has a track record of
strong financial managemeant and

hes sound financial controls in place
and has reported efficiency savings

in excess of targets. Like all public
sector organisations, the force is now
facing severe financial pressures and
has taken a number of short-term
measures to deliver some savings.
The force recognises that it needs

a better understanding of what
specific aciivities cost in order to
inform difficult decisions about where
resources will need (o be directed

in order to sustain performance in
priority areas. The force is currently
developing a long-term strategy,
setting out how it intends to deal with
these pressures.

7. In April 2010, the force introduced
a new policing model, based on
feedback from the public. "Local
Policing — Closer to You’ saw the
reorganisation of traditional response
and community policing resources
into policing teams based in local
communities across the force

o increase visihility and support
community engagement, Aberdeen
Division has carried out an interim
‘Q0-day review’ of the new model and
has identified that some operational
refinements are needed o improve its
sffectiveness. It plans to carry out a
further review in April 2011 to assess
the impact of the new arrangements.

Page 62



Part 1. Corporate
assessment

Page 63



10

Vision and strategic direction

Gramplan Jomt Police Board
The board is acttvely mvo[ved in
helping to shape the strategic

- vision and priorities for pollce
serwces i Gramplan

8. Board members are actively
invalved in developing the forca's
strateqic priorities. The board is
involved at various stages to help
shape the policing priorities, which are
set out in the force's strategic plan
Platform for Success.

9. At a local level, board members
help to shape policing priorities during
the year through their attendance at
area committees and through informal
contact with divisional commanders
and their staff. At a comporate lavel,
they attend the force’s annual
conference and the senior managers’
conference and take part in the annual
planning day, together with key
strategic partners and senior police
officers, to determine force priorities
for the year ahead. Board members
have an active role in serutinising

the force's use of resources and are
involved in the community safety
partherships. These partnerships

help to develop the policing priorities
centained within the SOAs which
identify the prigrities for public sector
agencies in Aberdeen, Aberdeenshire
and Moray.

10. The board also helps set the
strategic direction of the force
through its annual appraisal of the
chief constable’s performance. As
part of his Performance Development
Review (PDR}, the chief constable
agrees & series of objectives with the
convenor and the two vice-convenors,
which are subject to the endorsement
of the board. These objectives help
set the wider strategic agenda for the
force as a whole.

Grampian Police

- The forge has a clear vision

I and strategic direction, which
ig-informed by community.

§ consu!tatlon and dialogue w;th

. partner agencies. The force’'s .
: gic:plan Platform for Success
" has evolved over the past five

: years and is refreshed on an

. annual basis o update the force's

| priorities, values-and principles.

. The force has a clearly defined *
. planning ¢ycle and force

* prierities contain & mix of national
- policing priorities, focal fssues and
- business support objectives. Force
. priorities link directly to the force
control strategy

11. At a strategic level, the force

is led by a force exacutive which
demonstrates strong and effective
leadership. The force execitive drives
force operational activity and strategic
delivery using rabust management
arrangements.

12. The force’s strategic plan Platform
for Success clearly articulates the
force’s vision and strategic direction and
is reviewed, refreshed and published
on an annual basis. The annua) review
is informed by widespread consultation
with local communities and partner
agencies and consideration of
emerging national and local issues.

13. The force has identified nine
strategic priorities for 2010/11

in partnership with the board

(Exhibit 1). These cover both outward-
facing operational priorities and
internal business support priorities. All
of the operational priorities are clearly
articulated within the force control
strategy and this helps to ensure that
they are communicated clearly and
consistently to staff.

T4. Priorities are communicated
affectively throughout the force

and are evident in the divisional and
departmentai business area plans.
This strengthens the understanding of
strategic priorities at a focal level and

Page 64

helps to ensure that the force directs
operational activity and resources
towards priority areas. We found that
knowledge and awareness of force
priorities among staff was good. The
priorities are also clearly highlighted
on the force's website and are easily
accessible to members of the public.

15. The force is committed to
community policing and community
engagement. During 2010, the
force adopted a new policing model
called 'Local Policing — Closer to You'
(Exhibit 2, page 12).

16. The model combines 24/7
response and community officers
into a joint team hased in the local
community. This aims to provide
enhanced levels of visible patrol
and problem solving at a beat
level, while maintaining the
appropriate coverage for response
work. The new arrangsments
also seek to improve the force's
engagement and cormmunication
with local communities.

17. The project plan supporting the
delivery of ‘Local Policing — Closer

to You' acknowledged the need

to devise qualitative performance
measures to help assess the
effectiveness of the new policing
madel. The force has access to some
gualitative data from focus groups,
which supported the devalopment of
the community engagement strategy,
but it does not have a bassline against
which it can measure the impact of
the new arrangements.

18. During the surnmer of 2010,
Aberdeen Division carried out an
interim ‘90-day review’ of the new
arrangements {0 assess how they
were bedding in. The review found
that locel policing teams were carrying
out more proactive policing activity
within communities, which had, in
turn, led to increased demand on
resources. The force plans to further
review and refine specific operational
practices 1o balance the demands

on focal policing teams. The review
glso identified the need to develop



Part 1. Corporate assessment 11

a property strategy to support local

policing teams and revise how it Exhibit 1

deploys its resources at an operational Force strategic priorities 2010/11

level. This included the need to

review the allocation of officers across + Antisocial behaviour — We will deal with unacceptable conduct, which
the local tearns, review the shift negatively impacts on the quality of life within the communities we
patterns and improve the supervision sarve, in conjunction with local authority strategies.

arrangements. In April 2011, the +  Community focus — We will engage and work with partners and the
foree will conduct a further, more community to deliver improved policing services based on the principles

comprehensive review of the policing

of a community-focused approach.
meodel to better assess the impact of ty kP

the new arrangements. » Public protection — We will safeguard children, young persons and

vulnerable adults, from risk of physical, emotional and sexual abuse or

Governance and accountability neglect and effectively manage offenders through the development of

internal partnership processes,

Grampian Joint Police Board + Road casualty reduction - We will achieve a steady reduction in the
e T e e numbers of those killad or seriously injured, with the ultimate vision of a
Board members have a good future where no one is killed on the roads in Aberdeen, Aberdeenshire
understanding of their role and the. and Moray and the injury rate is much reduced.
basic governance arrangements are ) . _ _
sound. The board is aware of where * National security — We will counter the threat from terrorism and
further improvements are required domestic extremism.
and has been implementing + Serious organised crime and drugs - We will reduce the harm caused

_changes 1o its governance by serious organised crime, and in particular controlled drugs, within the
arrangements during 2010. communities we serve.

+ Violence — We will target violence and make Grampian a safer place to

" The board does ot currently have 1 il
visit, work and live in.

. an operational ICVS in place.
CoTm + Efficiency and productivity — We will maximise frontline resources

19. The board has 15 members, made through effective and efficient resource and financial management to

up of six councillors from Aberdeen ensure suitably trained staff are in place to deliver our mission.

City Council, six from Aberdeenshire

Council, and three from Moray

Council. It meets six times per year,

at various locations throughout

the region, and the convenor is

a councillor from Aberdeen City

Council. Two main subcommittees e e o g oo

support the board. The Stewardship

+ Force reputation and standards —~We wil maintain professional and
ethical standards of behaviour from all staff in order to improve the delivery
of quality policing services and to enhance public trust and confidence.

Source: Sustaining and Developing our Platform for Success 2010711, Grampian Police, 2010

subcommitee’ considers continuous 20. The board's two main also a risk that the public perception
improvenent initiatives such as audit,  subcommittees on stewardship and of independent scrutiny, which is
thematic inspections and best value, complaints operate effectively by particularly important for the chairing
and a Complaints subcommitee’, scrutinising force performance, but of the Complaints subcommittee, may
which meet four times per year, the convenor of the board currently be undermined. Other pofice boards
There are alse subcommittees for also chairs both subcommittees. typically share these responsibilities
urgent business and personnel, which  This is not good practice, as part among various councillors. This helps
meet as and when required., of the remit of the subcommittees 1o spread the workload, but it also

is t0 scrutinise the performance of helps to demonstrate the presence of

the force and the board. There is independent checks and balances.

1 The Stewardship subcommittes deals with internal and external audit reports {including approval of audit plan), oversees adequacy of the force and board's
financial systems, policies, practices, and compliance with relevant statutes, standards and quidance, best value, risk management and the implementation of
HMICS and Accounts Commission recommendations.

2 The Complaints subcommittee provides oversight of how complaints are handled by the force and considers complaints against chief officers.

Page 65



12

21. Grampian Joint Police Board does
not currently have an operational
ICVS in place. Polics boards have to
organise and oversee the delivery

of independent custody visiting in
consultation with chief officers.

They must therefore ensure that
they have effective procedures

in piace to establish and maintain
ICVS, inctuding the allocation of
apprepriate resources 1o this function.
Independent custody visitors check
on the standards in which people

are held in custody, enhancing the
accountability and transparency of
police ameng the communities they
serve. Misitors play a vital role in
raising standards in custody and the
fair freatment of detainees.

22. The absence of an ICVS
represents a significant risk to the
poard and force, In the event of &
custody issue arising, they may be
unzble o provide an adequate level of
independent public assurance of the
force's custody arrangements.

23. The board is the only police
board in the UK not to have such

an operational scheme in place.
There have been several attempts
to establish an ICVS over the years
since the duty was introduced, but
these have all failed. The board

set up an ICVS subcommittee in
January 2010, with the aim of having
an ICVS in place during 2010. In
September 2010, the beoard agreed
an action plan and has recently been
taking action 1o attract, vet and train
potential custody visitors.

24 Until June 2010, public access
to board agendas, minutas and
reports has been limited and this
has compronisad transparency and
public accountability. The board has
now launched a new wels page in
crder to make these documents
publicly available,

Exhibit 2

‘Local Policing — Closer to You': A community-focused policing model

This model will intreduce local policing teams across all communities in the
Grampian Police area with local officers working with partner agencies and
the communities, respending to local needs.

Our new approach will be launched under the title ‘Local Policing — Closer to
You', involving the key activities of ‘Consult, Listen, Respond and Feedback’,

"Consult and Listen’ reflects the need for effective engagement between
lccal palice officers, local communities and partners, with a view to
identrfying and agreeing those local issues which need to be resolved.

‘Respond’ will be driven through a set of locally based policing teams
which will operate within clearly defined areas, engage effectively with
communities, and deliver policing to a set of standards.

Twenty-four local policing teams will operate across the Grampian
Police ares, each led by 2 local policing inspector. These officers will be
ernpowered to work with their communities and partners to deliver quality

local services.

‘Feedback’ wilt be the responsibility of local policing inspectors who will
inform communities of progress rmade against agreed issues through the
provisicn of the “Local Policing Update'.

Source: Community Focus: Local Policing - Closer to You, Overview and Delivery Plan, Grampian

Pelice, March 2010

25. The board recognised that further
improvements could be made 1o

its governance arrangements and
instigated a review in 2009. As a
result, the board agreed to set up
additional subcommittees early in
2010 to deal with urgent business
and oversee the introduction of an
ICVS. These new arrangements are
designed to help board members
focus on key issues by devolving
some areas of business to the
subcommittees. The board plans to
review the governance arrangements
in the secend quarter of 2011. The
board has also started to identify
individual board members to act as
‘champions’ for particular areas of
interest. One hoard member, for
example, takes a lead role on road
safety matters. This is a potentially
useful initiative, helping to encourage
a degree of specialisation within the
board and strengthen its capacity

Page 66

to provide independent scrutiny

on specific issues. The intention

is 1o complement and not replace
the more formal governance
arrangements of the board. However,
some board members have
exprassed concems that this could
weaken corporate responsibilities

or encourage individuals to become
‘'spekesperson’ for particuiar
departments and compromise their
independent scrutiny role. The board
will therefore need to raview the
effectiveness of these arrangemeants
to assure itself they are having the
desired impact.

26. The role and responsibilities

for the convenor and vice-convenors
are clearly defined, but the board
enly recently agreed role descriptions
for cther bhoard members in
November 2010.

£




27. The force and clerk provide
training for new hoard members and
the force heips develop members’
knowledge of policing matters
through a series of presentations
and site visits. The board has
identified that it needs to have a more
structured approach o training and
development. In September 2010,
the board agreed to introduce a
series of training sessions following
every second board meeting. These
are scheduled to commence in early
2011. In addition, the clerk’s office

is considering how best to engage
members in identifying ongoing
development needs. The clerk and
her staff are also currently reviewing
the training provided by members’
constituent councils as part of a
training neads analysis for members.

28. Aberdeen City Council provides
administrative and legal support for
the board. Approximately five per
cent of the clerk's time, and up to
ten per cent of the depute clerk's
time, is devoted to supporting the
police board, however this can vary
depending on competing demands.
The administrative arrangements are
generally good, board agendas and
reports are well structured and the
board maintains a log of autstanding
actions to ensure actions are
progressed. There is, however, a lack
of capacity to provicle any research
support to help members carry out
their independent scrutiny role. A
recent review by the internal auditor
has identified a range of options for
improving this capacity and managers
in Aberdeen City Council are currently
considering this report.

29. It is too early to assess the
effectiveness of the new governance
arrangemeants, but the changes
being made indicate a commitrment
to continuous improvament. In
Septemnber 2010, the board approved
a new report template designed to
highlight key information such as
financial implications, service and
community impact and equalities
issues. A new members’ handbook,
containing key documentation,
advice and guidance notes, is being

Exhibit 3
The force area

Part 1. Corporate assessment

developed fo assist hoard members
in fulfiling their roles. The board
plans to review the effectiveness

of the new approach in the second
guarter of 2011,

Grampian Police
' The force has an effective ;
- govemance struciure and strategic
. delivery is managed through ‘
- monthly Force Executive Board
{FEB) meetings, supported by a
- range of other mechanisms.
30. The force is divided into three
geographical policing divisions which
are coterminous with the council
areas of Aberdeen, Aberdeenshire
and Moray {Exhibit 3). The three
divisions are responsible for the
delivery of frontline policing services
and are supported by corporate
headquarters departmants. Each
divisicn 1s led by a police commander
of either superintendent or chief
superintendent rank.

31. Aberdeen's position as the UK hub
of the North Sea oil industry provides
a degree of economic stability to

the region, but also brings specific
challenges for Grampian Police. The
foree has poficing responsibitity for
incidents accurring within the Narth
Sea oil and gas fields and events

such as the two helicopter crashes

Page 67

demonstrate the extra demand on
resources that incidents of this nature
bring. Some shore-based installations
associated with the petro-chemical
industry carry further responsibilities
for the force due to the threat to

the UK energy infrastructure should
they be subject to terrorist attack.
Additionally, the location of the

royal residence within the force

area requires the force to allocate
resources to assist the protection of
the royal household at Balmoral.

32. At a strategic level the force

is fed by the force executive,

which manages strategic delivery,
operational priorities and performance
using a weil-established programme
of business meetings. The force
executive comprises the chief
constable, deputy chief constable,
two assistant chief constables,

a director and deputy director of
corporate services. All members of
this group, together with divisional
commanders and department heads,
sit on the FEB, which considers
broader strategic issues and monitors
force performance. A range of other
corporate mechanisms supports the
ronthly FEB meetings, including

a Programme Board, a Tactical
Tasking and Coordination Group and
performance management meetings.

13



14

33. The force also has a Development
and Governance Department. This
department underpins the governance
arrangements and is responsible

for production of internal policies,
guidance and procedures on a range
of issues including risk management
and corporate planning.

34. Senior officers are given strategic
and 1actical responsibility for priority
areas, and this strengthens the
understanding of the priorities
throughout the force. Divisional
conmanders and department heads
develop business ptan objectives on a
yearly basis, which support the overall
force objectives. Each business area
plan owner is required to complete
task records throughout the year o
document their progress towards
achieving these objectives. This helps
to ensure ownership and provides

a visible force lead or champion for
each priority arsa,

35. The force has a well-developed
approach to risk management

and compiles a comprehensive

risk register annuzlly. The register
describes all risks identified within
business areas plans and includes
force priorities, local challenges,
project risks and emerging issues.
The use of business area plans to
assess risks, together with the full
force risk register, ensures that risk
is properly assessed at all levels
within the force. All risks identified
as 'significant” are reported to each
meeting of the joint police board
and the force provides updates to
board members, which describe the
measures taken to mitigate the risks.

36. Force performance data is
available to members of the

public on the force's website
www.grampian.police.uk where
force-wide and divisional quarterly
performance monitoring reports
appear in their entirety. Performance
reporting is covered in more detail in
paragraphs 52 to 63.

Community engagement

Grampian Joint Police Board
Board members have & good
understanding of the policing
needs of their communities, and
receive regular feedback on user

* satisfaction and complaints.

37. Board members have a gocd
understanding of the needs of their
local communities in terms of policing
services. At g strategic level, they
have reflected the community's long-
standing desire for a more visible
policing service through their input to
shape the 'Local Policing - Closer to
You' strategy. There is also evidence
that they help, on a day-to-day basis,
to ensure that community views
shape local policing services, for
example through regular member
surgeries and by attending community
meetings and feeding these views
back to the force.

38. Board members alsc have good
working relationships with divisional
commanders and engage regularly
with local policing team inspectors
to communicate and challenge on
nsighbourhood issues. For example,
in Aberdeenshire, board members
influenced the local appreach to road
safety measures.

39. The board also receives other
forms of feedback from the
community on policing services,
Each month, the force carries ot

a telephone survey of arcund 200
individuals who have contacted them
and the results are included in each
guarterly performance report. Board
members also receive summarised
information on complaints® in the
quarterly performance reports

and consider more detailed

reports in addition to considering
individual cases at the complaints
subcommitiee.

Grampian Police

‘;4 The foree engages effectively
¢ with the community and has a

strong commitment to community
pdlicing. It captures the views

- of cormunities in a structured

manner and uses them to inform
the force’s strategic planning
process. The force's community

. charter clearly sets out its
. commitments, but does not
© centain measures to help it assess

' whether these commitments are

i being met.

40. The force consults regularly and
effectively with mernbers of the
public using community groups and
key contacts. Feedback had indicated
that people wanted increased police
visibility in their local cornmunities.
This dialogue was a significant

driver in the development of ‘Local
Policing — Closer to You', which was
introduced in April 2010,

41. Officers from local policing
teams are required to attend ali
community meetings and record the
matters arising from these meatings
ON a community engagement
database. This ensures that issues
are logged, tracked and actioned in
a systematic way and inform the
strategic planning process.

42. The force has incorporated a
Communities Charter into the latest
version of Platform for Success.
The charter sets out the force's
commitment to the community
and contains eight pledges, which
members of the public are able to
access onfine. (Exhibit 4),

43. The charter clearly articulates

the force's commitrents to the
community and has the potential to
strengthen further the relationship
between the force and the
communities it serves. The force
recognisas that it needs to continue
with existing work to develop a set of

3 Quarterly performance reports record the number of cornplaints about pelice officers and police staff and service complaints received each quarter and the
outcome of the complaints. The Complaints subcommittee provides oversight of how complaints are handled by the force and consideration of complaints

against chief officers.

Page 68



Exhibit 4

Communities Charter commitments

We will:

* make sure you know who your local officers are

* make it easy for you to contact us

* be visible and provide reassurance

* attend local meetings and involve communities 3

* help cornmunities tackle their local problems

¢ keep you up to date with local palicing services

* tell you how we are dealing with community concerns

+ work with others 1o solve local problems.

Source: Platform for Success, Grampian Police

performance objectives and measures
s0 that it can assess whether it is
meeting its commitments and report
these to the board and the pubtic.

44. The force has made significant
efforts t0 engage with some
traditionally *hard to reach’ groups
within the community. It has
increased fis engagement with the
black and mincrity ethnic (BME)
owned business community

in Aberdeen and has actively
encouraged the reporting of racially
motivated crime, for example with

a marketing campaign focusing

on local BME owned businesses.
Similar engagement efforts have also
heen taking place in Moray where
divisional officers have forged links
with the gypsyftravellers community.
In Aberdeenshire, the force works
closely with the council while

the diversity liaison cofficer works
closely with Lesbian Gay Bisexual
Transgender (LGBT) Scotland to
progress joint training on homophobic
hate crime in schools.

Partnership working

Grampian Joint Police Board

. Board members are aciively

" involved in community safety
partnerships and help to provide

- eomimunity leadership 4 on pollclng
issues. They also wo'- ith

 divisional carmmaride

officers to identify:

solutions to local i |ssues The board's

-role in providing strategic direction

i on shared services is limited.

45, Board members are members
of the three community safety
partnerships coverad by the Grampian
Police force area. These partnerships
help to determine the key strategic
objectives for local policing services
and inform the relevant pricrities
contained within the SOAs, which
cover partnership work in the council
areas of Aberdeen, Aberdeenshire
and Moray. Beard members monitor
performance throughout the year
using quarterly performance reports.

Page 69

Part 1. Corporate assessment 15

46. The force and board's constituent
councils work in partnership fo share
services at a local level, for example
by sharing research and analysis
support in the form of a partnership
analyst post.

47. The role of board membaears in
actively driving the force’s strategic
approach on shared services is
limited. Although the board receives
regular update reports on major
projects, there is limited evidence of
board members providing strategic
direction on shared services. Board
members have been involved in
continuing discussions on the force’s
future co-location plans with Grampian
Fire and Rescue. However, 10 date,
these discussions have not resulted in
shared accomrnodation,

Grampsan Police

i The force maintains effectlve

- working relationships with pariners
and is achieving positive local

! outcomes through partnership

: working at both a strategic and

- local level.

48. Improving outcomes indicate
that the force works effectively

with its partners and our survey of
partner agencies highlighted that the
force has strong working relationships
in place. Partnership objectives
feature in the force’s guarterty
performance reports, which contain
a core set of outcome measures
common to the three SOAs covering
the Grampizan area.

49, At a strategic leve! the force's
partriership activity is led by the

chief constable, who is a member

of the North East of Scotland Chisf
Executive Forurm, This is a mult-
agency group, which seeks to provide
the leadership and direction required
to drive partnership activity across the
region. Three core strands, service
improvement, integration of services
and greater efficiencies, underpin the
group's work.



16

50. The force is actively involved

in all of the community safety
partnerships in Grampian. The
parinerships produce their own
strategic and tactical assessments
and partner agencies share analytical
support. All divisions have effective
information-sharing protocols in place
to support the exchange of necessary
information hetween pariners.

51. There are also positive examples
of partnership activity at the local
level. The force has supported local
partnerships by investing resources
in community projects. For example,
in addition to seconding officers to
each of the three local authorities, the
force has seconded officers to the
Grampian Regional Equality Council
and Aberdeen Foyer, a charity that
alleviates homelessness.

Performance management and
improvement

Grampian Joint Police Board

Board members sctively scrutinise
force performance using guarterly
performance reports. The board's

~ public performatiee reporting and
prioritisation and  monitoring of
continuous improvement activity

. is fimited.

52. The beard receives Quarterly
Performance Reports (QPRs) from

the force, which provide an overview
of performance and reflect national
policing priorities, local SOA objectives
and the prigrities set out in Platform for
Success.

53. The reports provide menibers
with much of the information

they need to monitor the forca's
performance. Board members actively
guestion and challenge senior police
officers at board meetings on both
strategic and operational issues.

This scrutiny and challenge is
constructive and focused on
supperting improvement.

84. The QPRs provide a clear
summary on many areas of force
performance for board members, but
some aspects of the performance
managenent framework could be
improved. These are covered in more
detait in paragraphs 60 to 65.

5B. Scrutiny by the Stewardship
subcommitiee is less focused.

The subcommittee uses audit and
inspection reports to scrutinise
performance and actively questions
the force on matters in these reports.
However, on other matters, there is
a tendency for members to focus

on matters of detail rather than
challenging on more strategic or
significant issues. For example, there
are normally very few questions on
the regular updates on the strategic
risk register, but much cemment on
any proposals to write-off debis, even
for relatively small amounts.

B6. The board does not produce

an annual performance report and
does not feature in the force annual
performance report. This means
that it is falling short of its public

performance reporting responsibilities.

Although board members review the
ferce’s annual report, they do not
provide direct input to the publication.
Other police boards typically have a
section in force annual reports and
this represents an endorsement

for the content of the report and/for
summarises the board's activity and
impact over the year. The absence
of the board in the annual report
means that their contribution to the
governance and accountability of the
foree is not visible to the public.

57. The board does not have a clear
role in directing or monitoring the
force's continuous improvement
activity. The board receives update
reports on individual projects and
initiatives and the Stewardship
subcommittee considers the force's
review prograrnme. There is little
evidence to suggest that the board
plays an active role in identifying
continuous improvement priorities
or in monitoring progress ort HMICS
inspection actions.

Page 70

Grampian Police

" The force's performance reporting
. arrangements are well structured.

- Performance reports would support -
* serutiny and public performance

reporting more effactively if
- they included more comparative
- information and were more

_ balanced in reporting negative

perforrmance, :

The force is comimitted to service
improvement and carries out
largeted internal reviews and
inspections, which are focused

: around force priorities.

58. The force’s performance
management arrangements
demonstrate a clear integration of
strategic prorities, performance
monitoring, and public performance
reporiing. Performance reports cover
measures at both divisionat and force-
wide level and are published on the
force website.

59. OPRs contain a good mix

of national, regicnal and local
performance measures. The reports
are well structured and use & helpful
“traffic light' colour-coding system
for a number of measures to help
highlight areas of strong or poor
performance. The performance
report for the fourth guarter for each
year forms the force's annual report.
Both the force and the board use
the reports to moniter performance
and this aids the transparency of
performance reporting.

80. The reports could be improved
as they do not routinely contain
‘benchmarks” to help the reader gain
a more informed assessment of
performance. Board members and
the public would be in a better
position to assess overall performance
if the measures were reported
alongside naticnal figures or trends
and against specific local objectives,
where appropriate,



61. Performance reporting could

also be more balanced in the

way key issues are presented.
Information about bath good and poor
performance is contained within the
report, but the presentation of this
information can be quite different.
Annual reports clearly highlight areas
of strong performance, but areas of
poor performance are not highlighted
in the same way. For example, the
2003/10 annual report highlights the
reduction in all road traffic collision
fatalities since 2008/09, but does

not give the same prominence 1o
the increase in the number of racist
incidents and racist crimes over the
same period.

62. Our review of performance
reports to the board and the force
executive also showed that areas of
negative performance are routinely
accompanied by explanations of
potential causes. This is entirely
appropriaie, but the explanations

in reports we reviewead invariably
contained a positive interpretation
or explanation of the data being
presented. Where performance
problems are identified, a fuller
explanation of the factors including
the challenges facing the force might
prompt constructive challenge by
board members and help facilitate
management intervention.

63. The force has a Development
and Governance Department that
supports centinuous improvement
activity. The department uses

a systematic approach to both
challenge and support the force and
acts as an in-house improvement
senvice. Areas of force business
finked to force priorities and suitable
for improvement activity are identified
from divisional and departmental
business plans and reviews are then
approved by the force executive. This
process ensures that improverment
activity is linked to force priorities.

Use of resources

Grampian Joint Police Board
- The board is meeting its
' responsibilities by approving
annual budgets and in monitoring
- expenditure and-efficiency savings
throughout the vear. However,
" with the prospect of Significant ‘
. reductions in the resources e
! available to the force, the board |
" néeds to become more proactive
in long-term financial planning, and
seeking assurance that the force is
using its resources efficiently.

64. Board members are fully involved
in approving the annual budget

for the force and in monitoring
expenditure throtughout the year.

A Budget Working Group, which
censists of members and officers,
helps set the annual budget, and the
board approves its preposals. The
board considers revenue and capital
budget monitoring reports at each
board meeting and these are actively
scrutinised by members. The QPRs
also provide monitoring information
on staffing resources, including
sickness absence and turnover. Board
members alss receive information
on efficiency savings, through the
Budget Working Group and reporis
submitted to board meetings.

65. The board has supported shared
services, such as the new Child
Protection Unit within Moray, the
location of cormmunity officers within
new schools in Aberdeen and through
involvement in continuing discussions
on the force’s future co-location plans
with Grampian Fire and Rescue.
However, members recognise that
there remains significant scope for
further shared services in areas

such as procurement and fleet
management.

Page 71

Part 1. Compoiate assessment 17

66. In the context of major reductions
in public expenditure, board members
need to become more proactively
invelved in long-term financial
planning. It is widely recognised
among members and officers that
the current levels of expenditure

are not sustainable. In response,

the board extended the remit of the
Budget Working Group to include
medium-term financial planning

in January 201C. The scale of the
current financial pressures means
that efficiency savings alone are
unlikely to be sufficient to balance the
budget. The board will therefore have
a crucial role in providing challenge
and seeking assurance that the force
is making optimal use of resources, to
improve productivity and sustain key
services while making efficiencies and
reducing expenditure.

Grampian Police

: The farce has & track record, of
 strong financial management, has

f sound finangial controls in place
and has reperted efficiency savings
in excess of targets in recent years.

 Like ail public sector organisations,
: the force is now facing severe

: financial pressures, The force

| recognises that it needs a better
! understanding of what specific

* activities cost to inform difficult

- decisicns about where resources
. will need to be directed, in order
 to sustain performance in priority
- areas. The force is currently.

. developing a long-term strategy,

- setting out how it intends to deal
| with these pressures.

Managing finance

67. Grampian Police had a net
revenue budget for 2009/10 of
£109.8 milliory, representing a net
increase of around £4.5 million on
the previcus year. The force's gross
expanditure per capita is the lowest
in Scotland (Exhibit 5, overleaf).



18

Exhibit 5

Gross expenditure per capita population on Scottish policing

'~ Gross expenditure
per capita population

e o ey

- Centeal =+

2008/09

2009/10

Dumfries & Galloway
| Fife '

Grampian

: Lothién&Bordgr_s T

Northern

. Stratficlyde
Tayside

Scét!and

Source: Annual accounts of pelice boards

68. The force has strong financial
controls in place and sound processes
for setting and monitoring budgets.
The force executive considers
monthly monitoring reperts. In
addition, the deputy director of
corporate services and the assistant
chief constable also hold quarterly
meetings with business area heads
to review progress against their
business plans.

69. The force has a good record in
terms of savings, and has exceeded
its savings targets in recent years.

In 2008710, for exarmple, the force
reported total savings of £4.4 million,
against target of £3.3 million. Savings
in 2009/10 have come from &

range of initiatives, including reduction
of overtime.

70. This strong financial performance
has been achieved in a perfod of
growth and increasing resources,

for example, the number of police
officers has increased from around
1,200 o just over 1,600. The force
recognises that the current financia)
.challenges mean that this level

will not now be sustainable. The
force has put & number of short-
term measures in place to achieve
savings. For example, tight controls
have been introduced to actively
manage vacancies, where a panel
must approve any proposals to fill any
vacant posts. All divisions have had
their devolved budgets cut by ten per
cent. There are also tight controls on
overtime and the force has reported
savings covering both police officers
and support staff.

71. The force has strong budgetary
contrel, but, in common with forces
across Scotland, has a less developed
understanding of the costs of specific
policing activities, for example the
cost of targeting drug dealing. This
makes it difficult to evaluate the
relationship between the resources
invested and the ouicomes achieved
by that investment, Prior to the
introducticn of ‘Local Policing — Closer
to You', the force conducted work

to identify the potential benafits of
the new policing model. This work
would have been enhanced by a
fuller analysis of the potential costs

Page 72

of the new model and any associated
efficiency savings. The force has
recognised that imgrovement is
needed in this area and a good
understanding of costs will be
essential to inform decision-making in
the current financial climate.

Managing people

72. The force actively manageas its
workforce and responds 1o issues
raised by staff. To get feadback

from staff, the force carried out

staff surveys in 2005 and 2008. The
response rate for the 2008 survey was
relatively poor with 40 per cent of staff
responding compared to 81 per cent
in 2005, However, the resuits from the
surveys show that morale within the
force is good and staff are generally
satisfied with their place within the
organisation. The survey highlighted

a nurnber of areas for improvement,
including the need to better allocate
resources. The force responded by
forming working groups to progress
highlighted frmprovement areas, each
with staff representation and a senior
manager as a strategic lead.

73. The force performs well in terms
of sickness absence rates, In 2009/10,
the proportion of working days lost
due o absence in Grampian was
lower than the Scottish average for
both police officers and police staff. In
2009/10, the absence rate for police
officers was 3.5 per cent compared
to a Scottish average of 4.1 per cent,
and the absence rate far police staff
was 4.5 per cent compared to a
Scottish average of 5.0 per cent.

74. In 2009, the force conducted a
training review, which highlighted
a potential mismatch between
the force pricrities and the training
being offered to staff. In response,
the FEB approved a number of
recommendations early in 2010,
including the introduction of a group
tasked with reviewing training
requests to ensure that they align
with force priorities.



75. When setting up 'Local Policing —
Closer to You' the locat policing teams
were all allocated broadly the same
level of resources and this has caused
some difficulties in terms of resilience
with a few areas experiencing
significantly higher levels of demand
than others. This has resuited in
SOMe resource pressures as officers
are called away from their own local
policing team area to assist with high-
priority calls in busier neighbouring
areas. A review of the new policing
model was carried out during the
summer of 2010 and senior officers
have identified that some realiocation
of resources across policing teams

IS Necessary.

Managing assets and other
resources

76. The force maintains an asset
register but does not have a long-term
asset strategy linked to its strategic
priorities and objectives. The force
has made some progress on sharing
buildings with public sector agencies.
For example, several of the new
neighbourhood policing teams are
located in school buildings around
the area.

77. For some years, the force

has sought to re-locate to a new
headquarters building and has

invited various partner agencies

to collaborate in the project. The
force has clearly been driven in their
desire 10 collaborate in the proposed
headquarters development by a clear
sense of best value and the need

to demonstrate value for money

and provide a saving to the public
purse. On a number of occasions,
however, prospective partners have
withdrawn support for the project and
the situation remains unresolved. This
remains a matter of some frustration
for the force.

78. Beyond shared accommodation,
the force has made fimited progress
in sharing cther "hack office’ functions
such as procurement, payrol! services
and fleet management.

Planning for the future

79. Like all public sector organisations,
the force faces significant financial
challenges and, at the time of our
audit and inspection, the force did

not have a long-term strategy setting
out how it planned to deal with

these challenges.

80. In summer 2010, the force
formed a Service Reconfiguration
Programme team to ensure that all
possible cost and efficiency saving
options are being fully explored. The
team is examining all aspects of force
business and reports to the force
exacutive. The force has also put
arrangements in place to brief staff on
the financial future of the organisation
and the steps it is taking to address
the challenges it faces.

81. The force is now developing

a longerterm strategy for change,
setting out how it intends to respond
1o the anticipated reductions in public
sector hudgets. Given the likely scale
of the reduction in budgets, the force,
the board and its partriers will nead
to consider the strategic vision for
policing priorities in Grampian and
criticaily assess how it will deploy
the more limited resources if it is to
sustain performance in priority areas.

Equalities

Grampian Joint Police Board
- The board's.role in providing
- strategic direction or oversight
on the equalities. agenda is
underdeveloped.
82. The beard has had statutory
equality schemes in place for gender,
race and disahility and received
monitoring reports for 2009 and 2010,
though there is little evidence to
suggest it has been actively monitoring
these. On 2 July 2010, the board
approved a Single Equality Scheme
which covers all egualities groups and
replaced the individual schernes.

Page 73

Part 1. Comporate assessment 19

83. The board receives half-yearly
equality performance reports on the
foree's single equalities scheme and
regular reports on workforce statistics
and trends, but there is little evidence
of active scrutiny or challenge of

this information.

84. The board has taken limited
steps to mainstream squalities. In
March 2010, it approved new tarms
and conditions covering the force
to ensure compliance with equal
pay legislation and to deliver an
appropriate job evaluation scheme. A
number of beard members involved
in the appointment of chief officers
have undertaken spegcific training on
equalities issues.

85. In September 2010, the board
agreed to introduce a new format

for reports by the end of 2010. The
new format will require all reports to
highlight any eguality issues related to
the subject of the report.

86. The board needs to provide
clearer leadership on equalities issues,
It 2lso needs to consider whether it
has appropriate measures in place

in order to assure itself that any
equalities related activity is having the
desired impact.

Grampfan Police

The force is making good progress
- In supporting the mainstreaming
- of equalities. It has invested in
 developing strategies, systems,
" processes and standard operating
. procedures. The force now needs
1o develop indicators to assess
. the impact of the investment it
has made. '

87. The force's Single Equality
Scheme 2008-11 extends previous
measures, which covered race,
gender and disability, to include age,
religion, faith and sexual orientation.
The force developed the scheme
after extensive consuliation with staff,
community groups and service Users.



20

A diversity group reviews progress
on a guarterly basis and the force
carries out an annual review of the
scheme. The force’s aim is 1o have
one ‘living document’ and action plan
to embed egualities considerations
inte everyday work.

88. The force engages constructively
with a range of community groups,
inciuding community partnership
groups, lay groups, inter-faith groups
and other voluntary secter support
groups and has diversity and gypsy/
traveller ligison officers in the three
divisional areas. The force also
provides a seconded liaison officer to
the Grampian Race Equality Council
(GREC) and in June 2008, the force
was awarded the Lesbian, Gay,
Bisexual and Transgender (LGBT)
charter mark.

89. The force has a range of systems
and process in place to support the
mainstreaming of equalities. It carries
out Equality Impact Assessments
(EQIAS) for all polices and procedures
and it is currently reviewing and
updating its EQIA process. In
common with other forces, respect
for diversity’ is & core competency
within the perfermance and
development revisw system

for staff and it has trained staff. In
March 2010, the force defivered
EQIA training, and is also involved

in the national steering group on
diversity training.

90. The composition of the workforce
is changing and is in line with the
other forces in Scotland. There has
been a rise in female officers since
2004/0b, 26.4 per cent of the force
were wormen in 2009/10 which is
exactly the same as the Scottish
national average. The number of
officers with declared ethnicity has
increased to 1.6 per cent, again this
is exactly the same as the Scotlish
national average in 2009/10.

Sustainability
Grampian Joint Police Board

! The board does not have a

clearly articulated appreach to
- sustainability.
91. There is limited evidence to
suggest that the board has considered
its statutory responsibilities to
support sustainability in a strategic or
structured way. It has shown interest
in a number of force initiatives, but
these have been considerad on a
case-by-case basis and there is limited
evidence 1 suggest that the board
has sel a sirategic direction on how it
might support sustainability,

92. The board can highlight some
individual measures which aim to
have a positive environmental impact,
for example by reducing energy
consumption through car-sharing
and video-conferencing, However,
these are largely initiatives taken by
the force, rather than being driven by
any overarching strategic approach
agreed by the board. To date thare

is no evidence that the board

has monitored the impact of the
measures or the overall trends in the
force’s energy consumption.

93. There is little evidence that the
board has considered what actions it
might take 1o consider the economic
or social elements of sustainability.
The vision underpinning ‘Local
Policing — Closer to You' which
represents a shift from responsive
to preventative policing, supports
some of the broader requirements of
sustainability, particularly in terms of
social sustainability. However, it is
not clear that the beard has made
these links or considered the impact
of the policing model from the
sustainability perspective.

94. The majority of board members
who responded to a survey carried
out to inform the audit considered that
appropriate sustainability strategies

Page 74

are in place, but the board has not
formally considered or approved a
clear force vision on sustainability.
The absence of a strategic approach
to sustainability limits the board’s
capacity to provide effective strateqic
direction and scrutiny in this area.

Grampian Police

- The force does not have a

- coherent strategic approach o

- sustainahility. It is making some
progress in terms of environmental
sustainability and there are also.

- examples of activity which might

- be considered to support social

‘- and economic-sustainability, but

 these do not take place withina

*structured framework,

95. Like equalities, sustainability

is one of the ‘cross-cutting’

respensibilities under Best Value. In

common with other forces, Grampian

does not have a strategic approach for

howv it intends to fulfil this duty. There

are several examples of force activity,

which contribute to sustainability, but

there is no evidence o suggest these

are part of a wider strategic approach.

Platfornt for Success contains

some reference to environmental

sustainability but does not include

any detail beyond a commitment

to reduce energy consumption and

increase waste recycling. There are

limited performance measures in

place to help the force assess its

perforrmance in this area.

96. The absence of a strategic
frameawork means that the force

has not set a clear direction for how

it intends 1o support sustainability.
This means there is & risk that the
force is not planning its activity in a
coordinated way and not prioritising or
monitoring the work effectively. It also
means that the force is not able to
assure fiself that its actions are having
the desired impact and becoming
embedded into the culiure of the
organisation.



97. In terms of environmental
sustainability, the force established zn
environmental action group in 2009.
This meets every other month and

is invahlved in promoting a range of
‘green’ activities such as car-sharing,
turning off lights, energy awareness
and video-conferencing to reduce
unnecessary travel. The force, along
with all other Scottish police forces,
i$ involved with the Carbon Trust to
develop its carbon management plan.

98. The introduction of ‘Local Policing
— Closer to You' is an example of
the force's commitment to local
comimunities which supports social
sustainability, though it is not clear
that the force has considered it from
this perspective. Senior officers
within the force are confident that
‘Local Policing ~ Closer to You',
delivered in partnership with other
agencies, will provide a degree of
community resilience which will, in
tum, result in enhanced outcomes
for those communities. There are
other examplas of activities which
support social sustainability at the
local ievel through crime prevention
measures and diversionary activities.
These include the work of the police
architectural lisison officer who
works with partners to promote
crime-prevention through
environmental design.

99, In terms of economic
sustainability, the force intends

to enhance the use of the special
constabulary and better integrate

the Third Sector into force business.
The aim of this is to help ensure that
community involvernent in the delivery
of services becomes mainstrearmed,
while providing clear economic
benefits. The next phase of the force's
vision is to approach the private

sector 1o attempt to secure funding
far neighbourhood projects through
the various corporate comimunity
responsibility programmmes. This
approach has the potential to preduce
favourable results in the future

given the number of multinational
companies linked to the oil industry
with a presence in the area.

100. The force and the board

should review their approach o
sustainability in order to set a clear
strategic direction and put systems
and processes in place to help them
review progress and monitor impact.
There are examples of activity that
support the three elements of
sustainable development. However, in
the absence of a strategic approach,
there is a risk that these activities

are not prioritised, coordinated and
monitored effectively. The force

and the board need to do more

to articulate their commitment to
sustainability and to develop systems
and process that demonstrate

the impact of the full range of
sustainability activities taking place
within the force,

Page 75

Part 1. Corporate assessment 21



22

Part 2. Grampian
Police performance

assessment




Delivering policing plan outcomes
The force and its partners are
making good progress on most
of the area-wide priorities in
the SOAs covering Aberdeen,
Aberdeenshire and Moray.

" There has been an overall reduction

in recorded ciime singe. 2006/07,
and crimes of violence, indecsncy,
diskonesty, and reckless behaviour
are at their lowest fevel for seven
years. Detection rates have been
sustained and are around. the

national average. Drug enforcement

- performance declined betweer
2008/09 and-2009/10 and there-
« have been increases inracially
" motivated crimeand complaints
: against the police.
101. The Torce’s strategic plan
Platform for Success defines the force
vision and strategic direction. The plan
has evolved over the last five years
and it is updated on an annual basis
to reflect force values, chjectives
and community pricrities. The force's
priorities are reducing viclent crime
and antisocial behaviour, national
security, public protection, controlled
drugs (which from 2010/11 also
includes serious and organised crime),
road casualty reduction, community
focus and force reputation.

102. Force performance is reported
through OPRs and an annual report
which share a common structure and
are based around the four areas of
policing identified within the SPPF. The
performance reports also contain a
core set of ten performance measures,
which are common to the three SOAs
and cover the force area and refiect
the force’s strategic objectives.

103. The force and its partnars can
demonstrate progress on these ten
measures, the majority of which
show a positive direction of travel
between 2008/09 and 2009/10.
This improvement includes positive
progress on redcing antisocial

Part 2. Grarmpian Police performance assessment 23

Exhibit 6

Recorded crimes per 10,000 population 2006/07-2009/10

800

M 200507

...... s

700

1 2007/08
M 200800

B O
2 9o g
(=T = =]

Rate per 10,000 population

100

&1 200910

Source: HMICS (data for SPPF annual performance reports)

g e 1 ) A g - Ly e e 4 s v e s | o

behaviour, youth ¢rime and crimes
of violence. Further work is needed
however to sustain the recent
improvements 1o road safety.

Recorded crime

104. Overall, performance in terms of
recorded crime is good. In 2009/10,
the number of recorded crimas per
10,000 population in Grampian was
lower than the Scottish average
(Exhikit 6).

105. The leve! of recorded crime in
Grampian is falling and there has been
a 25.8 per cent reduction in recorded
crimes of viclence, indecency,
dishonesty, and reckless behaviour
between 2008/07 and 2009/10.

106. Between 2006/07 and 2009/10,
the total level of recorded crime
across Scoiland fell by 19 per cent.
The reducticn in Grampian was
greater than the Scottish average

for crimes of indecency and for

fire raising, malicious and reckless
conduct but iess than the average for
crimes of violence and dishonesty.

Page 77

Detection rates

107. The overall ¢crime detection
rate in Grampian in 2008/10 was

48 per cent, one per cent lower than
the Scottish average.

108. The force has improved the
detection rates for crimes of violence,
indecency, dishonesty and fire raising,
vandalism and reckless behaviour
(Crime Groups 1-4) since 2006/07
(Exhibit 7, overleaf).

109. The force detection rates
between 2006/07 and 2008/09 were
better than the Scottish averages for
crimes of violence and fire raising,
malicious and reckless conduct,

but below average for crimes of
indecency and dishonesty. However,
in 2009/10 the force's detection rates
for these crimes wers above, or equal
to the Scottish averages.

110. The sections that follow
consider the force’s performance

on its strategic priorities of reducing
violent erime and antisocial behaviour,
national security, public protection,
controlled drugs, road casualty
reduction and community focus and



24

force reputation. Where possible the
assessment draws on performance
measures over a fouryear period
and makes comparisons with the
Scottish average where appropriate.
The force's other strategic priority,
efficiency, has been covered in part
one of this report.

Violence

The force is psrforming o
- ‘consistently well in reduging crirmies
 of violence. These are at.their B
- lowest level for seven years and

detection rates are improving.

111. The force has performed well in
its efforts to reduce viclent crine and
offences have fallen consistently over
recent years. In 2009/10, crimes of
violence in Grampian were at

their lowest recorded level and
detection rates were at their highest
for seven vears.

112. The number of recarded crimes
of violence fell by 17.8 par cent
between 2006/07 and 2008/10. The
average detection rate in Grampian
between 2008/07 and 2008/09 was
70.4 per cent, significantly better than
the Scottish average {Exhibit 8).

113. In 2009/10, there was 14 viotent
crimes per 10,000 head of population
in Gramptan, this is significantly lower
than the Scottish average of 22. The

detection rate in 2008/10 was 84 per
cent, which is significantly better than
the Scottish average of 67 per cent.

114. During 2009/10, the number

of serious assaults fell by 17.8 per
cent and the detection rate improved
significantly, rising by 14.5 per cent to
90.3 per cent. The force attributes this
to proactive policing of new licensing
legistation, improved arrangements
around door stewarding supported by
the Security Industry Authority and by
targeting policing arcund the city and
town centres and the weekend night-
time economy.

Exhibit 7
Detection rates for crime groups 2006/07—2009/10

Percentage

70

W :zo06/07
"% 2007/08

W 200809

B 200910

M 2yravg

Exhibit 8
Crimes of violence 2006/07-2009/10

1,000

Nurnber

S00
860
700
600
500
400
300
200
100

j E'>.=—_~—%\/'\m

790
180
170

afelusntagd

140
130
120

0

Source:

2008/7 2007/08

Recorded crimes

200808 ' 2009/10

® Detection rate

SPPF annual performance reports and Grampian Police annual perfarmance reports

Page 78




Antisocial behaviour

Antisocial behaviour in Grampian

“ is reducing although detection
rates are generally below the
natiorial average. The force has
been successful in addressing

, its priority of reducing vandalism.
The force works well with its
partners in reducing youth-related
entisocial behaviour but needs to
evgluate the ongoing impact of its

people more effactively.

115. In 2009/10, antisocial behaviour
community crimas® in Grampian fe!l
to their lowest level since 2004/05.
This downward trend is encouraging
and reflects a concerted effort by
the force and its partners to iink to
the four pillars of the government's
antisocial behaviour strategy:
prevention, integration, engagement
and communication.

118. During 2009/10, there was a
significant reduction in the number
of recorded antisocial behaviour
offences, which fell by 12.5 per cent.
Detection rates remained relatively
constant over the same period at
around 52 per cent, These were
below the national average of 67 per
cent and the lowest level in Scotland
for 2009/10.

117. Vandalism is currently at its
lowest level for the past three vears.
The force has pricritised the reduction
of vandalism and has supported this
in a number of ways, including a
specific vandglism review team. This
has been successful and the number
of recorded vandalism crimes reduced
by 1,850 during 2009/10 to 6,824,
Over the same period detection rates
also dipped from 31.5 to 28.3 per cent
and this is an issue the force needs

to address if it is to sustain positive
outcomes.

Part 2. Grampian Police performance assessment 25

Exhibit 9
‘CONTEST 2’ strands

* Prevent - terrorism by tackling its causes and the radicalisation of individuals

* Pursue - terrorists and those who sponsor them

* Protect - potential targets of terrorism

* Prepare ~ to respond to the congeguenceas of a terrorist incident, in order

that any disruption is minimised

Source: 'CONTEST 2’ Caunter Terrorism Strategy, UK Government

118. Detected youth crimes in
Grampian dacreased by 16 per cent
during 200910 and the number of
children and young people responsible
for thase crimes also fell by more
than 200 during this pericd. The
force's Youth Justice Managarment
Unit has made an effective
contribution to this positive trend and
is continuing to further strengthen

its approach and engagement with
partner agencies.

119. The force has worked particularly
well with some of its community
safety pariners to make an impact

onh antisocial behaviour. Through the
Aberdeenshire Community Safety
Partnership, the force helped support
over B0 "street sporis’ sessions
across Aberdeenshire. These acted as
diversionary activities to reduce youth
discrder over the summer period

and also provided opportunities for
pariners to give advice on lifestyle
1s5ues. As would be expected,

these diversionary activities have

an immediate positive impact on
antisocial behaviour, but the force
and its partners need to have more
effective arrangements in place to
evaluate whether these actions

are supporting a more sustained,
longerterm improvement in
antisocial behaviour.

National security

"”The force is working with partners

; to continue to review and develop
contingency plans and support

- natisnal security strategies:

120. The force is committed to

the UK Government strategy
‘CONTEST 2" (Exhibit 9) and has
carried out work in the four strands,
‘Prevent, Pursue, Protect and
Prepare’, In 2009/10, the main
emphasis has been in relation to
‘Prevent’ where substantial progress
has been made on the formation of
multi-agency structures o develop
responses to potential vulnerabilities
and ‘Delphinus’™ groups are now

in place in each of the three local
autherity areas.

121. The force and its partners
continue to develop a range of
contingency plans, both locally in
terms of potentially vuinerable sites
and nationally relative to joint Scottish
or UK policing responses. This is
particularly relevant to the unique
positicn Grampian Police has in
refation to the North Sea oil industry
and the additional demand this brings
to the force.

4 Consistent with Association of Chief Police Officers in Scotiand {ACPOS) performance monitoring data, antisacial behaviour crimes are defined as actions

that demonstrate a ‘disregard for community/personal wellbeing, acts directed at pecple,

environmental damage and misuse of public space.

5 "Delphinus” groups are multi-agency groups based on community safety partnership structures. They are briefed on local threats and vulnerabilities with a
view to developing appropriate responses tailored to the local context.

Page 79



26

Public protection

" The force is working with partners '

to protect vulnerable people, but
needs to develop performance
measures 50 that it can better
assess its performance in this

. area. The number of regorted

' racist incidents and racially
motivated crimé&k has increased

- significantly, though detection rates |

have improved,

122. The force is committed to
working with partners to improve
the protection of children and adults
and the manitoring of offenders,

to reduce domestic abuse and in
supporting the ‘Getting It Right

For Every Child" agenda. The force
and ts pariners have implemented
the recommendations arising fram
previous HMe Inspections into the

provision of services for the protection

of children within the three local
authorities, as well as the review
of the North East of Scotland Child
Protection Committee. We found
evidence of good joint working with
partners to develop the different
strands of public protection 1o meet
the significant challenges around
child protection.

123. Force performance reports do
not include specific and measurabie
objectives or performance measures
in relation to child protection matters,
although the management of
dangerous offenders is reported as
part of the SPPF data.

124. The number of racist incidents
in Grampian increased from 440

in 2006/07 to 564 in 2009/10. The
number of reported racially motivated
crimes has almost doubled from 4409
in 2006/07 to 879 in 2009/10. The
detection raie for these crimes has
improved significantly from 59.9 per
cent in 2006/07 1o 69.3 per cent in
2009/10 and was better than the
Scottish average of 66.5 per cent.

125. The force considers that part
of the increase in incidents and
crimes is a result of their efforts

to improve reporting mechanisms,
raise awareness and improve public
confidence in this area. It has also
cited changing demographics in the
population mix in Aberdeen as an
influencing factor. The force needs
to further analyse the reasons for the
increases so that it can understand
what lies behind them and respond
appropriately.

126. The force's annual performance
report containg imited measures on
public protection beyond the statistics
refating to racially motivated incidents
and crimes. It should consider making
better use of measures to help
manage performance and support
effective scrutiny in this area, for
example domestic abuse and ¢hild
protection issues,

Controlied drugs

- Overall, performance declined in

- all aspects of drug enforeement

" during 2009/10. This downturn
_in performance is set against &

. backdrop of above average drug

. dependency rates within parts of

. the force area. This trend was also

: observed.in a number of other
Scottish palice forces.

127. The force has made controlled
drugs a priority for a number of years.
Between 2008/02 and 2009/10, the
total number of drugs possession
charges fell from 2,235 to 1,836. The
reduction was most marked in relation
to the supply and possession of Class
A drugs where the number of offences
for supply and possession has fallen
from 586 in 2006/07 1o 435 in 2009/10.
The amount of drugs seized also fel
between 2006/07 and 2009/10.

128. A force-wids initiative carried out
during the fourth quarter of 2009/10
10 generate more activity, resulted in
&n increase in supply and possessian
charges during that perfod. Despite

Page 80

this, the force fell short of the
previous performance in this area of
business over the full year.

129, Aberdeenshire suffered the
second highest rate of cocaine-
refated deaths in Scotland in 2007.
In Aberdeen the proportion of the
population hospitafised for drug-
refated conditions is higher than the
Scottish average, yet drug-related
deaths within the force area fell from
486 in 2008/09 to 39 in 2008/10. This
may be indicative of partnership
activity aimed at combating drugs
misuse beginning to have an impact.

130. The naticnal process for
identifying and mapping serious

and organised crime groups (OCGs)
has been embraced by the force
and is reflected in the change to
this pricrity in Flatform for Success
2010/11. The force has restructured
its Crime Management Operations
10 manage this transition and deliver
on the Scottish Government strategy
"Letting Our Communities Flourish’,
New Major Investigation Teams will
support efforts to tackle serious
criminality and aim to make Grampian
a hostile environment for criminais.
It is important that the force
maintains focus on drugs while also
addressing wider criminality of the
0CGs and develops appropriate
performance measures to track and
report on progress.,

Road casualty reduction

" The force has achieved small

| year-on-year reductions in road

. fatalities, The number of accidents

- resulting in death or serious injury

- increased significantly between
2006/07 and 2008/09, though it fell
slightly in 2009/10. Although the

. force works with partners to target

i drivers who present the greatest
risk and reduce collisions, overall
roads policing activity has reduced,

..resutting in falls in detected and

- drink driving offences between
2006/09 and 2008/10.



131, The total number of road traffic
accidents resulting in death or serious
injury rose sharply between 2008/07
and 2008/09, though this fell between
2008/09 and 2009/10 (Exhibit 10).
Most of the increase was & result of
the increase in adults seriously injured
which rose from 188 to 343 over a
three-year period.

132. Between 2006/07 and 2009/10,
the total number of people killed

fell by 32 from 62 to 30, and the
number of children who were killed or
seriously injured fell from 23 t0 22. In
2009/10 the nurber of people killed
or seriously injured per mvkm® was
higher in Grarmpian than anywhere
else in Scotland. The force has been
concerned at the high levet of young
drivers who have been involved

in traffic collisions and has been
focusing its attention in this area.
Work with the Crown Office and
Procurator Fiscal Service (COPFS) on
a Young Driver Diversion Scheme is
being trizlled during 2010/11.

133. The number of detected
offences which are known to
contribute towards road casualties’ all
fell between 2008/09 to 2009410 and
detected road traffic offences overall
fell from 21,449 to 15,612. There has
also been a reduction in the number
of drink drivers brought to justice,
which fell from 1,071 in 2G08/09 to
881 in 200910,

134. The number of proactive
enforcement operations, high visibility
patrols and the numbers of people
receiving education activity also fell
between 2008/09 and 2009/10.

135. It is important that the force
considers whether it is committing
sufficient resources to continue the
recent improvement in performance
on road casuallies. Aithough 2009/10
offered an improvement on the
previous year, it was still higher than
2006/07 and 2007/08.

6 Millior: vehicle kilometres travelled.

Part 2. Grampian Police performance assessment 27

Exhibit 10
Road traffic accidents in Grampian

450 B ol

400 ..

\. ’ Adults seriously

350 A injured

300 @ Adults killed
5 = A . .
o 250 / Q Children seriously
§ 200 injured
=z L o

150 Chitdren killed

100

50 j_ - -
5 b4  S—
2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10
Year

Source: Grampian Police anauat perfarmance reports

Force reputation, standards and
community focus

" Force performance o answering

" and dealing with emergency and

- non-emergency calls is improving
and the force is responding 1o
emergency incidents more quickly. -

- Public confidence in'the force is .-

. slightly below the national averag

 but satisfaction rates are high and

- improving. Complaints against the

- police are increasing yearonyear. -

136. The force is improving its
responsiveness to emergency calls. In
2008/07 it answered 89.9 per cent of
999 calls within ten seconds and this
has risen to 96.2 per cent in 2009/10.
This exceeded the naticnal target of
90 per cent, and was better than the
Scottish average of 94.7 per cent.

137. The force responded to 92.4 per
cent of emergency incidents within
its targat response times in 200910,
The force also exceeded its ten-
minute response target and average
emergency response times have
improved year-on-year,

138. The force answered

97.8 per cent of non-emeargancy

calls in 2009/10 and 90.9 per cent

of these were answered in under 40
seconds. This is an improvernent in
performance compared to 2008/09, in
this critical initial contact,

139. The Scottish Crime and

Justice Survey data for 2009/10
reported on public confidence on

& number of aspects of forces
nationally (Exhibit 11, overleaf). This
indicated that public confidence in the
Grampian force was slightly below
other forces across Scotland,

140. The people of Grampian are
generally positive about the force.

In 2009/10, the satisfaction rates in
Grampian covering initial contact, the
actions taken by officers to resclve
enquiries, the way in which people
were treated and overall satisfaction
with the way in which the force dealt
with the matter were the highest in
Scotland. The force had adopted a
phone survey mathadology, which
attrscted & higher response rate
compared o other forces who

7 This includes dangerous driving, carefess driving, the use of mobile pnones, speeding and seatbelt offences.

Page 81



28

typically use a postal survey. In
2009/10, satisfaction rates improved
for all of these indicaters apart from
one. Public satisfaction with the way
the force dealt with matters overall
improved from 84.3 per cent in
2008/09 to 86.0 per cent in 2009/10,
but the proportion of people who
felt they had been kept adequately
informed fell slightly.

141. The number of complaints
against police officers has increased
yearon-year (Exhibit 12} and has risen
by 69 per cent batween 2006/07 and
2008/10.

142. In 2009/10, there were 31
complaints per 10,000 incidents:
this was significantly higher than
the Scottish average of 17.5 and
was the second highest in Scotland,
The force considers that members
of the public have confidence in

the force’s willingnass to deal with
complaints and are therefore more
prepared to make complaints.
Evidence suggests that the force is
reticulous in recording complaints
and this, coupled with changes in
recerding processes, may account
for some of the increase. However,
other forces are also implementing
changes to recording systems but
have not experienced the same level
of increase. The Police Complaints
Cormmissioner will exarnine this
issue in depth in his annual report
and provide a comparison with other
Scottish forces.

143. Between 2006/07 and 2009/10,
the proporiion of reports the force
submitted 1o the procurator fiscal
within the 28-day deadline rose from
80.7 per cent to 94.5 per cent. This
was significantly better than the
Scottish average of 88.6 per cent.

144. Performance in terms of

reports submitted to the Children’s
Reporter has also improved but

was slightly below the national
average in 2009/10. The force
submitted 79.5 per cent of reports
within 14 davys in 2006/07 and this has
risen to 82.5 per cent in 2009/10.

Exhibit 11
Public confidence

Public confidence in the force’s
abifity to

58

5 g «;Q&lﬁz

egelr

Catch criminals

Source: Scottish Crime and Justice Survey 2008/10, Scattish Government, November 2010

Exhibit 12
Complaints

600

500

400

300

200

Number of complaints

100

2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/1Q

Souree: Grampian Police annual performance reports

Page 82

{%)

o

48



29

Part 3. Improvement
recommendations

Page 83



The improvement programme

145. Continuous improvement in
public services and local governance
are central to the Best Value

and Cormymunity Planning Policy
Framework. In striving to achieve
the highest possible standards of
service, members of the joint board
must focus on key policy objectives
and the needs of service users and

Improvement agenda

Grampian Joint Police Board

1. The board must ensure that it
delivers an effective ICVS,

2. The board needs to become more
proactive in long-term resource
planning to help ensure priority
areas are resourced appropriately.

3. The beard should complete the
review of its current governance
and implement any improvement
actions, including the current
arrangements for chairing the
complaints and stewardship
subcommitiees,

4. The board should consider
recormnmendations of the review
of the administrative support
and training and development
arrangements 1o ensure these are
being resourced appropriately.

5. The board should engage more
proactively with the force on the
prioritisation, scope and monitoring
of improvernent work.

6. The board should strengthen its
leadership and scrutiny of
equalities issues.

[ e e

communities, This requires a culture
where areas in need of improvement
are identified and openly discussed
and in which service perfermance is
constructively challenged.

146. Grampizan Police and the Joint
Board are aware of the key areas
where improvements are needed
and are addressing them.

Grampian Police

1. The force needs to get a clearer
understanding of the costs of areas
of activity in order to demonstrate
the link between resources
and results, and help 1o inform
decisions about how resources
are prioritised.

2. The force should use more
comparative information to
improve the quality and balance of
performance reporting.

3. The foree needs to develop
outcome-facused equalities
measures in order to assess the
impact of its work in this area,

4. The force needs to further
analyse the reasons for the
increase in complaints and racially
motivated crime and respond
accordingly and assess whether it
is deploying resources appropriately
on tackling controlled drugs and
road traffic accidents.

Page 84

147. Grampian Joint Police Board and
Grampian Police must work together
and take shared responsibility

in order to deliver best value to

the communities of Aberdeen,
Aberdeenshire, and Moray. The

table below sets out the key areas
whare the force and the board need
to improve.

Joint improvements

1. The board and the force should
review the content of the annual
public performance report to
ensure that it provides a
summary of the board's
activities and its impact.

2. The board and the force should
develop a strategic approach to
sustainability to ensure that the
economic, social and environmental
aspecis are considered.



Appendix 1.

Expectations of police authorities

The Scottish Government has issued
two main sourcas of guidance on the
role of etected members and police
autharities:

* Circular 11/2003, /mplementing
Best Value in the Scottish Police
Service, issued in December 2003.

s Guidance for Members of Police
Authorities and Joint Folice
Boards, issued in June 2007.

Taken together, these two docurnents
set out six main areas of activity for
police authorities and their members:

* Police authorities need to pursue
best value in tandem with chief
constables who are responsible
for oolice operations in their force.
Members of the police authorities
should take joint responsibility for
the overarching plan to achieve
best vaiue and other duties in the
force, and work with the chief
constable to ensure that it is
carried out effectively.

* Best value requires elected
members and senior managers o
develop a vision of how best value
will contribute to the corporate
goals of the authorities, inform
the direction of services and be
communicated to staff.

+ Police authorities are expected to
demonstrate responsivenass to
the needs of the public and other
stakeholders. Plans, priorities and
actions should be informed by an
understanding of those needs.
Palice authorities may make
clear publicly how they engage
and work with chief constables
delivering, and reporiing on, best
value. Thay have a particular role
to play in ensuring effective public

consultation on aspects of policing.

it is a matter for each authority
o determine how it fulfils these
roles. However, one gption might
be for the police authorities to
contribute to and endorse the
chief constable's annual plan.

Members of the police authorities
should be able to demonstrate that
they are making the best use of
public resources and demonstrate
an approach to review that is
rigorous, robust and covers all
aspects of their work.

Police authorities need to make
sure that the force collects and
reports good-quality performance
data to them. Police authorities
should analyse the data and any
accompanying commentary, They
may then want to investigate
further by asking questions of

the chief constable as part of a
continuous discussion and review
of force performance.

Page 85

31



Grampian Police and
Grampian Joint Police Board

Best Value Audit and Inspection

If you require this publication in an alternative format
and/or language, please contact us to discuss your needs.

You can also download this document in PDF,
black and white PDF or RTF at:
www.audit-scotland.gov.uk

HAS IHSPECTORATE OF
CONSTABULARY FOR SCOTLANG

ISBN 978 1907916 16 8

Printed on Revive 100 Uncoated, a Forest Stewardship Council (FSC) certified recycled

grade containing 100% post consumer waste and manufactured at a mill certified with -
180 14001 environmental management standard. The pulp used in this product is O mcgf'led ‘
bleached using an Elemental Chlorine Free process (ECF). i




Agenda ltem 11

GRAMPIAN
P-O-L-

Keeping oar commuanities sare

COMMITTEE: GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD

DATE: 04/03/2011

TITLE OF REPORT: Quarter 3 Force Performance Report

REPORT NUMBER «ReportNumber»

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 The Force Quarter 3 Performance Report summarises the Force's
performance during quarter 3 2010/11. The report should be considered in
conjunction with 'Sustaining and Developing our Platform for Success
2010/11', which outlines the Force's strategic direction for the fiscal year.

1.2 The report complies with auditors' requirements to provide updates on
performance against indicators and presents information in line with previous
reports submitted to the Grampian Joint Police Board.

1.3  The statistical information contained in this report and the means of accessing
more detailed information, will be made available to the public on the Force
website (www.grampian.police.uk).

1.4  Due to the timelines of previous Grampian Joint Police Board meetings and
the publication of performance reports, the Quarter 2, which the Board has
been unsighted on, has now been superseded by the Quarter 3 report, which
contains data from the Quarter 2 report. The Quarter 2 report is available for
any members if required.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

This report is submitted for the approval of the Grampian Joint Police Board.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

4, SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT
N/A

5. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

N/A

Page 87



REPORT

Performance Summary

Our overall performance in relation to crimes and offences in quarter 3 has
improved since quarter 2.

Service Response

The way in which Grampian Police responds to demands continues to be
positive. The majority (97.8%) of 999 calls continue to be answered within 10
seconds. This is against a background of increasing demand, with over
14,000, 999 calls received in quarter 3.

We continue to respond to emergency incidents within the target times of 10
minutes in Aberdeen and 25 minutes in Aberdeenshire and Moray.

Complaints at Low Level
The overall number of allegations dealt with involving on and off duty Police
Officers and Police Staff is at the lowest level since the start of 2009/10.

Public Satisfaction

Satisfaction with initial Police contact has reduced slightly in quarter 3, as has
satisfaction with action taken to resolve enquiries. However, the number of
survey respondents who were kept adequately informed on progress has
increased, along with satisfaction by treatment from Officers who attended.

Recorded Crime Down Compared to Last Quarter

Compared to quarter 2 this year, recorded crime has fallen in all crime groups,
with detection rates improving for crimes of violence, dishonesty, fireraising,
reckless and malicious conduct and miscellaneous offences.

A number of external factors such as disclosure legislation, solicitor access for
suspects and the introduction of the Sexual Offences (Scotland) Act 2009
have, and will continue to impact on detection rates. To alleviate this impact,
we will continue to maximise on all investigative opportunities to improve
detection rates.

Reduction in Antisocial Behaviour Community Crimes

Compared to quarter 2 this year, ASB community crimes have reduced by
25%. Detection rates have also improved and are at the highest level since
quarter 4 last year. To combat antisocial behaviour over the festive season
we ran a number of operations and initiatives throughout the Force, which
resulted in reduced ASB and violence. The severe weather in quarter 3 may
also have impacted on the number of crimes occurring. Throughout the year,
Local Policing Teams have strived to reduced antisocial behaviour within local
communities.

Vandalism in quarter 3 is shown in green for the first time in 3 quarters, an
indication of our excellent performance.

Page 88



Organised Crime Groups Dismantled

During quarter 3, following a number of Operations targeting organised crime
groups, 7 members of one OCG were sentenced to a total of 43 years in
prison. A further operation was concluded with 18 individuals arrested and
large quantities of cash and controlled drugs seized. We will continue to
make Grampian a hostile environment for OCGs.

Serious Assaults at Lowest Level since 2007/08

The number of Serious Assaults recorded in quarter 3 reduced from quarter 2
and was the lowest quarterly figure since the start of 2007/08. Detection rates
also increased from quarter 2.

Robberies Increased

The number of Robberies has increased, whilst the detection rate has
decreased. To combat this, we will be redeploying Operation Berlin staff to
maximise detections in coming months.

Higher Number of Fatal Road Collisions

Eleven adults lost their lives on Grampian's roads in quarter 3. This is the
highest number since the start of 2009/10. We will continue to educate
drivers in a bid to reduce these fatalities.

Fewer Police Officers and Police Staff
Twenty one Police Officers and 25 members of Police Staff left the
organisation in quarter 3. We will work hard to ensure our performance is
maintained, despite a reduction of personnel within the organisation.

7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

Strategic Planning and Performance Unit, Development and Governance,
Grampian Police.

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS

N/A

Chief Constable
«Date»

Page 89



Page 90



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Sustaining and Developing
our Platform for Success

2010/11

Quarter 3 Peformance Report

Wi
Ib\\(\‘e '99,70
& & :
S ae % scomsn GRAMPIAN
¢ T4 ¢ POLICING +O-L-I-C-
Ma® PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK PR@elie TG ols
v
Yodtat g 90 Keoping our commanilies sare

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 91



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

1. INTRODUCTION & EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 4

1.1 Introduction
1.2 Executive Summary

2. SERVICE RESPONSE 8

2.1 Community Focus
Proportion of 999 calls answered within 10 seconds (NI) (PPR)
Time taken to respond to emergency incidents (NI) (PPR)
Handling of non-emergency calls (NI) (PPR)

2.2 Force Reputation and Standards
Complaints about Police Officers and Police Staff (NI) (PPR)
Quality of Service Complaints (NI) (PPR)
User satisfaction with service provided (NI) (PPR)

3. PUBLIC REASSURANCE & COMMUNITY SAFETY 13

3.1 Antisocial Behaviour
Number of recorded ASB community crimes and offences and detection rates (NI) (PPR)
Level of detected youth crime (NI) (PPR) (SOA)
3.2 National Security
3.3 Public Protection
Number of racist incidents, racially motivated crimes and offences and detection rates (NI)
(PPR) (SOA)
3.4 Road Casualty Reduction
Number of persons killed and injured in road accidents (NI) (PPR) (SOA)
3.5 Other Indicators :
Number of recorded crimes and offences (NI) (PPR)
Detection rate for recorded crimes and offences (NI) (PPR)
Number of Special Constables and hours they are on duty (NI) (PPR)

4. CRIMINAL JUSTICE & TACKLING CRIME 27

4.1 Serious Organised Crime & Drugs
Weight of Class A drug seizures and number of supply and possession with intent to supply
offences recorded (NI) (PPR) (SOA)

4.2 Violence (SOA)

4.3 Other Indicators
Number and percentage of reports submitted to the Procurator Fiscal within 28 calendar days
(NI) (PPR)
Number and percentage of reports submitted to the Children's Reporter within 14 calendar
days (NI) (PPR)
Use of Police Direct Measures: Antisocial Behaviour Fixed Penalty Notices, Formal Aduit
Warnings, and Restorative Justice Warning and Conference Scheme (NI) (PPR)

5. SOUND GOVERNANCE & EFFICIENCY 36

5.1 Efficiency and Productivity
Number of Police Officers and Police Staff (NI) (PPR)
Staffing profile by declared disability, ethnicity and gender (Ni)
Turnover rates for Police Officers and Police Staff (NI) (PPR)
Proportion of working time lost to sickness absence for Police Officers and Police Staff (NI)
(PPR)

5.2 Other Indicators
Value of efficiency savings generated (NI)
Expenditure on salaries, operating costs and capital (NI)
Expenditure per Resident (NI)
Proportion of salary costs accounted for by overtime (NI) (PPR)

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 92



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

6. CONTEXT INDICATORS

Number of telephone calls and incidents (NI) (PPR)
Number of sudden death reports to Procurator Fiscal (NI) (PPR)
Number of missing person incidents (NI) (PPR)

Number of Registered Sex Offenders in the community (N1) (PPR)
Number of domestic abuse incidents (NI) (PFR)

Number of problem drug users (Nf)

Nurnber of individuals broughtinto custady (NI) (PPR)

Number of Freedom of Information requests and questions (NI)

7. APPENDIX 44

7.1 Interpretation of Information
7.1.1 Force Priorities
7.1.2 National Framework Indicators (NI)
7.1.3 Local Indicators (LI)
7.1.4 Single Outcome Agreements (SOA)
7.1.5 Baselines and 'Traffic Lights'

7.2 Acronyms

7.3 Further Sources of Information

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 93



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

This report refers to quarter 3 of the financial year 2010/11 (1 October 2010 — 31 December
2010).

'Sustaining and Developing our Platform for Success' was published on 1 April 2010. It
continues to promote the Force Mission and the strategy for delivery, upon which this
Quarterly Report is focused. The Force Mission is being achieved through delivery of the
Force Priorities, which include crime/disorder and business/organisational issues.

The purpose of this report is to inform the Force Executive Board (FEB) and the Grampian
Joint Police Board (GJPB) of progress towards achieving that Mission.

This report is structured around the four 'areas of policing' identified within the Scottish
Policing Performance Framework (SPPF), i.e. Service Response, Public Reassurance and
Community Safety, Criminal Justice and Tackling Crime, and Sound Governance and
Efficiency. Together, these represent the full range of policing related activities of Grampian
Police and our partners. Each area of policing is covered by one section of this report.

The Force Priorities fit within the framework, as shown overleaf, for 2010/11. National
Indicators (NI) are included within each section of the report, as are a range of Local
Indicators (LI). Force level information is further broken down to Local Authority and lower
local levels within divisional Public Performance Reports (PPR) and these indicators are
highlighted with the PPR acronym. Further information on these, or any indicators, can be
obtained by contacting Superintendent MacColl, at Willie. MacColl@grampian.pnn.police.uk.

Where possible, indicators have been highlighted as being included in Single Outcome
Agreements (SOAs), so that progress on these can be monitored throughout the year.

As the new financial year began, the Force's 3 year average baselines and aspirational
performance levels were revised. The continuing trend of improving performance across

the Force over the last few years is contributing to making baseline and aspirational
performance even more challenging.

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 94



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Serious Organised Crime

ol|" Community " Antisocial Behaviour W Efficiency and
8 :.d_)-‘ Focus = National Security & Drugs Productivity
S = i ;Ofcet e = Public Protection * Violence
° eputation . )
w l:t Standards Road Casualty Reduction
= Complaints = Number of recorded crimes and ® Percentage of criminal = Value of efficiency * Number of
about police offences and detection rates cases dealf with in 26 savings generated by telephone calls
officers and = Number of racist incidents, racially weeks Forces and incidents
police staff motivated crimes and detection = Qverall re-conviction rate = Value of efficiency * Number of
= Quality of rates o Value of net criminal savings generated by sudden deaths
Service = Number of recorded ASB assets identified for the SPSA reported to the
complaints community crimes and offences restraint through criminal = Proportion of working Procurator
= User satisfaction and detection rates proceedings by the time lost to sickness Fiscal
® with service * Level of detected youth crime SCDEA absence ' Number of
s provided = Number of persons killed and * Number and percentage * Turnover rates for missing person
"5 A “bf’{g o injured in road accidents CF)’f reportts Sg‘bm“lteqt:? tzes po:!ce °tfﬁ‘f3fe"s and :md:nts ;
L confidence inthe | _ rocurator Fiscal within police stai = Number o
T police Offenders managed under calendar days  Fransnien slicels registered sex
c ) MAPPA who are re-convicted or P % fenders in h
= = Proportion of breach conditions * Number and percentage costs accounted for by ottenders In the
g Sashe = Perception of general crime rate in of reports submitted to the overtime GOV
o answered within ozl gr o g Children's Reporter within | w Scottish Police College | ® Number of
- 10 seconds e TR ; 14 calendar days course utilisation rate domestic abuse
z = Time taken to aﬁaj’Zf:ss/:o;ca/ Z: mog persond = Nurmber of individuals » Number of police incidents
LL respond to reported to the Procurator officers and police staff | * Numberof
g_' emergency * Level of personal and household Fiscal where proceedings | , quoeao o coaey problem drug
I7,) incidents cnrze anj{ the proportion reported were not taken dedis rgdpdl S abilit{/ users
* Handling of non- {0 8 polloe ; ) = Weight of Class A drug ethnicity and gend'er * Number of
emergency calls | * Volume of forensic services seizures and number of e carirD oy individuals
provided supply and possession salzn' g e brought into
= Number of Special Police with intent to supply iy n d ga italg custody
Constables and hours they are on offences recorded E di P » Number of
"
duty = Use of Police Direct ’ exsli):g ntrture Bey Freedom of
Measures - Information
s SPSA expenditure requests and
questions
= ASB Incidents = Local Drug Indicators = Recruitment = Number of
£ = Vandalism = Violence » Staff Performance CrimeFiles
§:] = Proactive Enforcement Operations | ®* Serious Assault = Number of
S & High Visibility Patrols * Robbery missing persons
5 « Legal Services = Use of alternatives to and levels of
c court: Undertaking Cases risk
= * Number of Drug
Q Related Deaths
S = Disclosure

Legal Services

Indicators in italics are reported on centrally by other agencies - data not available for this report.

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 95




NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Our overall performance in relation to crimes and offences in quarter 3 has improved since
quarter 2.

Service Response

The way in which Grampian Police responds to demands continues to be positive. The
majority (97.8%) of 999 calls continue to be answered within 10 seconds. This is against
a background of increasing demand, with over 14,000 999 calls received in quarter 3.

We continue to respond to emergency incidents within the target times of 10 minutes in
Aberdeen and 25 minutes in Aberdeenshire and Moray.

Complaints at Low Level
The overall number of allegations dealt with involving on and off duty Police Officers and
Police Staff is at the lowest level since the start of 2009/10.

Public Satisfaction

Satisfaction with initial Police contact has reduced slightly in quarter 3, as has satisfaction
with action taken to resolve enquiries. However, the number of survey respondents who
were kept adequately informed on progress has increased, along with satisfaction by
treatment from Officers who attended.

Recorded Crime Down Compared to Last Quarter

Compared to quarter 2 this year, recorded crime has fallen in all crime groups, with
detection rates improving for crimes of violence, dishonesty, fireraising, reckless and
malicious conduct and miscellaneous offences.

A number of external factors such as disclosure legislation, solicitor access for suspects
and the introduction of the Sexual Offences (Scotland) Act 2009 have, and will continue to
impact on detection rates. To alleviate this impact, we will continue to maximise on all
investigative opportunities to improve detection rates.

Reduction in Antisocial Behaviour Community Crimes

Compared to quarter 2 this year, ASB community crimes have reduced by 25%. Detection
rates have also improved and are at the highest level since quarter 4 last year. To combat
antisocial behaviour over the festive season we ran a number of operations and initiatives
throughout the Force, which resulted in reduced ASB and violence. The severe weather
in quarter 3 may also have impacted on the number of crimes occurring. Throughout the
year, Local Policing Teams have strived to reduced antisocial behaviour within local
communities.

Vandalism in quarter 3 is shown in green for the first time in 3 quarters, an indication of
our excellent performance.

Organised Crime Groups Dismantled

During quarter 3, following a number of Operations targeting organised crime groups, 7
members of one OCG were sentenced to a total of 43 years in prison. A further operation
was concluded with 18 individuals arrested and large quantities of cash and controlled
drugs seized. We will continue to make Grampian a hostile environment for OCGs.

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 96



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Serious Assaults at Lowest Level since 2007/08

The number of Serious Assaults recorded in quarter 3 reduced from quarter 2 and was the
lowest quarterly figure since the start of 2007/08. Detection rates also increased from
quarter 2.

Robberies Increased

The number of Robberies has increased, whilst the detection rate has decreased. To
combat this, we will be redeploying Operation Berlin staff to maximise detections in
coming months.

Higher Number of Fatal Road Collisions

Eleven adults lost their lives on Grampian's roads in quarter 3. This is the highest number
since the start of 2009/10. We will continue to educate drivers in a bid to reduce these
fatalities.

Fewer Police Officers and Police Staff
Twenty one Police Officers and 25 members of Police Staff left the organisation in quarter

3. We will work hard to ensure our performance is maintained, despite a reduction of
personnel within the organisation.

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 7

Page 97



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

The area of Service Response relates to how Grampian Police respond to the public.
The priorities identified to deliver a high standard of Service Response are Community
Focus and Force Reputation & Standards.

¢ Engage and work with partners and the community, to deliver improved policing services
based on the principles of a community focused approach.

Proportion of 999 calls answered within 10 seconds (NI) (PPR)

Answered within 10

seconds

L‘;Aa Answered within 10
econds

13205 | 12854 | 13851

94.5% | 96.4% | 96.2% | 98.1% | 97.1% | 97.6% | 97.8%
' National Target — 90%.

The percentage of 999 calls answered within 10 seconds increased again in quarter 3 to
97.8%. This is the second highest level since the start of 2009/10.

97.8% of all 999 calls were answered within 10 seconds.

Time taken to respond to emergency incidents (NI) (PPR) (In Grampian Police, this
refers to 'Grade 1' calls where an emergency response is required)

Emergencyincic :

ITotal number of emergency

response incidents

[Total number responded to

within Force target response | 1172 1093 1099 988 1168 1138 1065

time*

% responded to within Force

target response time

f‘%’;’ﬁt%i /rse:g)on”ds;flme 6m34s | 6m32s | 6m12s | 5m59s | 6m16s | 6m13s | 6m25s
*The Force target response times for Grade 1 incidents are 10 minutes for Aberdeen Division and 25 minutes for

Aberdeenshire and Moray Divisions.

**This relates to the average response times for all Grade 1 incidents as per the National Indicator. In quarter 3, the

Aberdeen Division average response time was 4m58s, for Aberdeenshire it was 9m21s and it was 7m23s in Moray

Division.

1277 | 1189 | 1185 1061 1268 1221 1148

91.8% | 91.9% | 92.7% | 93.1% | 92.1% | 93.2% | 92.8%

92.8% of emergency response incidents were responded to within the Force target time in
quarter 3. The average response time has increased by 12 seconds to 6 minutes, 25
seconds. All Divisions average response times were within the targets of 10 minutes for
Aberdeen Division and 25 minutes for Aberdeenshire and Moray Divisions.

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 98



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

92.8% of emergency incidents were responded to within Force target
response times.

Handling of non-emergency calls (NI) (PPR)

L

on-r cIIs — - ] N A TRy
eaalved 94258 92460 86004 82331 93437 90803 84561
Non-emergency calls

P - 91470 89841 84078 80981 91993 88555 82978
% Answered 97.0% 97.2% 97.8% 98.4% 98.5% 97.5% 98.1%
Number of calls

el e e 2788 2619 1926 1350 1444 2248 1583
% Abandoned/lost 3.0% 2.8% 2.2% 1.6% 1.5% 2.5% 1.9%

Number of calls answered
within 40 seconds 84152 81438 79116 78052 85449 82919 78930

% of non-emergency calls
answered within 40 89.3% | 88.1% | 92.0% 948% | 91.5% | 91.3% | 93.3%
seconds
This indicator relates to calls handled by the Force Service Centre (FSC) and not those received directly at stations.
A call is considered answered when a member of staff speaks to the caller.
It has been agreed nationally by practitioners that targets for answering calls are for 92% of all calls to be answered and for
90% of calls answered to be answered in less than 40 seconds.

In quarter 3, 98.1% of non emergency calls were answered, which is an increase of 0.6%
compared to quarter 2. 93.3% of these calls were answered within 40 seconds.

98.1% of non-emergency calls were answered, with 93.3% answered within
40 seconds.

During quarter 3 the FSC dealt with 4088 emails, a decrease of 18.9% from quarter 2. As
mentioned in the quarter 2 report, an internal counting disparity accounted for the high
number of emails in quarter 2. This disparity has been resolved and the quarter 3 figure
appears to be more comparable with the quarter 1 figure of 4533.

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 9

Page 99



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

¢ Maintain professional and ethical standards of behaviour from all our staff in order to
improve the delivery of quality policing services and to enhance public trust and
confidence.

Complaints about Police Officers and Police Staff (NI) (PPR) and Quality of Service
Complaints (NI) (PPR)

Complaints per 10,000 population** 2.96 2.95 2.96 2.82 3.14 2.62 272

Number of on duty closed allegations 239 208 211 293 216 194 185

Number of off duty closed allegations 8 6 7 9 9 7 1
Number of closed allegations where

ction is taken* 67 57 69 46 59 34 25
Number of Quality of Service closed
allegations 78 63 66 78 35 42 36

Number of Quality of Service closed
lallegations per 10,000 population** 1.45 1.17 1.22 1.45 0.64 0.77 0.66
Complaints within this indicator refer to on duty, off duty and quality of service complaints
*Action includes action by Crown Office Procurator Fiscal Service, action in terms of police conduct regulations/staff
discipline procedures or action outwith police conduct regulations/staff discipline procedure,
e.g., diversion to training or redeployment.
** Population in Grampian 2009/10 — 539630, 2010/11 - 544980

Amendments to the SPPF for 2010/11 reflect that the total number of complaints now
includes Quality of Service allegations, as well as on and off duty complaints. As such,
the figures for total complaints have been updated for previous quarters to reflect the new
counting rules. Furthermore, as detailed in the 2009/10 Annual Report, complaints are
now counted per 10,000 population rather than per 10,000 incidents. This will provide a
more balanced picture of complaints across Scotland.

In quarter 3, 2.72 complaints per 10,000 population were recorded. This is an increase of
0.1 per 10,000 population when compared to quarter 2 and the second lowest figure since
quarter 1 2009/10.

The number of on and off duty closed allegations are at the lowest levels since the start of
2009/10 at 185 and 1 respectively. The number of closed allegations where action is
taken has also reduced from 34 in quarter 2 to 25 in quarter 3 and is at the lowest level
since the start of 2009/10.

User satisfaction with service provided (Nl) (PPR)

Statistics on the level of service user satisfaction are required to be reported on an annual
basis to the Scottish Government and other authorities. Gathering this data involves
telephone surveys conducted by the FSC, who aim to carry out 200 surveys each month
(600 per quarter) of individuals who have been in contact with Grampian Police. Statistics
for previous quarters are regularly updated as surveys for previous quarters are
completed. Statistics for the current quarter will also change in subsequent quarters once
all surveys are completed.

10
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 100



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

The figures provided below relate to surveys conducted with individuals who contacted
Grampian Police between July and September 2010 with the survey results compiled

during quarter 3.

Of the 672 people who were contacted and asked to participate in the survey, 665 agreed,
giving a response rate of 99.0%. This is an increase of 1.8% when compared to quarter 2.

a2 '1_‘_ Q3
1-GOon | AP . 11 5k S AR 10;11 1m11
Very SatISerd 56.1% 58.7% 58.6% 56.8% 58.7% | 52. 5%
Fairly satisfied 35.3% 35.1% 357% | 37.7% | 36.3% | 41.4%
Neither Satisfied nor Dissatisfied 3.4% 2.4% 2.0% 2.1% 2.4% 2.2%
Fairly Dissatisfied 2.6% 1.7% 1.5% 1.4% 1.3% 1.9%
Very Dissatisfied 1.6% 1.8% 1.4% 1.2% 0.8% 1.5%
No response 0.9% 0.3% 0.8% 0.8% 0.5% 0.5%

Satisfaction with initial Police contact in quarter 3 was at 93.8%.

from quarter 2.

This is a reduction of 1.2%

1 55.9% |

ot ' 10 1
Very satisfied 52.7% 53.2% 55.4% 58.6% | 55.3%

Fairly satisfied 31.9% 30.3% 31.3% | 30.3% | 34.7% | 288% | 31.7%
Neither Satisfied nor Dissatisfied 5.9% 5.7% 4.9% 4.4% 3.0% 3.7% 4.8%
Fairly Dissatisfied 4.4% 5.0% 3.6% 3.8% 3.5% 3.5% 3.3%
Very Dissatisfied 3.1% 3.3% 3.6% 2.4% 2.7% 2.4% 3.5%
No response 2.0% 2.7% 1.2% 0.5% 0.8% 21% 0.8%

87.6% of respondents were satisfied with action taken to resolve the enquiry. This is
compared to 88.3% in quarter 2

PKEpE adequatery infonned CORS ot A G2 ] 3
Cprogress ' . =l B/10.1/.100/10 1" 09/10 L A0M1. L 10/11 401
Yes 34. 2% 35.2% 35 4% | 35.3% | 39.6% | 41.6%
No 22.9% 23.6% 21.8% | 21.9% | 21.2% | 19.7%
Not applicable 42.9% 41.2% 426% | 42.4% | 38.9% | 38.5%
No response 0% 0% 0.2% 0.4% 0.3% 0.2%

Of those relevant survey respondents asked about being kept adequately informed on the
progress of their enquiry, 41.6% answered yes. This is an improvement of 2% from quarter

2 and the first time the percentage has been above 40%.

P ]| BT A | e {13 1] A
5 62.1% 61.6% 65. 5%
Fairly satisfied 27.7% 31.0% 32.3% 28.5%
Neither Satisfied nor Dissatisfied 3.0% 3.3% 2.7% 2.3%
Fairly Dissatisfied 2.5% 2.1% 1.4% 1.7%
Very Dissatisfied 1.4% 0.8% 1.5% 1.2%
No response 0.8% 0.7% 0.5% 0.8%

The number of respondents who were satisfied with their treatment by staff at initial contact
decreased by 2% in quarter 3 to 92%.

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 101

11



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

=

66.4% |

Very satisfied 67.6% 68.0% 62.8% 69.8% | 57.5% | 71.7%

Fairly satisfied 25.2% 23.7% 28.5% 22.9% | 34.2% | 21.6% | 28.4%
Neither Satisfied nor Dissatisfied 3.1% 2.4% 2.5% 4.1% 2.5% 2.3% 1.3%
Fairly Dissatisfied 1.5% 2.1% 2.8% 1.3% 1.8% 2.7% 1.0%
Very Dissatisfied 1.5% 1.4% 2.5% 0.3% 2.9% 0.7% 1.6%
No response 1.1% 2.4% 0.9% 1.6% 1.1% 1.0% 1.3%

The level of satisfaction with treatment by Officers who attended increased from 93.3% in
quarter 2 to 94.8% in quarter 3, an increase of 1.5%.

S Sty 0 0 a ar 0 a &
s s b B D910 D914 N9/10 DA/ | i [
] e
Very satisfied 54.4% 53.0% 54.9% 57.8% | 54.0% | 60.1% | 57.9%
Fairly satisfied 31.1% 31.5% 328% | 28.6% | 34.5% | 28.8% | 29.2%
Neither Satisfied nor Dissatisfied 6.1% 5.4% 5.8% 6.2% 3.6% 5.1% 4.9%
Fairly Dissatisfied 5.0% 6.2% 3.2% 3.5% 3.6% 3.5% 4.4%
Very Dissatisfied 2.2% 2.5% 3.2% 3.6% 3.2% 2.0% 3.1%
No response 1.2% 1.3% 0.2% 0.3% 1.1% 0.5% 0.5%

Some of these statistics may have been updated from those recorded in previous reports.

Overall satisfaction with the way in which Grampian Police dealt with the matter reduced
from 88.9% in quarter 2 to 87.1% in quarter 3.

93.8% of survey respondents were satisfied with initial Police contact.

87.6% of survey respondents were satisfied with actions taken by Police to
resolve the enquiry.

92.0% of survey respondents were satisfied with treatment by staff at initial
contact.

94.8% of survey respondents were satisfied with treatment by Officers who
attended.

87.1% of survey respondents were satisfied with the overall way in which
Grampian Police dealt with the matter.

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 102



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

The area of Public Reassurance and Community Safety includes proactive and
neighbourhood based work areas. Priorities identified in this area of policing are:
Antisocial Behaviour, National Security, Public Protection and Road Casualty Reduction.

e Deal with unacceptable conduct, which negatively impacts on the quality of life within
the communities we serve, in conjunction with Local Authority strategies.

Number of recorded ASB community crimes’ and offences and detection rates (NI)
(PPR) (SOA)

Kt ey
ARt IRl

E:r;%%aaﬁd“fgﬁggm“”“y/ 2488 | 2554 | 2300 | 2154 | 2386 | 2024 | 1242
Acts directed at people 293 374 366 349 390 361 378
Environmental damage 2248 | 1842 | 1611 | 1584 | 2066 | 1820 | 1553
Misuse of public space 92 133 99 93 130 80 39

Total 5121 | 4903 | 4466 | 4180 | 4972 | 4285 | 3212

A ¥

Disregard for commu

Bersonal welboirg iy 822% | 78.4% | 82.1% | 81.3% | 76.1% | 81.6% | 90.4%
Acts directed at people 62.5% | 55.3% | 57.7% | 625% | 54.6% | 55.1% | 66.7%
Environmental damage 293% | 26.5% | 29.5% | 28.4% | 30.5% | 28.2% | 33.0%
Misuse of public space 97.8% | 101.5% | 100.0% | 98.9% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 97.4%
Total 58.1% | 57.8% | 61.5% | 60.1% | 56.1% | 57.0% | 60.0%

The number of ASB Community Crimes in quarter 3 decreased by 25.0% (1073
offences) when compared to quarter 2. This is the lowest recorded figure since the
SPPF commenced in 2007/08.

The quarter 3 detection rate for ASB Community Crimes is 60.0%. This is an
improvement of 3% from quarter 2.

These reductions may be due to a number of factors including focused initiatives, severe
weather and increased Police presence in identified hotspots over the festive period.

During quarter 3, we focused on reducing crime over the festive period. In Aberdeen
Division, Operation Oak ran for six weeks targeting anti-social behaviour and violence.
Antisocial behaviour was impacted with reductions in Breach of the Peace, Vandalism

' ASB Community Crimes and Offences are split into 4 headings; Disregard for community/personal wellbeing, Acts
directed at people, Environmental damage and Misuse of public space. Further information on these can be found
within the SPPF at hitp://www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Justice/public-safety/Police/Performance.

13
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 103



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

and Urinating in Public. The success of the Operation was assisted by the support of
partners including Street Pastors, Taxi Marshals and the Aberdeen City Centre
Association.

Within Aberdeenshire Division, a Safer Streets campaign ran over the festive season
under the banner of Operation Whalsay. Extra patrols, funded by Aberdeenshire Council
and the Scottish Government, tackled antisocial behaviour and disorder.

In Moray Division, Operation Star targeted shoplifting during daytime hours and focused
on antisocial behaviour, violence and alcohol related disorder in the evenings and night
time periods. Again the partnership effort funded by the Scottish Government and Moray
Alcohol and Drug Partnership, saw reductions in shoplifting and violent crime, as a result
of partnership and incorporated the work of Taxi Marshals, Red Star Ambulances and
members of the licensed trade.

Roads Policing Officers contributed to reducing ASB in quarter 3 by issuing 22 ASB
warnings to drivers who drove in a careless or inconsiderate manner. They also seized
98 vehicles across the Force. These seizures were in relation to uninsured vehicles and
where ASB warnings had not been complied with.

ASB Incidents (LI) (SOA)

|= ! Xl

Aberdeen 4601 4675 3702 3388 4111 3947 3901
Aberdeenshire 1992 2118 1852 1628 1980 2014 1972
Moray 1326 1207 1039 904 1076 1061 1088
Total 7919 8000 6593 5920 7167 7022 6961

ASB Incidents are a count of Incidents recorded on the STORM Command and Control system under the Incident Class
Descriptions: Alcohol in a Public Place, Breach of the Peace, Disturbance, Drunk Man, Drunk Female, Neighbour
Dispute, Noisy Music, Underage Drinking, Youth Disorder. From 03/11/2010 ASB Incidents counts Disturbance,

Drinking in Public, Neighbour Dispute, Noise and Public Nuisance.

Due to changes in the recording of incidents on STORM MA which came into Force on 3
November 2010, the calculation of ASB incidents has been amended and now includes
incidents of disturbance. As such, the figures for previous quarters have also been
amended.

The number of ASB incidents recorded in quarter 3 decreased by 61 (0.8%) from quarter
2, with decreases across all Divisions.

14
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 104



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Vandalism (LI) (SOA)

, 3000 40%
@ 2500 S
c 2000 a.__‘___,a./ __‘_“w__,. 30%
= 25%
o 1500 20%
— 0,

@ 1000 e
£ 10%
‘= 500 5%

© 0%

2007 2007 2007 2007 2008 2008 2008 2008 2009 2009 2009 2009 2010 2010 2010
Q Q@2 @B o4 Q1 Q@2 Q@ M4 U @2 Q@ M A Q@ a3

Crime Detected Fiscal Year Quarter

WSO MO 2 N Q3
S B ) R

| 1401

Recorded

Detected

Detection Rate

The number of vandalisms recorded by the Force reduced by 272 offences (16.3%)
compared to quarter 2. This is the lowest quarterly level since the start of 2007/08 and
the figure is shown in green for the first time in 3 quarters. The detection rate has
increased 6.6% since quarter 2 to 34.0%. This is the highest detection rate for vandalism
in 2 years. A focus by Divisions on detection opportunities through TTCG meetings has
contributed to this improvement in performance.

15
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 105

ajey uonoIaleg



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Level of detected youth crime (NI) (PPR) (SOA)

Aberdeen 716 802 683 691 840 64 . 535

Aberdeenshire 349 363 333 320 433 296 211
Moray 249 227 168 219 209 168 109
Total 1314 1392 1184 1230 1482 1113 855

This indicator is a count of the number of crimes and offences (Crime Groups 1-6) committed by children and young
people (aged 8-17 inclusive), i.e. where a child or young person appears as status ‘accused".

The figures for youth crime in each quarter are dependent on the number of crimes
detected. Figures therefore can fluctuate across quarters as crimes are detected.

The number of detected crimes and offences committed by children and young people in

quarter 3 is 855. The quarter 2 figure increased from 882 to 1113 as more crimes were
detected.

]

2210111 @3 10/11

B S | |
Aberdeen | 511 533 | 502 | 486 | 511 | 445 | 353
Aberdeenshire 341 | 300 | 265 | 282 | 403 | 259 | 157
Moray 192 | 178 | 137 | 166 | 168 | 120 89
Total 1044 | 1011 | 904 | 934 | 1082 | 824 | 599

This indicator is a count of the number of children and young people (aged 8-17 inclusive) who committed crimes
(Crime Groups 1-6) i.e. where a child or young person appears as status ‘accused".

The number of children and young persons responsible for committing crimes in quarter
3 was 599. Previous experience has highlighted that this recorded figure increased with
the passage of time and completion of Police enquiries. It is therefore assessed that the
current quarter 3 figure will similarly increase.

16
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 106



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

e Counter the threat from Terrorism and Domestic Extremism.

The UK Government long term strategy for countering International Terrorism,
CONTEST 2, aims to reduce the risk from International Terrorism and to allow people to
go about their daily lives freely and with confidence. The strategy is divided into the 4
strands of Prevent, Pursue, Protect and Prepare.

Prevent - terrorism by tackling its causes and the radicalisation of individuals

During quarter 3, the Home Office conducted its previously publicised review of the
Prevent strand of the CONTEST strategy. The results of the review, which involved the
Scottish Government and other CONTEST Scotland Board partners are expected in the
forthcoming quarter.

Activity with Multi Agency Delphinus Groups has continued in quarter 3, with both the
Aberdeen and Aberdeenshire groups meeting. A representative of the Aberdeen
Mosque and Islamic Centre attended an Aberdeen Delphinus Group meeting.

A Workshop to Raise Awareness of Prevent (WRAP) event was held at Banff and
Buchan College and commitment to host other events has been received from Aberdeen
and Aberdeenshire local authorities, Robert Gordon University, Aberdeen College and
HMP Aberdeen. Following on from Aberdeen National Front (NF) leafleting activities
around Northfield Academy, Harlaw Academy and Aberdeen Grammar School, WRAP
events are scheduled to take place at those schools, along with St Machar Academy
during quarter 4.

Pursue - terrorists and those who sponsor them

During quarter 3, BAA Aberdeen announced plans to commence work on the runway
extension at Aberdeen Airport, which will commence during 2011. Following the
announcement, the environmental group 'Plane Stupid' identified Aberdeen Airport as a
legitimate target for direct action. There is no information to suggest any planned action,
however this will continue to be monitored by Force Special Branch and Aberdeen
Division.

Protect — potential targets of terrorism

Counter Terrorism Security Advisors (CTSAs) participated in a counter terrorism exercise
at St Fergus Gas Terminal hosted by one of the terminal operators. CTSAs were also
involved in Exercise Warrior at St Fergus. This exercise was based on a bomb threat at
St Fergus.

Joint briefings have been conducted by CTSAs with Ministry of Defence Police for Force
Control Room and Force Service Centre supervisors.

17
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 107



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Prepare — to respond to the consequences of a terrorist incident, in order that any
disruption is minimised

Work has continued with the local business community to raise awareness of counter

terrorism issues through the CTSAs. A number of Project Griffin? and Argus3 events

have taken place during quarter 3, including an event with a number of security

representatives from locally based oil companies. This has enhanced partnership

preparedness and activity to counter threats.

e Safeguard children, young persons and vulnerable adults, from risk of physical,
emotional and sexual abuse or neglect and effectively manage offenders through
the development of internal and partnership processes.

Adult Protection

All Constables and Sergeants in Force have completed the Adult Support and Protection
Computer Based Training package. Adult Protection aide memoirs have been circulated
to staff. A call handling guide for FSC has been developed and training is being
delivered to support FSC and FCR staff in responding appropriately to adult and child
protection and domestic abuse issues.

A card to support improved emergency response to carers and cared for persons has
been re-launched by Voluntary Service Aberdeen (VSA) and Grampian Police. The card
is to allow members of the emergency services immediate access to individual's details,
should their carer be unable to communicate that they are responsible for the care of a
person within the community. A similar card will be held by the cared for person, should
they be unable to communicate that they are being cared for. The aim is to provide
faster response rates for Officers and improved outcomes for carers and vulnerable
adults.

Domestic Abuse
£6500 of funding from the Fairer Scotland Fund has been secured by Aberdeen Division
for the purchase of protective equipment for victims of domestic abuse.

The Public Protection Unit (PPU) has been working with the Force Training Unit to
develop public protection training for Probationers. Further work is also being carried out
in relation to public protection training for line managers. We have been delivering public
protection training inputs at the Scottish Police College and these will be developed
further at a local level.

A multi agency Forced Marriage and Honour Based Violence event is being planned by
the Domestic Abuse Training Consortium due to the increase in such incidents within the
Force area. This event which will raise awareness of these incidents across our partners
will take place during quarter 4.

2 Project Griffin is an internationally acclaimed Counter Terrorism protective security initiative aimed at the business,
retail and commercial communities, with the aim of providing an understanding of terrorism and extremism and the
g)ractical measures that can be taken to counter this in our communities.

Project Argus is a National Counter Terrorism Security Office initiative, exploring ways to prevent, handle and recover
from a terrorist attack, by taking businesses through a simulated terrorist attack.

18
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 108



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

e Achieve a steady reduction in the numbers of those killed and seriously injured,
with the ultimate vision of a future where no one is killed on the roads in
Aberdeen, Aberdeenshire and Moray and the injury rate is much reduced.

ACPOS Scottish Road Policing Framework
The ACPOS Scottish Road Policing Framework was published in 2009. Based on five
pillars; education, enforcement, engineering, encouragement and evaluation, the

framework aims to reduce deaths and injuries on Scotland's roads by 2020.

Earlier this year, the Scottish Government announced new Road Casualty Targets to
be reached by 2020, with a progress check in 2015. These are:

e Fatal Casualties 30% reduction by 2015, 40% reduction by 2020.
e Serious Casualties 43% reduction by 2015, 55% reduction by 2020.
¢ Slight Casualties 10% reduction by 2020.

o Child Fatalities 35% reduction by 2015, 50% reduction by 2020.
e Child Serious Casualties 50% reduction by 2015, 65% reduction by 2020.

An update on progress in relation to the Scottish Government road casualty targets will
be provided in the 2010/11 Annual Report.

Quarter 3 saw the conclusion of the motorcycle safety initiative, Operation Zenith. As
well as assisting in the 22% reduction of all motorcycle casualties, Zenith also received
national recognition from the Scottish Policing Awards and the Scottish Society for the
Prevention of Accidents.

During December the Force participated in the ACPOS traditional Festive Safety
Campaign, targeting drink and drug driving offences. The campaign involved a number
of pro-active enforcement initiatives, including multi-Officer vehicle check points at high
profile locations. Drink driving offences reduced from 57 to 48 when compared to the
same period in 2009.

The heavy snowfall during quarter 3 presented roads authorities with considerable
challenges in trying to keep roads open. To support this, the Scottish Government
provided the services of a heavy vehicle recovery unit to assist large goods vehicles,
which were struggling on the roads and impeding traffic flow. The Grampian deployment
was located on the A96 near Huntly and was used on one occasion.

The Roads Policing Unit worked alongside other departments within the Force and
ACPOS Road Policing to ensure the 'safe winter driving message' was provided to north
east motorists throughout the bad weather. During such periods, it is essential that
accurate information is supplied to motorists, reflecting the road conditions and providing
enough detail to allow motorists to make informed decisions about travelling. As a result,
Traffic Scotland and ACPOS have developed the Traffic Winter Warning Message
strategy, which provides a staged response in media messages, ranging from 'travel with
caution' to 'avoid travelling on the roads'. This process allows motorists to make more
informed decision regarding their travel and was carried out in an attempt to reduce

19
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 109



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

collisions and incidents on the roads.

Number of persons killed and injured in road accidents (NI) (PPR) (SOA)

\Serious Injury Collisions 69 82 77 49 65 86 59
[Slight Injury Collisions 254 237 269 198 178 223 184
[Total Collisions 328 328 352 253 252 317 253
Adults Killed 5 10 6 8 9 9 11
Adults Seriously Injured 69 98 93 51 71 97 66
Adults with Slight Injuries 307 280 328 237 211 244 238
Children Killed 0 1 0 0 0 0 0
Children Seriously Injured 3 7 7 6 3 9 6
Children with Slight Injuries 28 30 20 19 15 45 18
Total KSI 77 116 106 65 83 115 83
ol lllr;j’usri"e:h(gatal, 412 | 426 | 454 | 321 | 309 | 404 | 330

In quarter 3, 10 fatal injury collisions occurred, resulting in 11 adult fatalities. This is the
highest number of fatal collisions and adult fatalities since the start of 2009/10.
Compared to quarter 3 last year, fatal collisions increased by 4 and adult fatalities by 5.

Despite the increase in fatalities, the number of serious and slight injury collisions have
decreased in quarter 3 compared to quarter 2, which has resulted in reductions in serious
and slight injuries in adults and children.

Total injuries in quarter 3 (fatal, serious and slight) has decreased to 339, a reduction of
16.1% compared to quarter 2.

Compared to quarter 3 2009/10, the total number of collisions has reduced
by 28.1% and the number of injuries has reduced by 25.3%.

20
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 110



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Proactive enforcement operations & high visibility directed patrols (LI)

Operations 19 21 27 21 16 14 12
Local Contributory Offences 29 14 53 4 37 2 0

Other Offences 138 153 114 150 84 65 100
Educated 5 277 608 168 422 759 18

Local Contributory Offences 57 8 1 6 3 6 9
Other Offences 2151 116 148 259 319 638 160
Educated 2381 621 561 741 651 810 481
Injury Collisions None None |2 Serious| 1 Fatal |1 Serious|t Serious|1 Serious

This quarter has seen a reduction of 268 hours spent on patrol, along with a reduction in

the number of offences detected. The lengthy periods of adverse weather throughout the
latter part of the quarter reduced the time available for Officers to spend on patrol, as
time was spent assisting motorists.

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 111

21



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Number of recorded crimes and offences (NI) (PPR)

1 (6210111 (03 1011

1047 | 1698 : | 1643
Group 5 1322 | 1463 | 1255 | 1501 | 1643 | 1489 | 1192
Group 6 4951 | 5048 | 4772 | 4558 | 5200 | 4663 | 4425
Group 7* 8039 | 7487 | 6164 | 7304 | 9439 | 8816 | 6278

*Group 7 includes both recorded offences on CrimeFile. Vehicle Penalty and Fixed Penalty Offences (VPFPQ) and
Pensys statistics — i.e. Road Traffic Fixed Penalty Offences.

Group 1 - Crimes of Violence

The number of recorded crimes of violence has fallen for the second quarter in a row.
Compared to quarter 2, the figure has reduced by 17 crimes (8.4%) and is very similar to
the numbers recorded in quarters 3 and 4 last year.

Group 2 — Crimes of Indecency

On 1st December 2010, the Sexual Offences (Scotland) Act 2009, came into Force
changing the way crimes of indecency are recorded across Scotland. As a result of the
widening of the definition of Rape, it is anticipated that the number of recorded Rapes will
increase.

Whilst Operation Begonia4 continues during quarter 3, group 2 crimes of indecency have
increased. It is of note however, that although shown in red for the second quarter this
year, the quarter 3 figure of 241 is only 3 offences above the 3 year average.

Group 3 - Crimes of Dishonesty
Crimes of dishonesty reduced by 126 (3.1%) in quarter 3. This is the lowest figure for the
year so far.

Group 4 - Fire-raising, Malicious and Reckless Conduct (inciuding Vandalism)

In quarter 3, 286 (14.8%) fewer group 4 crimes were recorded than in quarter 2. This is
the first time the figure has been shown in green this year and is the lowest quarterly
figure recorded since the start of 2007/08. Similar to quarter 2, 97.2% of this reduction is
made up by fewer recorded vandalisms.

4 Operation Begonia commenced in quarter 2 and involves working alongside partner agencies to try to encourage
street workers away from prostitution. The focus is on referral to partner organisations to change their lifestyle rather
than taking enforcement action against them.

22
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 112



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Group 5 — Other Crimes (including Resisting Arrest, Obstruction, Perverting the Course of Justice,
Bail Offences and Drugs Offences)

During quarter 3, 297 (19.9%) less group 5 crimes were recorded by the Force than in

quarter 2. New counting rules in relation to drug possession and supply charges have

contributed towards this decrease.

Possession of Offensive Weapon charges have also decreased in quarter 3, from 96 to
68, a reduction of 29.2%.

Group 6 — Miscellaneous Offences (including Minor Assault, Breach of the Peace, Racially
Aggravated Offences, Licensing Offences and Telecommunications Offences)

Group 6 offences have fallen for the second quarter in a row, from 4663 in quarter 2 to
4425 in quarter 3, a reduction of 238 offences (5.1%).

Group 7 - Offences Relating to Motor Vehicles

Group 7 offences reduced from 8816 in quarter 2 to 6278 in quarter 3. Thisis a
reduction of 28.9%. This reduction is in part due to work undertaken during quarter 3 by
Roads Policing Officers on keeping motorists moving, rather than recording offences.

23

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 113



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Detection Rate for Recorded Crimes and Offences (NI) (PPR)

Group 1 | 75. 82.9% | 84.7% | 8

Group 2

iGroup 3

Group 4

*Group 7 detection rates include detected offences recorded in CrimeFile, VPFPO and Pensys statistics i.e. Road
Traffic Fixed Penalty Offences.
Note: The standard method of calculation depends on the date of detection. This counts crimes detected during the
period, even though they were recorded in a previous quarter. Hence, detection rates may occasionally exceed 100%.

The table above shows that the overall picture across all crime group detection rates has
improved since quarter 2, with 5 out of the 7 crime groups now above the baseline target.

Detection rates in quarter 3 for groups 1 violence, 3 dishonesties, 4 fire-raising, malicious
and reckless conduct and 6 miscellaneous offences are all either equal to, or better than
the detection rates recorded for the first two quarters of 2010/11.

The detection rate for group 2 crimes of indecency continues to prove challenging for the
Force.

Group 1 — Crimes of Violence

The detection rate for crimes of violence increased to 80.5% in quarter 3. Processes
have been put in place to ensure CCTV is seized at the earliest opportunity and
opportunities for the gathering of forensic evidence are maximised. This, along a
renewed emphasis on the importance of checking and reviewing CrimeFiles by
supervisors, will assist with maintaining and improving upon detection rates.

24
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 114



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Group 2 - Crimes of Indecency
The detection rate for Group 2 crimes decreased to 51.0% in quarter 3. This represents
a continual decrease since the beginning of the financial year.

When compared to quarter 4 2009/10, there has been a dip in detection rates for Rape,
Assault with intent to Rape, Indecent Assault and Lewd and Libidinous Practices.

Group 3 - Crimes of Dishonesty
The detection rate for crimes of dishonesty increased to 40.4% in quarter 3 and is now
above the baseline target. This rate is at the third highest since the start of 2007/08.

Group 4 - Fire-raising, Malicious and Reckless Conduct
The quarter 3 detection rate of 34.3% is the highest rate since quarter 3 2008/09 and is
only 0.3% away from the aspirational target of 34.6%.

Group 5 — Other Crimes
Although the group 5 detection rate has fallen by 1.1% compared to quarter 2, it is at the
second highest rate since quarter 4 2008/09.

As our detection rate for group 5 crimes is one of the lowest nationally, we have
undertaken a review of all group 5 offences and in particular, those that are undetected.
This review is likely to result in a number of recommendations, mainly relating to training,
supervision and ensuring our adherence to Scottish crime recording standards.

Group 6 — Miscellaneous Offences

For the first time since the start of the financial year, the detection rate for group 6 is
above the 3 year average and therefore, shown in amber. Compared to quarter 2, the
rate has increased by 1.7%.

Group 7 - Offences Relating to Motor Vehicles

Our consistent excellent performance in group 7 has continued in quarter 3. Although
the rate has decreased by 1.4% when compared to quarter 2, it is still above our
aspirational target and therefore, shown in green.

25
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 115



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Number of racist incidents, racially motivated crimes and offences and detection
rates (NI) (PPR) (SOA)

‘Recorded 183 245 246 205 249 187 221

Detected 127 185 175 122 165 142 123
Detection Rate 69.4% 75.5% 71.1% 59.5% 66.5% 75.9% 55.7%

Racially Motivated Crimes include the direct charges of racially aggravated conduct and harassment, and any other
crime or offence which has been perceived as racially motivated by the victim.

The number of recorded racist incidents in quarter 3 decreased to 134. This is the
lowest number since quarter 1 2009/10. Racially motivated crimes increased by 18.2%
(34 offences) when compared to quarter 2, however, the quarter 2 figure was lower
than previous quarterly figures. The detection rate decreased to 55.7%.

The number of racially motivated crimes will be monitored and reported on further in the
quarter 4 report.

Number of Special Constables and hours they are on duty (NI) (PPR)

173 182 190
7096 7893 8286

Constables
Hours they are on duty

Following on from the recruitment of 17 Special Constables in quarter 2, a further 12
were recruited in quarter 3. This brings the total number of Special Constables in the
Force to 190. During quarter 3, Special Constables spent 8286 hours on duty. This is an
increase of 393 hours (5%) from quarter 2 and equates to an average of 43.6 hours per
Special Constable. This is an increase of over 4 hours from quarter 2.

26
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 116



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

e o 1. I s L, Il £3 181 '1

The Force has 2 Control Strategy Priorities in this area — Serious Organised Crime and
Drugs and Violence.

» Reduce the harm caused by Serious Organised Crime and in particular Controlled
Drugs, within the communities we serve.

Weight of Class A drug seizures and number of supply and possession with intent
to supply offences recorded (NI) (PPR) (SOA)

Nz rl s 0109110 0200110 @309/10 04 09110 01 10/41 Q2 10/11 @3 10111
IAIl Offences for Supply and = | I 1T || I
Possession with intent to supply5 137 173 169 235 191 154 106
N1

Supply and Possession with intent to

lsupply Class A drugs® (NI) N 104 109 147 106 98 46
Weight of Class A Drug Seizures

grams) (NI) 1951.4 | 11515.2| 2691.5 | 3022.7 | 2765.0 | 4285.0 | 4689.4
Quantity of Class A Drug Seizures

tablets) (NI) 123 3 15.5 0 7 3 21
l\m:glttres of Class A Drug Seizures 310 519 1094 969 5672 557 447

Local drug indicators (LI) (SOA)

09/10| @1/40/11/ Q2 1011 @3 10/11,

upply and Posses

supply Class B&C drugs® (LI) W 0
Possession of Class A drugs (LI) 143 188 144 188 186 137 94
Possession of Class B & C drugs (LI) 251 328 256 362 418 354 267

As mentioned in the quarter 2 report, national changes to the recording of drug supply
charges took effect in September 2010. Following analysis undertaken in Force to
identify the impact these changes would have, it was predicted that supply charges would
reduce by up to 37.5% and possession charges by 12.5%. As such, baseline and
aspirational targets have been amended to reflect these changes and these continue to
be monitored through the Force Tactical Tasking and Coordinating Group (FTTCG).

In line with these changes, Supply and Possession with intent to supply charges fell by
31.1% in quarter 3 down to 106.

5 Supply and Possession with intent to supply are counted from the Crime recording system CrimeFile based on the
number of charges. To distinguish between Class A, B & C related charges involves counting charges dependent on a
drug Modifier applied to them, relevant to the drug class. In a minority of charges this has not yet been applied, due to a
number of reasons, such as awaiting the return of faboratory test results. Therefore, the sum of Class Aand B & C
drugs charges will not always equal the total number of charges.

27
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 117



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Quarter 3 saw 7 members of a West Midlands Organised Crime Group (OCG) sentenced
to a total of 43 years as a result of Crime Management Business Area (CMBA) led
Operation Charger. A further major operation was concluded in December 2010, when
18 individuals were arrested as part of Operation Dorian. Dorian targeted an OCG of
London based Jamaican individuals who were supplying Heroin and Crack Cocaine
throughout Aberdeen. £40,100 in cash and significant quantities of Heroin and Crack
Cocaine were also seized during this operation.

Other major drug seizures during quarter 3 included Heroin with a street value of
£100,500 by Officers in Aberdeen Division and Amphetamine with a street value of
£142,000 recovered by Officers in Moray Division.

Officers from the Major Investigation Teams have continued to support LPTs across the
Force throughout the quarter, assisting operations in Aberdeen, Aberdeenshire and
Moray Divisions. A number of further joint operations are planned for the forthcoming
period.

28
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 118



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

e Target violence to make Grampian a safer place to visit, work and live in.
Violence® (LI) (SOA)

250 100%
200 80%

o
o
) o o o L 0
15 60%
40%
20%
0 0%

10

5
2007 2007 2007 2007 2008 2008 2008 2008 2009 2009 2009 2009 2010 2010 2010
Q1 Q@2 Q@ ™M Q1 @ Q@ M Q1 @2 Q@ ™M o Q2 @

o O

Crime/Offences
[~

Crime Detected Fiscal Year Quarter

Recorded

Detected

Detection Rate

Crimes of violence increased by 10 in quarter 3, when compared to quarter 2, however
the figure is below the 3 year average and therefore, still shown in amber. The
detection rate has increased for the 3rd quarter in a row.

During quarter 3, the Force launched Operation Maple. Funded by the Scottish
Government Fairer Scotland Fund, the Operation has been tackling drugs, violence and
antisocial behaviour across Aberdeen Division and has been supported by various
partner organisations including Grampian Fire and Rescue, Grampian NHS and
Aberdeen City Council.

Through our FTTCG processes, considerable effort has been placed upon increasing
detection rates for crimes of violence. As mentioned earlier, the importance of seizing
CCTYV as soon as possible and ensuring the potentials for forensic evidence are
maximised has been reiterated to Officers across the Force. This focus has increased
our quarter 3 detection rate slightly.

E Priority Crimes of Violence: Murder, Culpable Homicide, Attempted Murder, Serious Assault, Assault & Robbery,
Assault w.i. Rob, Rape and Assault with Intent to Rape.

29
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 119

ajey uondvjaQg



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Serious Assault (Ll)

120%
100 100%
80%

o a
80 " = N
60%
40 40%
20 20%
0 0%

2007 2007 2007 2007 2008 2008 2008 2008 2009 2009 2009 2009 2010 2010 2010
Q Q@2 Q3 Q@ Qf Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q@2 Q@ @4 Qa1 Q2 a3

Crime Detected Fiscal Year Quarter

120

Crime/Offences
3
ajey uonosadeqg

Fiecal Year Quarter 1 [01109/10! (020810 @30p/10. Q409710 a1 101, (G2 10i14] G3 A0/

Detected . i = P 64 52
| III |

100.0%

Detection Rate

The number of Serious Assaults recorded in quarter 3 decreased for the second quarter
and the figure is now at the lowest level since the start of 2007/08. Detection rates have

increased from 76.1% in quarter 2 to 82.5% in quarter 3.

== .4 - -

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 120

30



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Robbery (LI)
, & 100%
o 70 a v &
S 60 . o 5 L 80% &
S 50 \ S o © 60% &
o 40 o - e
@ 30 40% ;
£ 20 :
= 20% B
5 i1 . ®

0 - 0%

2007 2007 2007 2007 2008 2008 2008 2008 2009 2009 2009 2009 2010 2010 2010
Q Q@2 Q@ @4 Q@ @2 Q@ @ Qf @2 Q@& Q@ Q @ Q3

Crime Detected Fiscal Year Quarter

Recorded

Detected

Detection Rate

The number of Robberies recorded in quarter 3 rose by 10 to 46. This is the highest
number since quarter 3 2008/09. Detection rates have also slipped and are now below
the 3 year average. Despite this, the detection rate is 6.5% above the detection rate for
the same period last year.

There have been abstractions of staff working on Operation Berlin, which may have
contributed to the increase in recorded crimes and the reduction in detection rate.
Officers from Aberdeen Division CID have been redeployed to Operation Berlin to ensure
all opportunities to detect these offences are progressed.

Analysis has shown that the majority of these offences are sporadic and there is no
identifiable crime pattern.

Given that crimes such as Robbery are often uncorroborated, the importance of ensuring

that forensic examination is carried out and CCTV is seized at the earliest opportunity
has been reiterated to staff.

31
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 121



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Number and percentage of reports submitted to the Procurator Fiscal within 28
calendar days (NI) (PPR)

7000 98%

6000 . 97%
5000 i 9%
; W 95%

S 94%

93%

2 92%

| o 91%

St = 90%

4000
3000

2007 2007 2007 2007 2008 2008 2008 2008 2009 2009 2009 2009 2010 2010 2010
QT @2 Q@8 ™M 1 Q@2 @B M4 Q1 Q@2 Q@B 4 Qo Q2 Q3

Reports

2000
1000
0

yabue] uo 9,

Fiscal Year Quarter

Total Reports 5527 5446 4785 4749 5308 5267 4859 g
Within 28 Days 5178 5180 4528 4491 5064 4988 4590
% on Target 93.7% 95.1% | 94.6% | 94.6% | 95.4% | 94.7% | 94.5%

National Target - 80% Submitted within 28 days.

The percentage of reports submitted to the Procurator Fiscal (PF) within the target of 28

days remained very similar to quarter 2 at 94.5%. The table above shows that we are
consistently performing above the national target of 80%.

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 122

32



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Number and percentage of reports submitted to the Children's Reporter within 14
calendar days (NI) (PPR)

500 90%
£ 400 a — g5 X
g_ 300 o [=]
2 4 o 80%
& 200 - B
g 75% @
IE 100 ) : 0 [}
0 - - o 70%

2007 2007 2007 2007 2008 2008 2008 2008 2009 2009 2009 2009 2010 2010 2010
Ql @2 Q3 M Q1 Q@2 Q3 4 Q1 @2 Q8 o QO Q2 Q3

Fiscal Year Quarter

Total Reports 323 315 294 277 270 227 258 g

Within 14 Days 261 273 239 239 232 184 196

% on Target 80.8% | 86.7% | 81.3% | 86.3% | 859% | 81.1%
National Target - 80% Submitted within 14 days.

The number of reports submitted to the Children's Reporter within the target of 14 days
decreased 76.0% in quarter 3. This is the first time the Force has been below the
national target of 80%

Use of Police Direct Measures: Antisocial Behaviour Fixed Penalty Notices
(ASBFPNs) (NI) (PPR)

Aberdeen 444 | 405 | 407 | 332 | 403 | 402 | 324 |
Aberdeenshire 190 | 169 | 144 | 136 | 171 156 91
Moray 112 | 107 87 66 54 58 71
Total Issued 746 | 681 | 638 | 534 | 628 | 616 | 486
{T‘;’;;'I)%mp"ed buti 486 | 419 | 415 | 362 | 420 | 427 | 224

% Complied With 65.1% | 61.5% | 65.1% | 67.8% | 66.9% | 69.3% | 46.1%

The percentage of ASBFPNs complied with may not reflect the true picture of compliance, as individuals have a 28 day
period in which to pay the penalty issued. As such, not all tickets issued, particularly in March, may have been complied
with.

ASBFPNs have been established as a means of dispensing justice, while minimising Police bureaucracy and
maximising Officers' time spent on the streets. ASBFPNs are issued at an Officer's discretion, for minor offences as
defined by the Antisocial Behaviour etc (Scotland) Act 2004, which include drunken behaviour, Vandalism, Breach of
the Peace and Malicious Mischief.

The number of ASBFPNs issued in quarter 3 decreased from 616 in quarter 2 to 486 in
quarter 3, with a compliance rate of 46.1%. This decrease has been attributed to a
reduction in the number of Breach of the Peace and Urinating offences recorded. This is
partly due to the high level of targeted uniformed patrols that were undertaken over the
festive period. Furthermore, at the start of the quarter, the new Statutory Breach of the
Peace offence came into effect. It was anticipated that this would affect the number of
ASBFPNs issued as it is not currently possible to issue an ASBFPN for this offence.

33
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 123



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Further guidance on this is anticipated following discussion between COPFS and
ACPOS.

Use of Police Direct Measures: Formal Adult Warnings (NI) (PPR)

T 245 | 203 | 208

346 324 237
Aberdeenshire 112 74 89 117 | 94 47
Moray 70 50 | 39 41 54 36 23
Total 499 508 437 367 416 | 423 278

The number of Formal Adult Warnings issued in quarter 3 decreased to 278. As
anticipated the quarter 2 figure has increased from 333 to 423 as more crimes were
detected and offenders warned.

As mentioned in previous reports, FAWs were previously being issued by Officers for
offences which did not comply with the national protocol. To remedy this, considerable
effort has been made to educate Officers on the appropriate use of FAWSs and it is
anticipated that numbers will continue to be lower in future quarters.

Use of Police Direct Measures: Restorative Justice Warning & Conference
Scheme (NI) (PPR)

ee i 8 15
Aberdeenshire 25 27 42 34 27 40 16
Moray 2 11 19 8 10 8 1
Total 29 56 79 56 52 53 31

The Restorative Justice Warning and Conference Scheme is used in accordance with the Scottish Government's
‘National Standards for Youth Justice Service', to provide a coordinated and consistent approach to youth offending,
while working with partners to reduce youth crime and antisocial behaviour.

The number of Restorative Justice Warnings Issued and Conferences held in quarter 3
was 31. The quarter 2 figure of 42 reported in the last report has since increased to 53.
It is anticipated that the quarter 3 figure will increase, as the adverse weather restricted
the number of warnings delivered.

Although resource intensive, the use of RJ warnings is viewed as effective as previous
analysis indicated that 56% of offenders do not reoffend.

34
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 124



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Undertaking Cases (LI)

(BN B o G2 S i
1 1109110 ,_-10!"_111 -l.---‘.!m‘H 10/

Aberdeen 201 | 204 | 237 | 224 | 197 | 179 | 18.1%

Banff 18.4 12.2 15.0 14.9 14.9 15.0 14.5%
Elgin 1341 19.0 18.4 15.6 15.1 106 | 13.5%
Peterhead 15.9 14.6 19.0 17.0 15.2 12.6 17.5%
Stonehaven 10.8 8.3 8.4 10.5 10.0 7.3 8.0%
Total 17.4% 17.9% 20.5% 19.7% 17.4% 15.2% 16.4%

The percentage of undertaking cases in quarter 3 increased to 16.4%. As mentioned in
previous reports, wherever possible, the Force deals with cases by means of
undertaking. The use of undertaking assists the efficient management of court time.

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 125

35



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

The area of Sound Governance and Efficiency develops the way Grampian Police is
governed and managed, ensuring the organisation is effective and accountable to the
public, the GJPB and other stakeholders. It also considers whether the Force is being

run efficiently and effectively. To continue to improve this area, the Force Priority, which
has been identified is Efficiency and Productivity.

e Maximise frontline resources through effective and efficient resource and financial

management, to ensure suitably trained staff are in place to deliver our mission.

Number of Police Officers and Police Staff (Nl) (PPR)

Police Officers

T avosig [02 09t

1577
Police Staff 843
iCadets 17

2437

1542.78

155

0103

1556.77

1

65.16

T 1558.2

Police Staff

732.08

750.73

742.13

735.81

725.4

719.6

Police Officer numbers continue to reduce, with a reduction of 21 to 1572 from the end of

quarter 2. Police Staff numbers have reduced again this quarter, a continual reduction
since quarter 2 2009/10 and we ended quarter 3 with 796 members of Police Staff.

Ten Police Cadets were appointed in quarter 3, bringing the total number up to 24.

Recruitment (LI)
FEF-_.;_..‘,-,‘?‘ :'w;:-'i?é-";-"- i g et PR et T T B
Recttiitment . [« 00 Thi0 G109 :
Recruits: 0
Police Staff 41 41 11 19 29 18 3
Special Constables 12 0 | 12 13 0 17 12
Cadets 0 0o | 16 0 0 0 10
Police Staff internal Transfers 1 1 o 2 2 3 0
Police Staff Permanent Promotions 1 4 4 6 6 0 0
Police Staff Temporary Promotions 0 1 0 0 1 0 0
Police Officers Permanent )
Promotions U 16 8 5 9 e &
Police Officers Temporary
Promotions 12 16 11 ) 9 i 5 11 6

No Police Officers were recruited in quarter 3 in line with the current Force policy not to

actively recruit Police Officers. Three new members of Police Staff were recruited during
quarter 3, along with 12 Special Constables and 10 Police Cadets.

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 126

36



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Staffing Profile by Declared Disability, Ethnicity and Gender (NI)

Declared disability

No declared disability

% with a declared disability
Declared Eihnicity as White

Declared Ethnicity as Black and Minority 4 4 4 4 3 3 3
No declared ethnicity 136 151 153 165 169 170 168
= — —

é;t:r:eiglared ethnicity as Black or Minority 0.3% 0.3% 0.3% 0.3% 0.2% 0.2% 0.2%
Females 408 416 418 422 427 423 419
IMales 1169 1178 1174 1178 1180 1170 1153
% Female 25.9% | 26.1% | 26.3% | 26.4% | 26.6% | 26.6% | 26.7%

Declared disability 20 22 21 26 29 35
No declared disability 823 846 836 821 807 789 761
% with a declared disability 24% | 25% | 2.5% 3.1% 3.4% 3.5% 4.4%
Declared Ethnicity as White 675 701 685 665 643 637 622
La?rs!)?irtid Ethnicity as Black and 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
No declared ethnicity 164 163 168 178 188 177 170

% declared ethnicity as Black or

[Minority Ethnic 0.5% | 05% | 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%

Females 571 587 576 568 557 548 534
Males 272 281 281 279 278 270 262
% Female 67.7% | 67.6% | 67.2% | 67.1% 66.7% 66.9% 67.1%

The percentage of Police Officers with a declared disability increased to 2.9% in quarter
3, with the percentage of Police Staff with a declared disability increasing to 4.4%. As
reported in quarter 2, this increase is due to an increase in self reporting by staff in
relation to any declared disabilities, following a change to internal processes to record
such information.

The proportion of female Police Officers increased marginally to 26.7%.

37
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 127



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Turnover rates for Police Officers and Police Staff (Nl) (PPR)

g Officers B 019/410 [©2/09/10! @3 08/10 [Q4 09/10) [G1 1( Q210 0310
Total Staff Leaving (Headcount) 10 14 14 14 14 24 21
Average Staff Employed (Headcount) | 1567 1586 1593 1596 1604 1600 1583
% Staff Turnover 0.6% 0.9% 0.9% 0.9% 0.9% 1.5% 1.3%

Plice Staff 01162 1044 03 1044)
Total Staff Leaving (Headcount) 43 16 22 29 41 35 25
Average Staff Employed (Headcount) 844 856 863 852 841 827 807

% Staff Turnover 5.1% 1.9% 2.6% 3.4% 4.9% 4.2% 3.1%

In quarter 3, 21 Police Officers and 25 Police Staff left the organisation giving turnover

rates of 1.3% and 3.1% respectively. These rates have both reduced compared to
quarter 2.

Proportion of working time lost to sickness absence (Nl) (PPR)

Wiy Timbiers it ER N

Total Days Available

Total Days Lost 2916 2463 3152 2930
% Working Time Lost to Sickness Absence 3.4% 2.8% 3.6% 3.3%

46648 | 47292 | 47768 | 47320 | 46788

Total Days Lost 1847 1943 2376 2313 1951 1665 1754

% Working Time Lost to Sickness Absence 4.1% 41% 5.0% 4.9% 4.2% 3.6% 3.9%

Sickness absence amongst Police Officers and Police Staff has increased in quarter 3
when compared to quarter 2, with both rates currently at 3.9%. The Police Officers figure
is the highest since the start of 2009/10.

| Staff Performance (LI)

=D SR

i g{! el 10 ] 8/10- 140 : |
Total PDRs issued 546 | 415 | 473 | 560 | 568 | 429 | 506
Total PDRs complete 538 | 409 | 468 | 542 | 503 | 318 | 137
% of PDRs complete 98.5% | 98.6% | 98.9% | 96.8% | 88.6% | 74.1% | 27.1%

Each quarter's statistics are updated in each quarterly report, as the number of PDRs completed increases over time.

The level of completion of Performance and Development Reviews (PDRs) is updated in
each quarterly report and this continues to improve for each quarter as time progresses.
In quarter 3, 27.1% of PDRs were completed. The quarter 2 figure reported of 20.8% as
reported in the previous quarterly report has since increased to 74.1%.

38
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 128



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Value of efficiency savings generated (NI)

LT T e
0101 b 20

Efficiency Savings £3,335,000 £4,389,363.30 £5,025,000

£2,976,882.96

The target for efficiency savings in 2010/11 is £5,025,000. In total this year so far, we
have achieved savings of £2,976,882.

Procurement (LI)

: Procurements
achieved Cashable/Non | 115855 | 46160 49475 | 40951 | 189300 31255
Cashable (£}

Value of Sponsorship
achieved (£) 112150 | 82420 | 147740 | 54599 | 36599 19000 500

% Invoices paid on time* | 89.7% | 92.6% | 92.6% | 85.1% | 95.8% 94.2% 98.0%

Figures to the end of each quarter may change, reflecting transactions and payments for goods and services received
prior to the end of the quarter but not yet invoiced. *On time is recognised as within 30 days.

Procurement savings in quarter 3 increased to £59,679. Sponsorship reduced to £500.
This is as a result of change in internal procedures. Further follow up work is being
undertaken, which may result in the quarter 4 figure increasing.

The percentage of invoices paid on time in quarter 3 increased to 98.0%.

Expenditure on Salaries, Operating Costs and Capital (NI)

Police Officer salaries 15518 1559 17004 | 16003 | 15668 | 15912 | 16962
Police Staff salaries 5066 | 5254 | 5343 | 5547 | 5267 | 5280 | 5244
Sxppeéﬁgirt‘grg)"s'ts GO S 4505 | 3013 | 2807 | 3821 | 3770 | 3277 | 3170
Capital Expenditure 105 503 353 742 10 115 268
Total 25194 | 24349 | 25507 | 26113 | 24715 | 24584 | 25644
Police Officer salaries % total costs 61.6% | 64.0% | 66.7% | 61.3% | 63.4% | 64.7% | 66.1%
iPolice Staff salaries % total costs 20.1% | 21.6% | 20.9% | 21.2% | 21.3% | 21.5% | 20.4%
Year end financial figures for 2009/10 may change, reflecting updates during the annual finalisation of accounts and
external audit.

Police Officer salaries increased in quarter 3, whilst the figure for Police Staff
decreased. Operating costs have also decreased, with capital expenditure increasing.
The proportion of Police Officer salaries as a percentage of our total costs continues to
rise, with the Police Staff figure decreasing for the first time since quarter 3 2009/10.

39
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 129



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Expenditure per Resident (Ni)

Total net r

(excluding capital) (£000s) 25089 | 23846 | 25154 | 25371 | 24705 | 24469 | 25376
Population 539630 | 539630 | 539630 | 539630 [ 544980 | 544980 | 544980
Spend per resident (£) 46.49 | 4419 | 46.61 | 47.02 | 45.33 | 44.89 | 46.56

Expenditure per resident in quarter 3 has increased by £1.67 to £46.56 compared to
quarter 2. Compared to quarter 3 last year, the figure has fallen by £0.05.

Proportion of salary costs accounted for by overtime (NI) (PPR)

[ e

Po

Total Payroll Costs (£000’s)

15668 | 15912 | 16962
Total Overtime Costs (£000°s) 927 754 779 827 428 537 577
% Overtime Costs 5.9% 4.8% 4.6% 5.2% 2.7% 3.4% 3.4%

[Total Payroll Costs (£000’s) 5267
[Total Overtime Costs (£000’s) 80 68 56 58 36 38 43
% Overtime Costs 1.6% 1.3% 1.0% 1.0% 0.7% 0.7% 0.8%

Overtime costs in quarter 3 remained identical to quarter 2 for Police Officers and

increased by 0.1% for Police Staff. Compared to quarter 3 last year, Police Officer
overtime has decreased by 1.2% and Police Staff by 0.2%.

40
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 130



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
6. CONTEXT INDICATORS

Context indicators can be used in conjunction with performance indicators in this report.
They are not measures of performance, but are designed to provide wider information on
the demands placed on the Force and the environment in which we operate.

Number of telephone calls and incidents (NI)

1 @20/ Bado

99 Calls

E?;xil Number of Non-Emergency 94258 | 92460 | 86004 | 82331 | 93437 | 90803 | 84561

@3 0Bl G 0aino a1 0741 a2 1611 @3 el

19949
12601 | 11532 | 12395 | 12566 | 11901
5380 5119 5358 5366 5128
37930 | 35292 | 39409 | 39252 | 36417

lAberdeenshire

Moray

Total

Number of CrimeFiles (LI)

bedeen . .

Aberdeenshire 4179 4253 3954 3339
Moray 2023 1634 1537 1533
Total 13291 13426 | 12470 | 11511

Number of sudden death reports to Procurator Fiscal (Ni)

41

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 131



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Number of missing person incidents (NI) and number of missing persons and
levels of risk (LI)

10/1 @3 1074

Aerden |

Aberdeenshire 131 140 114 152 164 110 111
Moray 105 121 91 105 80 86 88
Total 609 594 420 558 671 559 536

ngh Rlsk

IMedium Risk 184 177 132 150 120 128 139
Low Risk 336 342 266 337 453 377 312
Total 584 588 451 546 630 573 506

Number of Registered Sex Offenders in the community (NI)

These statistics are a snap shot at the end of each quarter and reflect the number of offenders within the community.

Legal Services (L)
a4 | Top G2 iay
i ‘Services: ]l L09i0. | 10}!11 ' 10!11 10!11
SOPO 31 33 37 37 40
Interim SOPO 4 5 3 3 5 4
RSHO 2 1 2 2 2 2
Interim RSHO 1 1 1 2 2 1

Number of domestic abuse incidents (NI)

lincidents | o2 | 825 | 808 | 815 897 | 895 | 924

Figures are based on the report, commissioned by the then Scottish Executive, entitled 'Estimating the National and
Local Prevalence of Problem Drug Misuse in Scotland'. This statistic will therefore remain constant until a new national
source of data is identified.

42
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 132



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Number of individuals brought into custody (NI)

ber f ruests
Number of questions within 624 814 618 692 518 568 472
requests

Disclosure (LI)

Disalosure (Lh
Data Protection requests
- 655 624 599 841 686 630 505

% completed within 40 calendar o o o 0 o o o
days (target: 100%) 100% 99% 99% 99% 100% 99% 99%

Part V enquiries from Disclosure
Scotland 749 762 . 789 666 637 754 625
% completed within 14 calendar | oo, 96% 92% 94% 10% 4% 21%

days (target: 90%)

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 133

43



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

7.1.1 FORCE PRIORITIES

The purpose of this report is to provide a picture of Grampian Police Force Priorities and
how the Force is addressing them. This report identifies work and progress during
quarter 1 of 2010/11. The Force Priorities for 2010/11 are:

Antisocial Behaviour

Community Focus

Efficiency & Productivity

Force Reputation & Standards

National Security

Public Protection

Road Casualty Reduction

Serious Organised Crime & Drugs

Violence

7.1.2 NATIONAL INDICATORS (NI)

The SPPF was launched across Scotland in April 2007 and identified a set of National
Indicators to be reported by all Forces. Additional indicators have been introduced each
year. The information contained in this report reflects the structure of the information
provided within the SPPF, which is still evolving.

In this report, National Indicators have been integrated with Force Priorities, where
relevant to that priority, and are now identified by the acronym (NI) after the title. Any
calculations in this report which record statistics in proportion to population use the
General Register's Office for Scotland 2009 mid year estimates of population, which
record the Grampian population as 544,980 for 2010/11.

Audit Scotland provide annual direction on Statutory Performance Indicators (SPIs).
Previously 9 were set for Police Forces, however, in 2009/10, all indicators within the
SPPF became auditable, therefore all NI's are now auditable.

Crime Trend Information

Where historical data is available, this is reported on a quarterly basis to provide
comparison and an indication of longer term trends. Where graphs are used, the bars
display the number of crimes/offences using the left axis, and the lines relate to the
percentage detection rate in the right axis.

44

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 134



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Quarter on Quarter Comparison

Where possible, statistics for the same quarter in the last financial year have been
provided, and where not available, have been marked '—' (No Data Available). As
sources of information build, particularly for new indicators, greater comparison and
interpretation of the data will become possible.

7.1.3 LOCAL INDICATORS (L1I)

Where local indicators provide an additional leve! of information deemed useful in
providing further context to the reader, they are included in tables in the document, either
within sections on Force Priorities or alongside National Indicators. Local Indicators are
identified by the acronym (L) after their title. These Local Indicators are reflective of
Force Priorities and local needs.

7.1.4 SINGLE OUTCOME AGREEMENTS (SOAs)

Single Outcome Agreements (SOAs) were introduced in Scotland as a result of the
concordat between the Scottish Government and COSLA. An important element of the
SOA approach is the annual reporting process. This reporting has a dual purpose to
provide an outward focus reporting to the public on the delivery of outcomes in the local
area, and second, to report to the Scottish Government a Local Authority or Community
Planning Partnership's (CPP’s) contribution towards the governance, management and
delivery of local services and outcomes. This includes Grampian Police as a statutory
partner in the CPP.

The SOA Guidance confirmed that the SOA will be subject to annual reviews and that the
annual reports to the Scottish Government will be integral parts of the reports to local
communities which Councils prepare under their duty of Public Performance Reporting
(PPR). Reporting should also inform PPR reports to local communities.

To ensure the Force's statistical reporting processes remain as consistent and efficient
as possible, where there is commonality in the region's 3 SOAs, these have been
incorporated into our quarterly reporting processes. As such, these are highlighted in this
report and within the associated PPR reports compiled by each of the 3 divisions every
quarter.

45
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 135



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

7.1.5 BASELINES AND 'TRAFFIC LIGHTS'

Where appropriate, an aspirational target has been set by the Force for certain indicators.
These targets are based on:

1. The baseline set from the average of the past 3 years annual performance data.

2. An aspirational value based on the best annual figure during the past three years.

Where these are applied the following traffic light system is used:

Excellent (Aspirational)

Good (Baseline)

three years,

¢ Performance falling below average is highlighted in red.

Due to continuous improvement within the Force and ongoing excellent levels of
performance during the past three years, targets for 2010/11 are increasingly
challenging. This is due to the previous excellent performance driving up both the
average (baseline) and the best ever (aspirational) targets. It is anticipated that this
challenging regime will result increasingly in more targets being categorised as amber,

providing evidence of good performance.

ACPOS
ACT
ASB
ASBFPN
ASBO
CCTvV
CMBA
CNI
COPFS
CTSA
FAWS
FCR
FEB
FOI
FSC
FTE
FTTCG
GIRFEC
GJPB
GROS
HMICS
KsI

LI

LPT
MIT

Association of Chief Police Officers Scotland
All Communities Together

Antisocial Behaviour

Antisocial Behaviour Fixed Penalty Notice
Antisocial Behaviour Order

Closed Circuit Television

Crime Management Business Area

Critical National Infrastructure

Crown Office Procurator Fiscal Service
Counter Terrorism Security Advisor

Formal Adult Warning Scheme

Force Control Room

Force Executive Board

Freedom Of Information

Force Service Centre

Full Time Equivalent

Force Tactical Tasking Coordinating Group
Getting it Right for Every Child

Grampian Joint Police Board

General Register Office for Scotland

Her Majesty's Inspectorate of Constabulary for Scotland
Killed or Seriously Injured

Local Indicator

Local Policing Team

Major Investigation Team

No Data Available

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 136

Below Average ﬁ

e Performance highlighted in green is classified as excellent, representing an
improvement in our best quarterly performance over the last 3 years,

¢ Performance highlighted in amber is classified as good performance, indicating
that the results achieved exceed the average overall performance over the last

46



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

NF National Front

NHS National Health Service

NI National Indicator

PDR Performance and Development Review
PF Procurator Fiscal

PPR Public Performance Reporting

PRS Pre Referral Screening

RJW Restorative Justice Warning

RSHO Risk of Sexual Harm Order

RSO Registered Sex Offender

RTC Road Traffic Collision

SOA Single Outcome Agreement

SOPO Sexual Offences Prevention Order

SPI Statutory Performance Indicator

SPPF Scottish Policing Performance Framework
TTCG Tactical Tasking and Co-ordinating Group
VPFPO Vehicle Penalty and Fixed Penalty Offences
VSA Voluntary Service Aberdeen

WRAP Workshop to Raise Awareness of Prevent
YJMU Youth Justice Management Unit

Census data is provided by the General Register Office for Scotland, and currently uses
the most up to date statistics available: the 'Mid 2009 Population Estimates Scotland'.
Data for the Grampian Police area can be found at:
http://www.gro-scotland.gov.uk/statistics/publications-and-data/population-estimates/mid-
year/mid-2009-pop-est/index.html|

Statistics on drug misuse are contained with the Executive Report commissioned by the
Scottish Executive entitled, 'Estimating the National and Local Prevalence of Problem
Drug Misuse in Scotland'. Figures based on 2006 estimate. The numbers can be found
in section 5.1.6 of the Executive Report, which can be found at:
http://www.drugmisuse.isdscotland.org/publications/local/Prevalence 2009.pdf

Sustaining and Developing our Platform for Success, 2010 can be accessed at:
http://www.grampian.police.uk/Publications.aspx?id=59&pid=30;31;5;59

This report will be published at:
http://mww.grampian.police.uk/Publications.aspx?id=133&pid=30;31:5:133

Further information on the SPPF can be found at:
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Justice/public-safety/Police/Performance

The 2009/10 SPPF Annual Report and the ACPOS Annual Performance Report 2009/10
can be accessed at:
Assocliation of Chief Police Officers in Scotland (ACPOS) Performance and Development

Review (PDR)

47
'T PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 137



Page 138




Agenda ltem

3

GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD

COMMITTEE: GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD
DATE: 4™ MARCH 2011
TITLE OF REPORT: BOARD DEVELOPMENT ACTION PLAN

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT
The purpose of this report is to update Members in relation to on-going
development initiatives which aim to develop both Members and the efficient

workings of the Board, and seek approval of the Development Action Plan
attached as Appendix 1.

2.  RECOMMENDATION(S)

It is recommended that the Board:-

2.1 Agrees the draft Development Action Plan;

2.2 Instructs the Depute Clerk to progress the Development Action Plan in
conjunction with the Complaints Sub-Committee, Stewardship Sub-

Committee and Development Working Group, as appropriate,

2.3 Instructs the Depute Clerk to submit regular update reports to the
Board for information; and

2.4  Agrees the specific role descriptions set out at Appendix 2 and instructs
the Depute Clerk to issue a formal copy to all Members;

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
There are no specific financial implications arising from the content of the
Report, however the introduction of the initiatives set out should assist the
Board in planning and monitoring budgets going forward.

4. SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT
There are no specific impacts, however the development work proposed

should increase the accessibility of the Board and Members, as well as
reinforce the already strong community links in existence.

Page 139



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

The Report will have resource implications insofar as it requires additional
work to be carried out by the Clerk’s office,

REPORT

Members will be aware that there has been significant development work
undertaken over the last year e.g. the revision of Standing Orders and the
review of the sub-Committtee structure and remits, development of the
website and electronic production of agendas etc. It is important that this
work be progressed, so that the Board continues to improve in terms of its
governance and scrutiny role. It is also important that Members are given
opportunities to further develop their knowledge and skills in relation to the
duties and responsibilities of the Board. As such, the Depute Clerk has
produced a draft Development Action Plan for consideration by Members.
This plan is an overarching document which sets out to list all current
development and improvement activity as a means of ensuring that Members
are aware of the on-going work and also to assist the Board in over-seeing
this work.

In addition to the above, the Board will be aware that the recent Best Value
audit and inspection Report outlined several areas where the Board should
seek to improve its performance. Some, if not all, of these improvements are
already being progressed, as many were identified by the Board prior to
publication of the Best value Report. In order to provide Members with an
overview of all outstanding development work, these actions have been
incorporated within the draft Development Action Plan and are identified as
such. The draft Development Action Plan will be updated following the Board
meeting to reflect the steps agreed by the Board to implement the necessary
Best value Report improvements.

Informal development sessions were held for the Complaints Sub-Committee,
Stewardship Sub-Committee and Development Working Group on 4"
February 2011. These sessions provided Members of those sub-committees
with an opportunity to consider the remit of each and how it might be
discharged. The sessions also identified training and development
requirements. The actions arising from these sessions have also been added
to the over-arching Development Action Plan, again to ensure that all Board
Members have a clear picture of all on-going development and training work.
Individual action plans will be prepared for each of the sub-committees to
monitor implementation, and progress reports will be submitted to the Board
on a regular basis.

Scottish Government guidance sets out the various roles and responsibilities
of the Board and Members containing both a description of some of the
statutory provisions relating to police boards, and a number of suggestions on
good practice. The guidance also provides a general framework for the role of
police authorities. In order to assist Members in discharging their role and to
demonstrate an overarching philosophy of continuous improvement of the
Board draft specific role descriptions have been prepared for the roles of
Convener, Vice Convener and a generic Member role. These were submitted

Page 140



to Members for comment at the last meeting of the Board and are now
presented for agreement. Once agreed, copies of the role descriptors will be
issued to all Members and incorporated within the Member’'s Handbook which
is currently under development.

7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

Karen M Donnelly, Depute Clerk
KDonnelly@aberdeencity.gov.uk
01224 522416

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

Karen M Donnelly
Depute Clerk
24th February 2011

Page 141



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 142



oop-xipuaddy juswdojereq pieog\L L €0 0\l L0Z\Pieog 82ljod julor ueldwesD\pleog 891l0\SYANIO\|

'L10Z Yd'eiN v uo pieog
ay) Aq palapisuod aq 0} uodal
ue|d JuswaAoldw| anjep iseg 'sonss| saljljenba
ay} ul passalboud aq |Im Sy} moy 991|0d ueldwels uoday Jo Aunnuos pue diysiapes)
Buiob-up vdal da.be 0} payse aq ||IM pJeog 8yl /9D 8ndaq | upny onjeA 1seq s}l uayjbuauis pjnoys pteog ay | 9
'L10Z Yd'eiN v uo pieog
ay} Aq paJapisuod aq 0} Jodal "YJom Juswanoiduwil Jo
ue|d JuswaAoldw| anjep iseg Bulojuow pue adoos ‘uonesnuoud
8y} ul passaiboud aq ||im Siy} moy Hoday 3y} Uo 92104 8y} yum Ajpanoeold
Buiob-up val aalbe 0) payse aq |m pJeog a8y 39D andaq | Ipny anjep 1seg alow abebuas pjnoys pieog ay| eg
"1102 Yoiel\ v uo Bunssw |ewloy
1s1} S} pjoy 0} sI dnous) BuIopA ‘Aj@1edoldde paainosal buieq
a8yl ‘pieog ay) o0} papiroid ale 9soy} ainsus 0} sjuswabuelle
8q 0} spodal Jejnbal yum Jepew wswdojansp pue bBuluiesy
s1y} uo ssaiboud aasiano 0} dnoig) pue uoddns aAjjessiuiwpe ay}
Bujiopn Juswdojeaaq pieog uoday JO M3IABJ BU} JO SUOljepUBILIODAI
Bulob-uQ | Z1L0Z yote By} pajonJisul 8Aey pleog ay 381D 8yndeq | IpNy anjea 1seg JBpISU0D p|noys pJeog ay | z29g
"Jeak |eloueuly Mau 8y} Ul Alles
J0} pabuelie aq 0} sl dnolg) gng
ay) Jo Bunesw vy |10z Asenuep
L2 U0 Bunesyy 186png pieog ‘Aj@jelidosdde saounosal ale seale
ay} 1e Janew Ssiy} Uo SuoISsNosIp Ayiond ainsus djay o0} buluueld
8ouswWwWod 0} dnols) gng W8|D Hoday 82JnosaJ wus)-buo| ul aaioeoud
Bulob-uQ | Z1L0zZ yote 196png ay) pajonJjsul pJeog ayl ande( / Jainseas] | Ipny onjea 1sag 9I0W 8WO0998(q 0} Spaau pleog ay| L9
advod 11nd
9jeq
uona|dworn 199230
snjels jobue] 9jepdn a|qisuodsay 921n0g uonoy Jaquinp

110Z HOJYVIN ,, 7 — NV1d NOILOV LN3JINdOT13A3IA dvOo4d
aydvod 30170d LNIOI NVIdINVYO

Page 143



oop-xipuaddy juswdojereq pieog\L L €0 0\l L0Z\Pieog 82ljod julor ueldwesD\pleog 891l0\SYANIO\|

JuswdojaAap 8y} 01 UOIIeISPISUOD

Jo  juswdojensag

paalbe aq 0] SI ‘siaquuaj\ Mau 10}

L1L0Z [eniul aAIb 0} ale dnoig Buiob-up Buiuiesy uononpui Buipnjoul ‘piseog
Buiob-up Jaquiada(g Bunjiopn Juswdojeasq pieog ay | 39D ayndaq | — uoisipag pleog ay} Jo) swuwesboud Buluiesy y oLg
"9A0Qe 0} paulajal sishjeuy spasN 0102
Buiuies] ayy Jo uona|dwod Buimol|oy JaqwanoN 2L —
‘dnoug Bunjiopp ueswdojanaq sIoqWig ¥ pJeog
pJjeog 8y} woJj yoeqpas) Jo  juswdojansq
1102 yum uonounfuod ui ‘pajeald Buiob-up ‘paJedalid aq 0} ale siaquia|\|
Buiob-up Jaquiada(g aq |Im sue|d Juswdojanaq yelq 39D ayndaq | — uoisipag pleog pJeog Joj sue|d uawdojanaq 69
‘palsanbal aq 0} ale asay | 0L0Z
‘Alioyine juanyisuod ajelidoidde JaqwanroN 2L —
8y} woJ} spJodad Buluiely siaquis|\ g pJeog
1senbal 0} }i8|) 8yndaq ay) a|qeus Jo  wawdoeraq uayeuapun
0] SW.0} 8sesjal uol0s)old eyeq Bulob-up aQ 0} sI siaquis|\ pleog
Buiob-uQ | 110z 1snbBny paja|dwod Ajsnoinaid siaquiaiy 39D andaq | — uoisipag pleog [|e 4o} sIsAjeuy spasN buluiel] v g
‘pleog ayj 0}
uolepuswwodal e bupjew o} Joud
1 L0Z UdJep i uo Bunesw sy je
suondiuosap 9|04 Jelp 8y} JopISuod 0L0Z
(M dnousy Buiopn Juswdojanaqg JlaquienoN ,zlL -
pJjeog ay| "paAledal usaq siaquiv|\ g pieoq ‘posijeuls
sey )oeqpasa) ou — suonduosap Jo  wawdoeraq 8Q 0} 8Je JI8UBAUO) pJeog pue
9]0J Jjelp 8y} UO JUBWIWOD Bulob-up JBUBAUOY) 821\ pJeog ‘Slaquisy
Buiob-up LLoZ Aen 0] Pa}IAUI UBa(Q aABY SJaqUIB|\ 39D andeq | — uoisipag pleog pJeog Joj suonduosaq 9|0y .9
‘paJapISu0d
'1102 Yoiep i Uo pleog ale sjoadse |ejusWUOIIAUD
ay) Aq paJapisuoo aq 0} podal pue |el1o0S ‘OlWOoU02d
ue|d JuswaAoldw] anjep isag ay) Jey) ainsus 0} Ayjiqeulelsns
ay) ul passalboud aq [Im Syl moy 991|0d ueldwels uodey 0] yoeoudde o16a)ea1S B dojonsp
Bulob-up vdal aalbe 0] payse aq |Im pJeog 8yl /81D 8ndaq | Ipny anea 1seg pINoys 82104 8y} pue pieog ay| o9
"10edwl
'L10Z Yde|N v Uo pieog S}l pue saljiAlloe s,pleog 8y} Jo
ay) Aq paJapisuod aq 0} podal Arewwns e sapiaoid )l Jey) ainsus
ue|d JuswaAoldw] anjeA 1sag 0} Wodeas souewsopad olgnd
ay) ul passalboud aq ||Im SIy} moy 991|0d ueldwels) Hoday |[ENUUE 8y} JO JUBJUOD By} MBIASI
Bulob-up vdal aalbe 0] payse aq ||Im pJeog 8yl /81D 8Indaq | Ipny anea 1seg pInoys 82104 ay} pue pieog ay | Gqg

Page 144



oop-xipuaddy juswdojereq pieog\L L €0 0\l L0Z\Pieog 82ljod julor ueldwesD\pleog 891l0\SYANIO\|

"L 102 YoJe 8z uo Bunssw
@a))lWwWwo) gns auy) Joj epuabe

ay) uo peaoe|d aq 0} sI uosiadiiey)
B JO UoIj09|3 8y} JO anss|

8y} — | 10Z Aenigad i UO UoIsseS
Juswdojana( S}l Je UOIRIapISUOD
awios Janew siy) aaeb

uodey

"'S99NILIWIOD

-gns diyspiemals pue sjuiejdwod
ay) Bulneyo oy syuswabuelle
ua.1n9 ay} Buipnpoul ‘suoijoe
uswanosdwi Aue Juswajdwi pue
aoueUIBA0b JUB1LIND S JO MBINDI

Buiob-up L 1L0Z yoJte daplWwo) gng sule|dwo) ay | W9 aindaq | upny anjeA iseg ay} a)9|dwod pjnoys pteog ay| 1D
J311INNOD 9NS SLNIV1dINOD
"SjUBWINOOpP Jelp
ay) Buimainal pue sjusju09 ay)
Buiuue|d ul ajedionied o) palaul 8q
[ dnoug Bupiopp uawdojaaaq
pleog ay| ‘sessaibo.d 0L02
dnous Buniopn uswdojarsqg JaquienoN ,zlL -
pJeog ayj JO YIOM 8y} Se JyoogqpueH siaquiv|\ g pieoq
slaquial\ pJeog e ulyim uoisn|oul Jo  juswdojansQ
Jo} |euslew ajeldosdde yeup Bulob-up padojanap aq 0]
Bulob-uo | 2102 Yosen [I!M 32O SHIBID By} Ulyum jelis Y910 8indaQ | — uoisieg pleog | S| siaquidjy pleog Joj YoogpueH v [45:)
"110Z UdIe|y i uo Bunesw sy
1 uoIssas aJinjny 1o} soidoy g|qissod
JBPISU0D 0} Pa}IAUI 8q [M dnolD)
Bunjiopn Juswdojeasq pieog ay |
"SjUIBJ}SUOD
"SjUIBJISUOD 196pnq juaund ay} jo jJoedwi
106pnq us.Ing ay} Jo 1oedwl 0L02 ay} yum Buijesp pue bBuiuueld
ay1 yum Buijesp pue Buiuueld JaquieroN ,zlL - |eioueuly Bulldnod uoissas Ajues
[BIOUBUL) JBAOD |[IM UOISSSS SIY} siaquig\ 9 pieog ue yum ‘sbunesw pieog ajeussie
jey) pue |10z Aep 0z Aepuy uo Jo  jawdojeraq JO uoIsSNou09 8y} je ade|d aye) 0}
aoe|d aye)} uoisses buielq pieog Buiob-up pabueuie aq 0} S| suoissas Buiauq
Bulob-up Loz Aeny -1sod 1s41} 8y} 1ey) pauueld s W8|D 8Jndeq | — uoisieq pJleog / Buluies) paeog jo swwelboud vy LLg
0lL0¢

"110Z Yyolen i uo Bunesw
s} Je swweiboud Bujuiesy e jo

J8qWBNON 2L —
slaquis|\ ¥ pleogq

‘pieog 8y} Aq

Page 145



oop-xipuaddy juswdojereq pieog\L L €0 0\l L0Z\Pieog 82ljod julor ueldwesD\pleog 891l0\SYANIO\|

|euondaoxe ur Ajuo pasn
aJe suondwexa aAne|siBs| 1ey) pue

ul Ajuo pasn aq pjnoys bunasw ay}
Jo ued Aue wouy o1gnd sy} apnjoxs

a1ignd ay) 0} uado ale sbuiesy unNo22y 01 | 03 uondwaxa aAne|siba| pue ‘olgnd
d9)lwwo) gng suie|dwo) BuipjoH — wodey ay) 0} uado aq p|noys sbunas|y
Bulob-uQ LLog aunp Jeyy sopoeld Bupsixe sty 31910 andaQ | Ipny s00d @9plwwog gng sjuiejdwo) 90
‘sjuie|dwod Jo Buieasiano
pue Buipuey ay} yim uoi}osuuod
ul Buiuiely Jueasjas Buimainal
apnjoul [|Im SIy} ‘@epiwwo)
gng sjuieldwo) ayj Jo siaquIB
0} J08dsal YA “useuspun ‘sjure|dwod
8q 0} S| slaquis\ pJeog JUNO22Y 0} 99S19A0 10 3|puey 0} pajuiodde
[|e Joy sIsAjeuy spaspN Buluiel | BuipjoH — woday SJIaquWIa\ pJeog 1o} paonpuod aq
Bulob-uo | 110z Isnbny e ‘aA0qe gg Je pajedipul sy 391D 8ndaq | Ipny s00d pinoys sisAjeuy spasN bululel] v °10)
‘'sainpasold sjuie|dwo)
[ew.o} Jo Juswdojarap ay}
0] uoineal ul Aenoied ‘enunuod ‘uonelsiba] syybu uewny
[im @onoeud siy]  ‘uone|sibo) ypm jueldwod ale ‘sjuie|dwod
Sjybry uewny yym aoueldwod Jo Buipuey pue ybisiano
10} 921JO SHI9|D dY} UIYIM MBIASI JUNO22Y 0} J1ay} 0} uoneal ul ‘sainpasoud
1102 0] J0algns Apealje ale sainpaoco.id Buipjoq — poday pue saonoeld ‘saloijod e 1eys
Bulob-up Jaquiada(g pue saonjoeld ‘saloljod pieog | 39|10 ayndeq | upny SO0d alnsua p|noys pleog a21|0od 8y 1%0)
‘ueld e yons 1o} Jewuoy
ajeldoidde ayy 03 Jybnoyy Jayuny
aAIb 03 s pue | Loz Aleniga
7 UO uoissag juswdojarsg JUNO22Y 0} ueld jenuue
1102 e Je Jajjew siy} palopisuod Buipjoq — poday ue ysiignd pue asedaid pjnoys
Bulob-uQ Jaqueydeg 99plwwo) gqng sjulejdwo) ay L Y910 8indaq | ypny S00d 99plwwo) gng sjulejdwo) 8yl €0
"uayepapun
Buiaqg yJom Jaypny o} Joud payeme
S| 9S8y} 0} UOISN|DUOD B pue
S1y} uo j1oedwi Aew |9A9| YsInoos sjuiejdwod Jo
1e suolssnosip Bulob-uo ‘Janamoy 1UN022Yy 01 | Bulpuey Jidy) Jo) SpJepuels 90IAIeS
1102 ‘pasedald usaq sey pieog ay} BuipjoH — Moday | pue sainpaoold |ewloy ysignd pue
Buiob-up Jaquiada(g 10} 8inpadold sjuieldwo) yelp v W8l ayndaq | ypny SDO0d dojanap pjnoys pJeog a91jod ay | 20

Page 146



oop-xipuaddy juswdojereq pieog\L L €0 0\l L0Z\Pieog 82ljod julor ueldwesD\pleog 891l0\SYANIO\|

Buiob-up

LL0¢C
Jagqwiaoa(

"99)JlWWo) gns ay)

0} Yoeq uodal pue Jayyny Jopew
SIY1 SSNosip 0] aJe yIa|) aindeq
8y} pue spJepue)s [euoIssajold

JO peaH 8yl “paynuap!

8Q 0] S)S00 8say) 10} 8|qissod

aq [[IM }1 J1 Jussa.d 1e umouy 10U SI J|

991|0d ueldwels
/ Y19|D ayndaQg

JUN022Y 0}
BuipjoH - wModey
ypny S$00d

papinod a21A18s sjuie|dwod

[ledano ayy anoudwi 0} saniunyioddo
BuiAjuspl 0] MaIA B UY)IM |9AS] 8210}
1e Buijpuey uiejdwod Jo s}s0o ay)
ulel@9SE pINOYS pleog 89110d ayL

69

Buiob-up

1102
Jagqwiaoa(

"|loo0j0.d |ew.o}

e Jo Juawdojanap 8y} ssnasip

0} aJe yI9|) ayndaq ay) pue
spJepue)g |euoissajold JO pesH
ay] -ejep juiejdwos |eanAleue

pue [eonsijels Jo uoisinoid

ay) Buipsebas 80104 By} pue

pJeog ay) usamjaq sjuswaalbe
[ewoyul aoe|d ul Ajuasaud si aley |

W91 ayndeg

JUN022Y 0}
BuipjoH - Modey
ypny S$00d

‘ejep

wiedwod [eonAjeue pue |eonsnes
JO uoisinoud sy} 0} uonejal

Ul 82104 8y} pue pleog a21|0d

ay} Aq peaibe aq pjnoys [02030.4d Y

80

Bulob-up

1 10¢ aunr

‘paInpayos aq ||m Buldwes

-dip 1onpuod 0} sanunuoddo
Jejnbal ‘Jayeasay| "sased
syuie|dwod paye|dwod jo Buidwes
-dip e @yeuspun 0] pue ssado.d
Buipuey sjuie|dwod ay} ybnouyy
el dwod e yoel, 0} SIoquia
a9)lwwo) gng Joj Ajunpuoddo
ue apn|oul ||IM SIy] ‘pabueuse

aq 0} sl Juswpeds(q spJepuels
[BUOISS®J0.d B} Je SIaquIB|\
saplLwo) gng sjuiejdwo)

Joj Aep Buluiesy e ‘| L0z Aenuge
u¥ UO p|dy uoissag juawdojensQ
8y} Je uoissnasip Buimojjo4

391D endeg

JUNO22Y 0}
BuipjoH - wModey
Ipny S$00d

‘'saseo sjuie|dwod

paja|dwod 0} uonejal ul swibal
Bundwes-dip e ayeuspun pjnoys
aapiwwo) gng sjuieldwo) ay |

JAS)

"uoljepuswwodal

SIY} yym aoueldwod
ainsua 0} suondwaxa aAne|siba) Jo
SN 8y} JO M3IASI B 9)epapun 0} Si
01O SHIBID BYL "SB82UBISWNIIID

"S90UBISWINDIIO [euUONjd8oXd

Page 147



oop-xipuaddy juswdojereq pieog\L L €0 0\l L0Z\Pieog 82ljod julor ueldwesD\pleog 891l0\SYANIO\|

1VYH3INIO / ¥3HLIO0

‘ueld e yons 1o} Jewuoy
ajeldoidde ayj 0y Jybnoyy Jayuny
aAIb 0y sl pue | Loz Aleniga

7 U0 uoIssag juswdolans( "90UBUJBA0G) ‘ue|d uoljoe pajiejap aiow e Jo
1102 e Je Ja)jew S|y} paJapisuod JO MaIASY — Joday Juswdo[dAap 8y} JOpPISUOD pINOYs
Buiob-up Jaquwisydeg aapIwwo) gng diyspiemals ay | 39| ayndeq | upny [eulaju| aapiwwon gng diyspiemals ay | ¥S
"JUBWUSSOSSE UB YINS IO} Jewlo}
ajeldoidde ayj 0y Jybnoyy Jayuny
aAIb 0y s pue | Loz Aleniga
7 UO UOISsag JuawdojensQ 9OUBUIBAOY) JO aouewIouad JO JuBLISSasSSe
1102 e Je Ja)jew siy} paJapisuod MBINeY — Jodey [enuue ue }onpuod p|NOYSs
Buiob-up Jaquwis)deg aapIwwo) gng diyspiemals ay | 39|10 ayndeq | upny [eulaju| aapiwwon gng diyspiemals ay | €S
‘pasinal
8q p|Noys saapiwwo) qns
"1102 YyoJep 8z uo Bunesw sy je 9OUBUIBAON) JO Burieys 4oy sjuswabuedle jualind
29)lLwWo) gng 8y} Aq palapisuod MaINey — Moday 3y} Jaylaym Japisuod pjnoys
Bulob-up L 1L0Z yoJten 8Q 0} SI dnssI SIY} ‘9A0ge Sy 381D andaq | upny [eusalu| aapiwwo) gng diyspiemals ay | AS
"1 102 Yosep 8z uo bunssw
a9)lwwo) gng ay) Joj epuabe "S99IILILWLIOD
ay} uo paoe|d aq 0} sI uosiadiiey) -gns diyspiemals pue sjuie|dwod
B JO UOoI93|3 8y} JO anss| ay} Buuieyo oy sjuswabuelse
8y} — L L0z Alenige4 i Uo uoISseS a.Nnd ay} Buipnoul ‘suonoe
swdojaAa( S}l e UoljelapIsSuod wswanoidwi Aue Juswsjdwi pue
awos Jayjew siy} aneb Hoday 9oUBUJAA0D JUBLIND S)I JO MBIABI
Bulob-uQ L L0Z YdielN 99piwwo) gng diyspiemals a8yl Y910 andeq | ypny enjep iseg 3y} 8)9|dwod pjnoys pseog ay | IS
J3L1INNOD 9NS dIHSAQYVMALS
‘siseq |enuue wbisiano pue
UB UO SWeS MaIASI 0} Pa}IAUL Buipuey juiejdwos 1o} sainpasoid
aq [M 8apiwwo) gng sjuieldwo) uNoooYy 0} | pJeog pue sjuieldwod yum Buljesp
L1102 ay) ‘eoe|d ul aJe sainpasoid Buipjoq4 — wuoday Jo} sainpadoud mainal Ajjeoiporad
Bulob-up JaquiaoaQ yons aouo ‘jeyy pasodoud si }| W80 8yndaq | upny SO0d p|noys pJeog a91j0d 8y oLD

Page 148



oop-xipuaddy juswdojereq pieog\L L €0 0\l L0Z\Pieog 82ljod julor ueldwesD\pleog 891l0\SYANIO\|

‘wea| ga\ [1ounod Auo
uaspJaqy ay} ulyum sanbeajjoo
ypm uonounfuod ui siyy ssasboud
(M pue souasald gam gd4ro

olgnd

ay) Jo swdojanap ayy buipiebal 600z lequieda( 3y} JO slaquiaw pue sJadlO
dnous) Buniop) uswdojanag gbl — ©oussald ‘slaquia|\ pJeog 40} 82IN0Ssal
1102 pJeog ay) yum abebus 0} goM adro [njasn e aq 0} Jayuny padojaaap
Bulob-up 18q0j0Q | 8Je a2 SNIB|D By} Wod) SI92IL0 381D 8jndeq | — uolsag pleog aq 0] aJe sabed o\ pieog ay | 29
‘panssi usaq sey ybingiesel
pue uib|3 ‘(}@ans usanp)
uasplaqy ul sanjioe) Apoisno
0] 1L 10Z YoJE\ Ul SYSIA 10} BJOI Y
‘pa1a|dwod
Buiaq Ajjuasald aie siss1un|oA ‘aoe|d ul sweaydg Bunisip
JO juawjuiodde ay} ym uo1OdBUUOD uoday Apojsn9 juspuadapu| |euonelado
Buiob-upQ | 110z Puudg ul s8ss920.d aAnEIISIUIWPE [euld W8|D 8indeaq | upny oanjeA  1seg ue sey )l 8JNsuUd jSnw pleog ay | 19

Page 149



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 150



APPENDIX 2
ROLE DESCRIPTION - BOARD MEMBER

Key Purpose/Role
» To represent the views and interests of your Police Authority and to deal with all
enquiries and representations fairly and without prejudice;

* To contribute actively, within the Board’s decision making structures, to the
formation and scrutiny of the Board’s policies, budgets, and strategies, and to the
scrutiny of the service delivery and financial performance of Grampian Police; and

» To promote the best interests of the Board and the community as they relate to the
improvement of the quality of life, safety and wellbeing of the community and its
citizens.

Key Tasks/Accountabilities
» To represent and act as an advocate for the interests of the Board;

* To be available to represent and deal effectively with enquiries and representations
from members of the local community;

* To liaise and work with local organisations and representative groups to further the
interests of the Board;

» To participate effectively and objectively as a Member of any Committee, Sub-
Committee or Working Group to which appointed, including related responsibilities
for the services and any resources falling within that body’s terms of reference;

» To support the development of an effective working relationship with other Board
Members and staff and with officers/staff of Grampian Police;

» To participate in the activities of any outside body or partnership forum to which
appointed by the Board and to develop and maintain a working knowledge of the
Board’s policies and practices in relation to that body, and of the community’s needs
and aspirations in relation to that body’s role and functions, e.g. Community Planning
Partnerships;

» To fulfil the statutory code of conduct and standards for Elected Members;

» To observe and comply with the Board’s Standing Orders Relating to the Conduct
of Meetings and the Scheme of Delegation and Administration to Committees, Sub-
Committees and officers;

* To undertake appropriate training and development; and

« To adhere to the principles of the Continuous Professional Development
Framework for Elected Members in Scottish Local Government.

Page 151



ROLE DESCRIPTION — CONVENER OF GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE
BOARD

In addition to the roles, tasks and responsibilities expected of Board
Members, the following is expected of the Convener —

Key Purpose/Role
» To represent the Board on public occasions;

 To provide leadership in relation to policy formulation, implementation and
monitoring of the Board’s policies, budgets and strategies, and scrutiny of service
delivery and financial performance; and to contribute to the effective governance of
the Board;

» To provide strategic leadership and clear direction and guidance to promote the
best interests of the Board and the community and thereby to improve the quality of
life, safety and wellbeing of the community and its citizens;

* To chair meetings of the full Board and allocated Sub-Committees and Working
Groups and to ensure that they are undertaken in line with the Board’s Standing
Orders Relating to the Conduct of Meetings and Scheme of Reference and
Delegation to Committees, Sub-Committees/Working Groups and Officers;

» To represent the Board on the Scottish Police Authorities Conveners’ Forum and
on COSLA’'s Community Safety Executive Group as appropriate; and

» To develop and maintain partnership working with other agencies and to ensure the
maintenance of links between the Board and the Constituent Authorities’ Community
Planning Partnerships.

Key Tasks/Accountabilities

 To ensure that decisions are taken properly, openly and, where appropriate,
publicly;

* To liaise with the Chief Constable and the Clerk to the Board in discussions and
negotiations with national bodies;

» To provide an external focus for the views of the Board in handling media and
press enquiries;

* To ensure that Members of the Board are treated responsibly and responsively at
all times;

» To maintain and promote the highest standards of conduct in the Board’s affairs;

» To develop and maintain effective working relationships with Board Members and
staff and with Officers/staff of Grampian Police;

* To have an overview of corporate and cross cutting risks/issues as they impact on
the Board and the community; and

» To promote and support open and transparent government.

Page 152



ROLE DESCRIPTION - VICE-CONVENER OF GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE
BOARD

In addition to the roles, tasks and responsibilities expected of Board Members, the
following is expected of the Vice-Convener —

Key Purpose/Role
» To represent the Board on public occasions as required;

* To support the Convener in providing leadership in relation to policy formulation,
implementation and monitoring of the Board’s policies, budgets and strategies, and
scrutiny of service delivery and financial performance; and to contribute to the
effective governance of the Board;

» To support the Convener in providing strategic leadership and clear direction and
guidance to promote the best interests of the Board and the community and thereby
to improve the quality of life, safety and wellbeing of the community and its citizens;

» To chair meetings of the full Board, in the absence of the Convener, and meetings
of allocated Sub-Committees and Working Groups, and to ensure that they are
undertaken in line with the Board’s Standing Orders Relating to the Conduct of
Meetings and Scheme of Reference and Delegation to Committees, Sub-
Committees/Working Groups and Officers;

* To represent the Board on any external bodies to which appointed, e.g. Community
Planning Partnership Performance Board, and to substitute for the Convener on
external bodies where appropriate; and

* To develop and maintain partnership working with other agencies.

Key Tasks/Accountabilities

* To ensure that decisions are taken properly, openly and, where appropriate,
publicly;

* To liaise with the Convener, Chief Constable and Clerk to the Board in discussions
and negotiations with national bodies;

» To support the Convener in providing an external focus for the views of the Board
in handling media and press enquiries;

* To ensure that Members of the Board are treated responsibly and responsively at
all times;

» To maintain and promote the highest standards of conduct in the Board’s affairs;

» To develop and maintain effective working relationships with Board Members and
staff and with officers/staff of Grampian Police;

* To have an overview of corporate and cross cutting risks/issues as they impact on
the Board and the community; and

» To promote and support open and transparent government

Page 153



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 154



Agenda ltem 13

3

GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD

COMMITTEE: GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD
DATE: 4™ MARCH 2011
TITLE OF REPORT: GRAMPIAN GYPSY / TRAVELLERS SUMMIT -

UPDATE REPORT

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT
The purpose of this report is to provide an update to the Grampian Joint
Police Board of arrangements for the Grampian Gypsy / Travellers Summit
and seek the approval of the Board for these.

2, RECOMMENDATION(S)
It is recommended that the Board agree:

0 That the Grampian Gypsy / Traveller Summit, Building Consensus: A
Constructive Way Forward, will take place on Tuesday 5™ April 2011
and will be held at Inverurie Town Hall.

O That the purpose of the Summit will be to improve relations and ease
tensions within the North East community and to seek consensus and
support for a fresh approach to this issue.

0 That the desired outcomes of the Summit are:

o To improve relations and reduced barriers to communication

o To increase understanding of the Scottish Governments Aberdeen
City and Aberdeenshire Interim Strategy and what it may mean for
the area

o To build cross-party and community support for the establishment
of short-stay sites in the Grampian area

o To develop a roadmap / routes identifying where we want to be and
how we are going to get there.

O To nominate up to 5 Board Members to attend the Summit on behalf of
the Board.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The Grampian Joint Police Board previously agreed a budget of up to £2,000
to fund the Grampian Gypsy / Travellers Summit. Aberdeen City Council has
also contributed funding and a detailed forecast budget is currently being
prepared.

Page 155



SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT
None

OTHER IMPLICATIONS
None

REPORT

6.1 Following previous decision of the Board, Grampian Racial Equality
Council (GREC) have been engaged to facilitate the planning of this
Summit and to facilitate effective running of the Summit. GREC have
brought together a Steering Group, consisting of representatives from
each constituent authority, Grampian Police, GREC and the Clerks
Office, to assist with the planning process.

6.2 The Steering Group has met on two occasions, and three further
meetings have been scheduled. The role of the Steering Group is to
enable a multi agency approach and to contribute relevant knowledge
and experience to the planning of the summit.

6.3 The Steering Group have, in moving forward with the planning process,
been mindful of the discussion on this topic held at the GJPB Meeting
in September 2010, issues surrounding unauthorised encampments
and temporary halting sites and the on-going work of the Scottish
Government Housing Minister’'s Working Group on Gypsy/Traveller
issues in Aberdeen and Aberdeenshire. GREC have also had
discussions with a range of organisation who work with or who
represent Gypsy / Travellers to inform the planning process.

6.4 Following consideration of the necessary timescale for planning, the
availability of key personnel, the availability of a suitable venue and the
impact of the forthcoming Scottish Parliament Election, the Steering
Group have identified Tuesday 5" April 2011 as the date for the
Summit to be held. Further, the Steering Group have identified
Inverurie Town Hall as the preferred venue. This venue holds up to 90
people and the cost for venue hire plus lunch and refreshments totals
approximately £825.00. In addition, créche facilities will be provided for
participants.

6.5 The Steering Group have proposed that the purpose of the Summit be
stated as “To facilitate ways to improve relations and ease tensions
within the North East community in respect to Gypsy / Travellers and to
seek consensus and support for a fresh approach to this issue.”

6.6 The desired outcomes of the Summit have been identified as:

o To improve relations and reduced barriers to communication

o To increase understanding of the Scottish Governments Aberdeen
City and Aberdeenshire Interim Strategy and what it may mean for
the area

2
Page 156



o To build cross-party and community support for the establishment
of short-stay sites in the Grampian area

o To develop a roadmap / routes identifying where we want to be and
how we are going to get there.

6.7 The Steering Group have developed an invite list for the Summit. This
includes:
o Elected Members from Aberdeen City, Aberdeenshire and Moray
Councils (each group within each Council will be invited to nominate
a representative to attend)
o Relevant Officers (with both operational and strategic remits) from
each constituent authority
Local Members of the Scottish Parliament
The Scottish Government Housing Minister
Representatives from local Community Councils
Gypsy / Travellers
Representatives from Grampian Police and NHS Grampian
Representatives from the Equality & Human Rights Commission
Representatives from the Fiscals Office
Representatives from GREC

O O O O O O O O

6.8 The GJPB are also invited to send representatives to the Summit.
Given the limited capacity of the venue, it is proposed that the Board
send up to 5 Members.

6.9 The Summit programme will include an Introductory Session, a keynote
speaker, a range of workshop discussions focussed on each of the
desired outcomes and a panel question and answer session.

6.10 Following the conclusion of the Summit, GREC will prepare a Summit
Report and Evaluation including the development of the roadmap
referred to in the desired outcomes. This will be distributed to all
participants and to other relevant agencies.

7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS
Fiona Smith, Policy & Advice Officer

E-mail: fismith@aberdeencity.qgov.uk
Telephone: 01224 522516

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS
None

Karen M Donnelly
Depute Clerk
25" February 2011

3
Page 157



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 158



Agenda Item 14

3

GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD

COMMITTEE: GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD
DATE: 4" March 2011
TITLE OF REPORT: POLICE APPEALS TRIBUNAL

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT
The purpose of the report is to advise the Board of an appeal to a Police
Appeals Tribunal received and the need to appoint members of the Tribunal.
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)
It is recommended that the Board:
- Appoint the Clerk as Registrar to the Police Appeals Tribunal
- Appoint the Depute Clerk as Depute Registrar to the Police Appeals
Tribunal
- To appoint Councillor Martin Grieg, Mr Andrew Cameron, Mr Calum
Laurie and Mr Andrew Young QC to this Police Appeals Tribunal.
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The costs of the Police Appeal Tribunal are yet to be established and will be
reported to the Board in due course.

4, SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT

None

5. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

None

6. REPORT
6.1 In terms of Section 30 if the Police (Scotland) Act 1967 as substituted
by section 55 of the Police and Magistrates Courts Act 1994,
constables may appeal against dismissal to a Police Appeals Tribunal.

6.2 The Police Appeals Tribunals (Scotland) Rules set out the procedures
for dealing with such appeals.

Page 159



6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

The Board are required to appoint a Registrar to the Tribunal under
these rules. The Registrar is required to perform the functions of the
Registrar as specified in the Rules. These duties include, amongst
others, administrative and support functions relating to the appeals
process. The Clerk to the Board is normally appointed as Registrar. In
addition, the Board are invited to appoint the Depute Clerk as Depute
Registrar to the Tribunal.

On receipt of an appeal by a constable (who is not a senior officer), the
Registrar is required to request that the Police Board appoint the
members to the Tribunal. Membership of the Tribunal is made up as
follows:

0 A person chosen from a list of persons nominated by the Lord
President of the Court of Session (who chairs the Tribunal)

0 A representative of the Grampian Joint Police Board

0 A person chosen from a list maintained by the Secretary of
State of persons who are (or have been within the last 5 years)
Chief Constables, other that a person who is (or has at any time
been) Chief Constable of Grampian Police.

O A retired constable of appropriate rank

An appeal has been received and it is therefore necessary for the
Board to appoint a Police Appeals Tribunal.

The following individuals have been consulted an have agreed to
service on a Police Appeals Tribunal, subject to the Board’s approval:

0 Mr Andrew Young, QC

0 Councillor Martin Grieg, Convener, Grampian Joint Police Board

O Mr Andrew Cameron, former Chief Constable, Central Scotland
Police

O Mr Calum Laurie, former Constable, Lothian & Borders Police.

The Police Appeal Tribunals Approved rates for fees and expenses
were last set in May 1998. As a consequence the amount allowed for
overnight accommodation (if required by Tribunal Members) is a
maximum of £61.50 per night. As this rate does not reasonably reflect
the cost of hotel accommodation in Aberdeen, Tribunal Members have
been invited to book accommodation via the Aberdeen City Council
Travel Section. This will ensure that Members can make use of
Government rates where possible and that the Board will be invoiced
directly for accommodation costs.

REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

Fiona Smith, Policy & Advice Officer

E-mail: fismith@aberdeencity.gov.uk
Telephone: 01224 522516

2
Page 160



8. BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

Karen M Donnelly, Depute Clerk
23" February 2011

3
Page 161



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 162



	Agenda
	2 Minute of Last Meeting - 12th November 2010
	3 Minute of Board Budget Meeting - 21st January 2011
	5 Minute of Grampian Joint Police Board Complaints Sub Committee Meeting of 7th June 2010 - For Information
	6 Minute of Grampian Joint Police Board Stewardship Sub Committee Meeting of 7th June 2010 - For Information
	7 Grampian Joint Police Board - Updated Business Statement
	8 Revenue Budget Monitoring Report - 31st January 2011 - Report from the Chief Constable and the Treasurer
	9 Capital Monitoring - 31st January 2011 - Report from the Chief Constable and the Treasurer
	10 Grampian Police and Grampian Joint Police Board - Best Value Audit and Inspection Report - Report from the Chief Constable and the Depute Clerk
	Best Value Apendix 1

	11 Force Quarter Three Performance Report 2010/11 - Report from the Chief Constable
	12 Board Development - Action Plan - Report from the Depute Clerk
	Board Development Appendix
	Board Development Appendix Two

	13 Grampian Gypsy / Traveller Summit - Report from the Depute Clerk
	14 Police Appeals Tribunal - Report from the Depute Clerk

